## **HOLY GHOST CONGRESS 2018 MESSAGES**



# MESSAGES OF ALL SESSIONS OF THE 2018 HOLY **GHOST CONGRESS**

# DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW Compiled by

# **Discovery Media Crew**

+234 802 360 4721

www.discoverymediacrew.com

facebook: @Dmc MediaCrew twitter: @discoverymediac

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## **Table of Contents**

|   | TABLE OF CONTENTS  | 2                 |
|---|--|-------------------|
|   | THEME SONG FOR HOLY GHOST CONGRESS 2018  | 3                 |
|   | DAY 1 – TALK 1 - TOPIC: GLORIOUS IN HOLINESS - PASTOR J.O. OBAYEMI   | 6                 |
|   | DAY 1 - TALK 2 - A NEW NAME - PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE  | 21                |
|   | DAY 2 - TALK 1 - TOPIC: TOMORROW WILL BE ALRIGHT - MINISTERING: DR. OKE ONUZO  | 35                |
|   | DAY 2 - SPECIAL TALK AND PRAYERS: ALL POWERS BELONG TO JESUS - PASTOR J.T KALEJAIYE  | 49                |
|   | DAY 2 - TALK 2 - TOPIC: A BRANCH OF THE LIFE - PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE   | 59                |
|   | DAY 3 – MORNING - SPECIAL TALK: AS HE IS, SO ARE WE IN THIS PRESENT WORLD<br>PASTOR STEPHEN RATHOD                           |                   |
|   | DAY 3 – TALK 1 - TOPIC: ROYAL PRIESTHOOD - REV. FELIX OMOBUDE  | 90                |
|   | DAY 3 - TALK 2 - TOPIC: UNDER A NEW MANAGEMENT - PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE   | <mark>.</mark> 97 |
|   | DAY 4 - MORNING TALK - TOPIC: WINGS' LIKE AN EAGLE - PASTOR BAMIDELE STURDIVANT  | . 114             |
|   | DAY 4 - SPECIAL TALK AND PRAYERS 1: TOPIC: JOY COMETH - REV. (MRS.) MERCY EZEKIEL  | . 129             |
|   | DAY 4 – EVENING - TALK 1 – <mark>FROM</mark> GLOR <mark>Y TO</mark> GLORY - <mark>PAST</mark> OR T <mark>AIWO</mark> ODUKOYA | . 142             |
|   | DAY 4 – SPECIAL TALK AND PRAYER 2 – THE PATH OF THE JUST - PASTOR AYODELE JOSEPH ORITSEJAI                                   |                   |
|   | DAY 4 – EVENING TALK 2 – BEFORE YOU CALL: PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE  | . 163             |
|   | DAY 5 – MORNING TALK: HEAD NOT TAIL - PASTOR ABRAHAM ADEWALE HAASTRUP  | . 179             |
| E | DAY 5 – TALK 1 - TOPIC: KING OF GLORY - DR. ELIZABETH VON  | . 196             |
|   | DAY 5 - TALK 2 - TOPIC: THE HAND OF THE LORD IS NOT SHORTENED - REVEREND JOE OLAIYA  | .211              |
|   | DAY 5 - TALK 3 - TOPIC: GLORY AHEAD - PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE  | .224              |
|   | DAY 6 - ANOINTING AND COMMUNION SERVICE - PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE  | . 238             |
|   | DAY 7 - THANKSGIVING SERVICE - PASTOR E.A KALEJAIYE  | . 254             |
|   | DAY 7 - FINAL BLESSING AT THE 2018 HOLY GHOST CONGRESS BY PASTOR E.A ADEBOYE   | . 264             |
|   | EDITORIAL NOTE - APPRECIATION  | . 266             |

#### **THEME SONG FOR HOLY GHOST CONGRESS 2018**

TUNE: WE ARE ABLE TO GO UP AND TAKE THE COUNTRY

I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION
 IN ALL SITUATIONS THAT MAY COME MY WAY
 I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY
 FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

#### **CHORUS:**

SINGING HALLELUYAH SINGING HALLELUYAH SHOUTING HALLELUYAH TO GOD (HALLELUYAH WE ARE)

SINGING HALLELUYAH SINGING HALLELUYAH SHOUTING HALLELUYAH TO GOD

2. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION E DA CREW OVER PAINS, OVER SICKNESS AND DISEASES I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

3. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINIONOVER SIN, OVER BONDAGE AND DEMONSI AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORYFAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

4. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINIONOVER LOSS, OVER FAILURE AND DEFEATI AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORYFAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

5. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION OVER DEATH, OVER SORROW AND DESPAIR I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

6. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION OVER BARRENNESS, AND ALL FRUITLESS EFFORTS I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

7. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION
OVER HELL, BACKSLIDING APOSTACY
I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY
FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.
B. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION

MY MOCKERS ARE NOW SILENCED FOREVER I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

9. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINIONI AM INDOMITABLE NOW AND EVERI AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORYFAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

10. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINIONMY OWN SUN WILL SOON RISE AGAIN BRIGHTERI AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORYFAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

11. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINIONAND I KNOW MY GLORY DAYS LIE CLOSE AHEADI AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORYFAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

12. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION I WILL SING, I WILL PRAISE GOD ALL MY DAYS I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

#### CHORUS

SINGING HALLELUYAH SINGING HALLELUYAH SHOUTING HALLELUYAH TO GOD (HALLELUYAH WE ARE)

SINGING HALLELUYAH SINGING HALLELUYAH SHOUTING HALLELUYAH TO GOD! MEDIA CREW

## DAY 1 – TALK 1 - TOPIC: GLORIOUS IN HOLINESS -PASTOR J.O. OBAYEMI

### (NATIONAL OVERSEER, RCCG NIGERIA AND PASTOR IN CHARGE OF REGION 2) DATE: 3RD DECEMBER, 2018

Let somebody shout Hallelujah!!!

Can you see what am seeing? Can you see the Glory Ahead?

If you know and you know it, shout a louder Hallelujah!!!

We thank God for Region 5 Choir and Divine Song. And I want to thank my daddy and our Father in the Lord for this Special privilege.

The theme GLORY AHEAD is an assurance that you are entering into your Glory.

If you know this shout a louder Hallelujah - Hallelujah!!!

**OPENING PRAYER:** 

Heavenly Father, we bless your Name.

We want to thank you Specially for your Mercies from January to December: For your Provisions from January to December; For health from January to December; For favour from January to December. Father, accept our thanks in the Name of Jesus.

Tonight even from now, let that Glory be revealed in the Name of Jesus.

Make our lives to be more Glorious from henceforth in the Name of Jesus.

That which you propose to do in this Congress, by your Holiness do them in Jesus Name.

Let everyone go back in Joy in the Name of Jesus.

Thank you Gracious Father.

Holy Spirit Divine, I submit myself to you; that which only you can do, go ahead and do them in Jesus Name and let your Name alone be Glorified.

In Jesus Name we have prayed (Amen)

I want you to welcome your neighbour -

Neighbour you are entering into your Glory but my Glory will be more Glorious than yours.

If you believe mine will be more Glorious than yours, shout another Hallelujah -Hallelujah!!!

Tonight we have a topic before us, "GLORIOUS IN HOLINESS"

We take our text from Exodus 15:11: "Who is like unto thee, O LORD, among the gods? who is like thee, Glorious in Holiness, Fearful in Praises, doing wonders?"

He will do wonders in our midst tonight in Jesus Name (Amen).

Almost all that God has is shared with saints or mankind - He shares His love, He shares His Holy Name.

As a matter of fact, He says whatsoever you ask in my Name that will I do. If you ask anything in my Name, I will do it.

John 14:13 - 14 says:

13. And whatsoever ye shall ask in my name, that will I do, that the Father may be Glorified in the Son.

14. If ye shall ask any thing in my Name, I will do it.

He shares His power. Luke 10:19 says: "Behold, I give unto you Power to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the Power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you."

But when it comes to His Glory and His Holiness, its a different ball game.

Isaiah 8:11 says: "For mine own sake, even for mine own sake, will I do it: for how should my Name be polluted? and I will not give my Glory unto another.

Tonight we are talking about "GLORIOUS IN HOLINESS".

Glorious is an adjective of Glory. You cannot separate the Glory of God from His Holiness. They are inseparable because whatever God does He's doing it out of His Holiness.

He is having Mercy because of His holiness.

He is keeping covenant because of His Holiness. He is showing Mercy because of His Holiness.

Everything God does is as a result of His Holiness, so the Glory of God is also His Holiness.

And what differentiate between us, His creature and Himself is His Holines?

Our God is absolutely Holy, absolutely Pure that he cannot even behold sin and daddy once told us that if you want to describe God in one word, it is just HOLY.

Holy is the summation of the whole attitude of God.

And the foundation of any Glory that will last forever is on Holiness.

Because of our time I may not have to define much about Glory and Holiness but our God both in the Old Testament and New Testament is described as Holy.

Even when Isaiah saw the revelation, all he saw the angels doing was worshipping God and they were saying Holy, Holy, Holy.

There are two key words in our topic for tonight, Glorious and Holiness.

You know the chorus we do sing.....

Who is like unto thee, O LORD (x2) Amongst the gods Who is like thee, Glorious in Holiness, Fearful in Praises, Always doing wonders And He will do that wonders tonight (Amen) I say He will do that wonders tonight (Amen).

This is the oldest song ever composed and it was composed by Moses.

Was Moses trying to describe the awesomeness of God or he was inspired by a situation?

And I still remember that daddy taught us that every song is an expression of situation of either the composer or the singer.

At this moment that we are talking about the Israelites were seeing the Glory of their freedom ahead, Moses as their leader was seeing the Glory or the peak of his Ministry ahead but they were caged. They saw the Red Sea before them, the Egyptian army is being with them, by their left, by their right side there are mountains. There was no way of escape but the Almighty God in His Glorious Holiness, He shew forth. The Red Sea parted ways, they walked through on bare foot, the enemy pursued them and the same Red Sea swallowed then.

That same God will show forth for you tonight in Jesus name (Amen).

And whatsoever has caged your Glory; as Moses and Israelites broke forth, you are breaking forth tonight in Jesus name (Amen).

So that is what made Moses to compose that particular song.

But you know our theme is 'Glory Ahead' what is the implication of this Glorious in Holiness in regard to our theme - Glory Ahead.

Number One: Because He is Glorious in Holiness, He cannot lie. He is able to do that which He has declared.

In Numbers 23:19; the Bible says: "God is not a man, that he should lie; neither the son of man, that he should repent: hath he said, and shall he not do it? or hath he spoken, and shall he not make it good?"

In Genesis 15, Abraham looked at himself and said to God, am I going to die like this without being fruitful. The servant in my house will possess my inheritance and God said No.

You might have thought yourself old, not possible to bear fruits again but I assure you, your children will be like stars in the skyline. They will sojourn in a foreign land in slavery but after 400 years, I will deliver them. And the nation that enslaved them shall be judged.

If it were to be a man; after 400 years he would have forgotten but because He is Glorious in Holiness. When at the peak of 400 years He took a man age 80, He cleans him up and said now go and deliver my people. And he said if I go to them what will I say. And I say God of your fathers and they ask what is His Name.

He said tell them; I AM THAT I AM have sent thee. That is: I was present in their past, present in their present and will be present in their future.

I stand at this Glorious altar and declare to your life, if there is any faulty foundation that has been working negatively against your Glory, the one that sent this topic will destroy them tonight in Jesus name (Amen).

And if the enemy of your Glory is in your present, the Almighty God will arrest them today in the Name of Jesus (Amen).

Moses went there and the people of God were delivered.

Number Two: Because He is Glorious in Holiness, He is Unchangeable.

In Malachi 3:16, He says: Then they that feared the LORD spake often one to another: and the LORD hearkened, and heard it, and a book of remembrance was written before Him for them that feared the LORD, and that thought upon his Name.

And remember also in Hebrews 13:8 - Jesus Christ the same yesterday, and to day, and for ever.

r r f w

Brethren because He cannot change, the Glory ahead cannot be altered.

SCOVERY MEDIA

It cannot be altered by the enemy, it cannot be altered by the devil, it cannot be altered by you.

In Genesis 37:24 & 28 and 39:1 & 20 - there was a man called Joseph. He saw the Glory ahead and his siblings gathered together to kill that Glory. He escaped. They put the Glory in the pit he escaped. They put the Glory in the prison he escaped.

You are going to escape tonight in Jesus name (Amen) in the Name of Jesus (Amen).

When you get to Genesis 41:41, he stood in the presence of Pharaoh and Pharaoh said I set you over the Nation of Egypt.

When you get to verse 42, Pharaoh removed his ring, put it in his hand, his Royal apparel given to him, he put chains on him.

You are the next one to be decorated (Amen).

And he put him on the Royal horse because he saw his Glory ahead. With all the problems of His life that Glory could not be altered.

Irrespective of what enemies might have done in your life, you will enter into that Glory in Jesus Name (Amen)

Number Three: The Glory that has foundation on His holiness cannot fade away.

Ezekiel 14:14 says: 'Though these three men, Noah, Daniel, and Job, were in it, they should deliver but their own souls by their righteousness, saith the Lord GOD.

What am I saying about this, the number two man mentioned here is Daniel. The Glory of Daniel started by proposing in himself not to defile himself with luxury of the king. He was focused and because of that God promoted him and he was given Political office.

Even though he was given Political office, he was not polluted by the Glory of that office. When they said they should not pray to God Almighty but to idols, he opened his windows and prayed. The enemies conspired, they put the Glory in the den of lions and the following day the king went and said: Daniel is your God that you are serving day and night able to deliver you. He answered oh King, by illustration, he said don't worry yourself my God has delivered me. Why? Because innocency is found in me and in you, Oh king. If God should put His search light of His Holiness to your life, to your wardrobe, to your office, can He find Holiness there? Can He find Innocency there?

That is why I say, every Glory that have foundation in Holiness cannot fade away.

Daniel was adding Glory unto Glory unto four kingdoms and after his death, God Almighty still made reference to him as a reference point for righteousness.

Your Glory will never decay in Jesus name (Amen).

Number Four: His Glorious Holiness brings Fearful and Uncommon Miracle. And because I have said that there is a Glory ahead.

In this Congress, there will be in uncommon miracles in Jesus name (Amen).

Remember the story of Elijah, he said in 1 Kings 18:37 - Hear me, O LORD, hear me, that this people may know that thou art the LORD God, and that thou hast turned their heart back again.

So he put a sacrifice on a wood, on a stone and the dust under and then poured water on it.

You remember where I started, God jealously guarded His holiness and where we have first read He says I will not allow any man to pollute my Name.

When Elijah brought the Name of God to the scene, God rose up in His Glorious Holiness - He sent down fire, He consumed the sacrifice,

He consumed the wood,

He consumed the stone.

He consumed the dust and He licked up the water.

As God liveth, every consumables, every obstacles between you and your Glory, the fire of God will fall tonight (Amen) and it shall consume them all in the Name of Jesus (Amen).

When He is manifesting His Glorious Holiness, hopelessly hopeless situations turnaround. In John 11:4;/When Jesus heard that, he said, This sickness is not unto death, but for the Glory of God, that the Son of God might be Glorified thereby.

And when He got to verse 40 of John 11, Jesus saith unto her, Said I not unto thee, that, if thou wouldest believe, thou shouldest see the Glory of God?

There is someone here who will see the Glory of God tonight (Amen).

If you are the one, shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!!!

Lazarus was sick and God knew. Let me tell you brethren, you are not alone in your situation. No matter the valley you; are since God says there is a Glory ahead of you, you will get there in Jesus Name (Amen).

Lazarus was sick, Jesus said this thing is for God to be Glorified.

Because of our time you know the story; he was buried, he became decomposed and then he began to stink. And when Jesus got there because you know after they buried him, they put a stone on the grave again.

They buried his dream, buried his vision, buried his ambition. He was below the valley as I was sometime in my life but when God surfaced in His Glorious Holiness, he called him back and said Lazarus that is not your bus stop, come out and he came out. He said loose and let him go.

I say with authority and efficacy in the Name Jesus, every dead situation in your life will regain life today in the Name of Jesus (Amen). And you will go back into that Glorious day in the Name of Jesus (Amen).

SCOVERY MEDIA CR

When He manifested the Glorious of His Holiness uncommon miracles happen.

Number Five: Which will be the confusion of the point before our responsibility - His Glorious Holiness brings uncommon victory.

In 2 Chronicles 20: 21 - 23.

21. And when he had consulted with the people, he appointed singers unto the LORD, and that should praise the beauty of holiness, as they went out before the army, and to say,

Praise the LORD; for his mercy endureth for ever.

22. And when they began to sing and to praise, the LORD set ambushments against the children of Ammon, Moab, and Mount Seir, which were come against Judah; and they were smitten.

23. For the children of Ammon and Moab stood up against the inhabitants of Mount Seir, utterly to slay and destroy them: and when they had made an end of the inhabitants of Seir, every one helped to destroy another.

Three nations gathered against Jehoshaphat and he gathered singers together. He said let us begin to sing and worship God in the beauty of His Holiness as they began to worship God, God Himself fought the battle for them.

As He began to fight for you from tonight (Amen).

15

He just asked them to begin to kill themselves, the children of Ammon they started killing the Moabites and when they finished each other, they felt defeated until they finally killed themselves.

Every enemy that said you will not enter into the Glory ahead of you, they will destroy themselves in the Name of Jesus (Amen).

MEDIA

Uncommon Victory occur when He manifests the Glory of His Holiness.

In 2 Kings 19:33 - 37; there is a king of Assyria called Sennacherib who boasted against Hezekiah. He said all the gods of other nations could not deliver them - who is that God that is going to deliver you?

He said if you gather all your soldiers together he said they will not amount to onetenth of the soldiers am bringing. He said so because they are uncountable. Hezekiah ran to God and God sent one Angel and he started killing them from Commander to the least until he killed 185, 000 of the soldiers and Sennacherib that has been boasting ran back to his city and ran to his idol as he was trying to say to the idol thank you, you have allowed all the soldiers to die but you still spared my life. His children said ha, ha...... You are here again after you have wasted the lives of others, they took sword and they killed him. That was the end of him.

Because God is going to manifest in His Glorious of Holiness tonight, every man, every woman, every Power, every force standing between you and your Glory, they are going to be disgraced in the Name of Jesus (Amen).

But you and I, we have a responsibility.

16

Number One: You have to surrender to Him. He cannot fight for you if you don't know Him. You cannot manifest His Glory if you don't know Him and you can't live Holy if you don't know Him.

When you live Holy, you manifest the Glorious of His Holiness and John 1:12 says: But as many as received Him, to them gave He Power to become the sons of God, even to them that believe on His Name.

As our daddy will come to the podium tonight and make an altar call, just make it a day with Jesus - rush down to the altar and surrender to Him and He will begin to manifest His Glorious Holiness in your life in Jesus Name (Amen).

Number Two: Supposing you have given your life to Him, you need to draw closer to Him. You need to build a closer relationship with God not collectively but as an individual. You know in Matthew 17:1 - 2, twelve Apostle were following Jesus, when Jesus wanted to manifest the Glorious of His Holiness only three that were close to Him that he took to a Mountain called "Mountain of Transfiguration". The rest nine, they were battling with demons down below and when Peter saw the Glory he said we don't have to leave here anymore.

Nobody sees the Glory of God and remain the same. Isaiah saw that Glory and said woe is me. He has been condemning others but when he saw himself.

Peter said better - we stay here. But if you draw. Loser to Him, He will show you His Glorious Holiness.

Number Three: You must work with Him in Spirit and in Truth, worship Him in Spirit and in Truth.

John 4: 23 - 24:

23. But the hour cometh, and now is, when the true worshippers shall worship the Father in spirit and in truth: for the Father seeketh such to worship him.

24. God is a Spirit: and they that worship Him must worship Him in Spirit and in Truth.

You must be a worshiper of God. Moses worshipped God, His Glorious Holiness was manifested unto him.

David worshiped God, he saw the Glory of God.

You must be a worshipper of God so that He can manifest His Glorious Holiness in you.

In fact, when we get to heaven there is no other work we are going to do than to worship Him because Revelation 4:8 says: "And the four beasts had each of them six wings about him; and they were full of eyes within: and they rest not day and night, saying, Holy, holy, LORD God Almighty, which was, and is, and is to come".

The four beast in heaven day and night, 24/7 they have nothing to do than to say Holy, Holy. Holy, Lord God Almighty.

Be a worshipper, you don't go to Heaven to know God. You go to Heaven because you know God is there. If you are not a worshipper here, you won't be able to worship Him there.

Number Four: Be thirsty of His glory, be thirsty of His glory.

Despite all the Miracles that Moses performed, he was still thirsty of the Glory of God. Despite the breakthrough you are going to have, continuously still be thirsty of His Glory. Exodus 33:18 said - And he said, I beseech thee, shew me thy Glory.

May He be Merciful tonight on you in Jesus Mighty Name (Amen).

And finally, you have to defend your Faith. You need to defend your Faith.

This is not the time to stand aloof.

Daddy said the countdown is now. The three Hebrew boys: Shadrach, Meshach and Abednego, they said to the king in Daniel 3:16 - Shadrach, Meshach, and Abednego, answered and said to the king, O Nebuchadnezzar, we are not careful to answer thee in this matter.

Enough is enough of bowing down to corruption. As a Christian, you don't have to bow down to corruption. You don't have to bow down to bribery. You don't have to bow down to adultery and fornication.

You must show the nature of the Father that born you - Holiness is the nature of God,

He said in 1 Peter 1:17 - And if ye call on the Father, who without respect of persons judgeth according to every man's work, pass the time of your sojourning here in fear.

Tell your neighbour, begin to defend your Faith. Don't keep quiet anymore.

Are you ready to pray now, can you kindly rise up.

When Daddy will come he will make the altar call and I appeal to you to come forward.

Are you ready to pray, say Father:

1. Every impurity in my life standing between me and my Glory, remove them by your blood.

Go ahead and talk to Jesus, remove them by your blood (x4) in the Name of Jesus. Remove them by your blood in the Name of Jesus. Thank you Father.

You are going to pray this prayer again before I pray for you, say Father:

2. Reveal your Glory into my life. I want to enter into Glory, reveal your Glory to me. Father, reveal your Glory to me. I want to enter into my Glory, reveal your Glory to me in the Name of Jesus. In my spiritual life, in my physical life, in my finances, let me experience your Glory.

In Jesus Name we have have prayed.

Closing Prayer:

And so Father, we give you all the Glory, we give you all the Honour.

We thank you because once you have said it, it is done. You have said the Glory is ahead.

Every impurities that will not allow us to enter into this Glory, remove by your by lBlood in the Name of Jesus (Amen).

Tonight, we pray that you will reveal your Glory to every aspect of our lives in the Name of Jesus. Our lives will never remain the same again in the Name of Jesus (Amen).

From now onward, our lives will become Glorious and Glorious and Glorious in the Mighty Name of Jesus (Amen).

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed (Amen).

COMPILATIONS BY

ADEBANJO ADESOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND MOSES DURODOLA

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018



## DAY 1 - TALK 2 - A NEW NAME - PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE

#### DATE: 3RD DECEMBER, 2018

Hallelujah!

1. Now let's lift our hands to the Most High God and bless His Holy Name. Let's worship the King of kings, the Lord of lords, the Ancient of Days. Let's give Him Glory, let's give Him Honour and Adoration. Bless His Holy Name. Worship Him. Give Him Glory, because another Congress is here and by the Grace of God, you are also here. Worship Him.

Bless His Holy Name/3 times. Thank you Father. Oh Lord God Almighty we bless your Name. Thank you Jesus. We worship you Lord, we give you all Glory, all Honour, all Adoration. Thank you for what you have done in the past. Thank you, another Congress is here. And by your Grace and your Grace alone we are here too. Thank you Father.

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

2. Now I want you to lift uo your voice loud and clear and say Father; in my life, in my family, in your Church and in my Nation: This week, reveal your GLORY please.

MED

Go ahead, talk to the Almighty God. Thank you Jesus. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

SONG:

You are the Mighty God

The Great I AM

Hallelujah, Hallelujah!

OPENING PRAYER: King of Glory we worship you. Alpha and Omega we bow before you. The Unchangeable Changer we say; may your Name forever be Glorified. Accept our worship in Jesus Name.

Thank you for all you have done in the past Congresses. Thank you for what you are about to do now. Thank you because you always reserve the best till the last. So we know that you are going to do Greater things this year than before. Please accept our worship in Jesus Name.

In the lives of everyone of your children: those who are here now, those who are yet on the way (or reading); this week please reveal your Glory. In our family, please reveal your Glory. In all the Churches represented here, reveal your Glory. And in all the Nations where they are listening to us (or reading) right now, reveal your Glory. Even before tomorrow morning, let your children have Testimonies.

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. Amen!

Now let somebody shout Hallelujah.

Shake hands with two (2) or three (3) people, Prophesy to them and say; Your Glory is near.

You are all welcome in Jesus Name. Am happy to see so many of you this first night; in spite of the traffic on the way. I want to assure you that as from tomorrow, traffic will be easier.

And so, go tell your friends; if they miss tonight and they miss tomorrow, that they have missed one third (1/3) of the entire Programme. So tell them they should leave home early and be here in time because tomorrow is going to be the day for HEALINGS.

... Glory be to God!

Because some of you have arrived from far places, we will be very brief tonight. But we will still do whatever God wants us to do.

I have been asked to speak to us tonight on "A NEW NAME."

BIBLE TEXT: Revelation 2:17

"He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit saith unto the Churches; To him that overcometh will I give to eat of the hidden manna, and will give him a white stone, and in the stone a new name written, which no man knoweth saving he that receiveth it."

Somebody is getting a New Name tonight - Amen! If you are the one, let me hear you shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Now, you say "What is in a New Name?"

Shakespeare, one of the great Writers of yester years said:: "A Rose by any other name will smell as sweet".

In other words, he was saying; Names don't matter. But that is human opinion. Because God said in Isaiah 55:8. He said; My thoughts are not your thoughts, my ways are not your ways.

There could be a lot in a name. Some of you will change your name even before this night is over. Amen! Because a name can affect your Destiny and your legacy (your destiny you want to leave behind after this world).

For example, Moses in Exodus 2:1-10. We discovered, particularly in verse 10 that Moses means "Drawn out of Water". And when you go through the history of Moses, you see water playing major roles.

For example; he changed water to blood. He parted the Red Sea. He changed bitter water to sweet - that's in Exodus 15:22-26. He brought water out of the Rock - Exodus 17:1-6. And do you know that the reason he couldn't get to the Promised Land was because of the Water? - Numbers 20:1-13.

So all the days of Moses, water just kept on cropping up because his name said - "Drawn out of Water".

Let's take another example; Elijah - Elijah means "Jehovah is God!" And on Mount Camel in 1Kings 18:30-39, after he prayed and fire fell. And the Nation of Isreal fell on his face and everyone was shouting "Jehovah is God". They were actually shouting "Elijah".

Your name is important. It can affect your destiny.

Then what about your Legacy - What you leave behind?

Your name can also have an impart on your Legacy.

There is a man called Methuselah in the Bible in Genesis 5: 26-27. He lived 969 years. He was the oldest man who ever lived. But do you know that since he died, nobody ever named his son Methuselah. And nobody used his name as an appellation - Mr. Lagbaja alias Methuselah. I am sure you have never heard anything like that? Because he lived long, and all he did was eat and had children. 969 years, he achieved nothing!

You have never heard anybody named his child Judas Iscariot. Why? That man left behind a terrible Legacy.

You have never heard anybody call his son Cain. Why? He was the first murderer.

DISCOVERY MEDIA CRE

Nobody wants to start and end badly. So when people are selecting names, they are very careful.

Have you ever heard anyone call his daughter Jezebel; Even though Jezebel was a Queen? But what kind of Queen was she? A terrible Queen that was leading her husband deeper into IDOLATRY. Nobody ever call their daughter Jezebel.

And then you hear people calling their children; Stephen, Abel, Mary, Enoch. Because those are great Names!

Your name is very important. Abraham for example; when you go through the Scriptures, whenever you see again and again, the years are passing and nothing that God said come to pass. In Genesis 17:1-6; And God changed the name from Abram to Abraham.

When Your name is a good one like Issac. You will see that Isaac never caused his parents sorrow. Unlike Jabez who the mother named "Sorrow" in 2 Chronicles 4:9-10. Jabez cried to God and God intervened, and changed his name.

May I decree tonight, that if your name is standing between you and your Glory; the Almighty God will intervene.

Now, what are the Implications of a New Name?

Apart for the fact that a New Name could imply you have joined a New Family. For example in John 1:11-12 -

11. He came unto his own, and his own received him not.

12. But as many as received him, to them gave He Power to become the sons of God, even to them that believe on His name:

Is anybody here tonight (or reading) who will love to be called "son of the devil?" How many of you will loved to be called the children of God?

... let me hear you say Amen - Amen!

Now you could join a New Family through two (2) ways:

1. We could be children of God by ADOPTION. Because God has only one (1) BEGOTTEN Son - that is Jesus Christ (John 3:16). But the rest of us were Adopted. And we are also sons and daughters of God.

2. Alternatively, you can join a New Family and get a New Name by MARRIAGE; particularly if you are a woman.

You go into the for wedding as Miss Ogundele and come out as Mrs. Olorundara.

If you join a New Family, that automatically means; particularly if you joined that family by marriage:

1. That automatically means a New Accommodation. If you join the family of God, for example, you will be automatically translated out of darkness to Light.

.. If you are join a New Family;

2. Automatically it means New Behaviour and new Responsibility. When you leave your father's House and marry into another family; Ephesians 5:8 says: "For ye were sometimes darkness, but now are ye light in the Lord: walk as children of light:"

But those of us who are here today, we must be sober. We must put on the breastplate of Faith and Love. So the New Name Mandate implies New Behaviour and New Responsibilities.

Now, there are Advantages in having a New Name. For example: The Almighty God made a Promise in Isaiah 43:7. He said, everyone called by my Name, I have created for my Glory! If you are called by the Name of God, GLORY is guaranteed for you.

For example when you hear the name Christian, which is associated with Christ; it follows that you are associated with the Anointed One.

Acts 10:38 says: "How God anointed Jesus of Nazareth with the Holy Ghost and with Power: who went about doing Good, and Healing all that were oppressed of the devil; for God was with Him."

The moment you become associated with Christ, the Anointing that is upon Jesus Christ becomes available to you. Isaiah 10:27 tells us that the Anointing breaks yoke.

So it is not a small thing, when you say "I am a Christian". I am a Christian means I am associated with Christ. I am called by the Name of God. My yoke will be destroyed and I am made for the Glory of God.

If you are a Christian, you will have New Names; because Jesus Himself has many Names. And so if you are a Christian, you will end up with many names. I mean, Jesus Christ, you see Him today, He will say: "I am the Way". You see Him Tomorrow, He will say "I am the Door". The next time He will say: "I am the Shepherd". The next time, He will say my name is Wonderful, Counsellor, Mighty God, Everlasting Father, the Prince of Peace.

I just want to looks at one (1) or two (2);

1. You know you can boldly say to anybody who ask you that your New Name is: "The Light of the World".

If they ask why? You say that is the Name Jesus called me. Where? - in Matthew 5:13-16.

... So what is your New Name? - "LIGHT OF THE WORLD!"

And do you know the implication of that? It means that when darkness sees you coming, it must run. Because the Light shines in darkness and darkness cannot overcome it.

... The moment you become a Christian, you have a right to that name - "The Light".

The moment you become a Christian, your days of running from forces of darkness are over. Because if you don't, of course the devil is ready to cheat you. But if you know it; the moment you become a True Christian; Witches and Wizards should be afraid of you.

Before I became Born Again, for thirteen (13) years I was running from my Village because some people there told my father they will use me for breakfast. So I ran. After thirteen (13) years I met the Lord Jesus Christ. And then there was something to do in my village. And I told my mother "I am going". She said "You have to bury me first". I laughed and I said; things are different now. I am not the one you used to know.

I went and I came back. Today, when I want to go to my village I announce ahead "I am coming home, so that the witches and wizards can go away.

May I decree to someone here (or reading) that; because your name is Light, Forces of darkness with begin to run away from you.

And because your name is Light; what Light does is to Shine and the meaning of Glory is SHINNING BEAUTY - Beginning from this moment, you will begin to Shine - Amen!

... I thought I will hear a better Amen - AMEN!

2. Because you are a Christian, Jesus calls you the SALT of the Earth.

And by implication, you are to bring Joy to people. Because Salt is needed to seasoned food, Salt is needed as a fertilizer; to make things produce. Salt is needed to keep flies at bay and to deal with corruption.

Because your name is Salt, it means you are to impart your generation. It means your life will not be a wasted life. It means you will not live a useless life.

For Example, in Acts 8:5-8; the Bible says Philip went to Samaria and preached Christ to them. The Bible says as a result of that one fellow, Joy was brought to a whole City.

May I assure you that after this Congress everywhere you go, when you arrive; Joy arrives, Miracles arrive. And in all those places where they had ignored you before; Your Glory will begin to manifest.

3. Do you know what, because you belong to the family of God and one of the Names of Christ; with whom you are associated is the Door. You are called a Door.

You know what that means? Nobody can shut the door at you anymore! Why? Because your Father has the Keys of David. He opens and no one can shut, He shuts and no one can open.

That is why when they put Peter in prison, in Acts 12:5-11; the Door opened for him to be released.

In the Name that is above other names, from this moment on, everywhere you turn, doors will open for you.

4. Because you are a Christian, and Christian means Christ is involved with you. According to Colossians 1:27, the Bible says Christ in you the Hope of Glory.

Because you are associated with Christ. And because Christ is now dwelling in me. Because people have known me with Christ; whether the enemy likes it not; "My future will be Glorious".

Whether the enemy likes it or not. If you are truly a Christian: You have a Glorious tomorrow.

I have always said it again and again; that my tomorrow will be alright. Are you sure of that? Yes, my tomorrow will be alright!

I am associated with Christ. Christ in me the Hope of GLORY, not shame, not failure.

Before you now go at the end of your journey to Heaven; in the text that we read: Revelation 2:17; when we get to heaven, one of the things that Jesus will do is that He will give each of us a White Stone, and on it a New Name.

That is why I am so glad I am a Christian on my way to Heaven. Because when I get there finally, I will get a New Name.

But in the mean time; I can introduce myself as the Light, Salt, the Door.

... Go ahead introduce yourself to two (2) or three (3) people.

What is your name? I am the Light, I am Salt, I am a Door.

You know I discovered something when I was preparing for this Message. That the Bible says, even Jesus when we get to Heaven, will have a New Name. Revelation 3:12 says: "Him that overcometh will I make a Pillar in the Temple of my God, and He shall go no more out: and I will write upon Him the Name of my God, and the Name of the City of my God, which is New Jerusalem, which cometh down out of Heaven from my God: and I will write upon Him my new Name.

... If Jesus needs a New Name, I also need a New Name.

Many of us don't know what we have. That is why the devil has been tormenting us. From now on, our Glory Time has come. No more shame, no more feeling downcast.

And in the Name of the On<mark>e who s</mark>ent me - No m<mark>ore sor</mark>row in your life.

So if you have not surrendered your life to Jesus Christ, you don't know what you are missing. If you are a Church Goer and you are claiming you are a Christian you are deceiving yourself. That is why the devil said "Jesus I know, Paul I know, who are you?"

But in the mean time if you are here and don't really know Christ, I am going to count from one (1) to ten (10). Before I say Ten (10) come and and stand here; And I pray that things will be different for you from now on.

-

I am counting...

30

Oh, becoming a Christian is not a joking matter. It is serious business. Because it means a change of Name, Family, Behavior, Responsibilities. And I am telling you, the Name He will confer on you has tremendous Power and Authority.

Thank you to those of you who are clapping - Your Glory is here now. Keep Clapping, God bless you for clapping. Your hands will never lack again.

Those of you who are coming from afar just keep coming. I can see you running. Keep coming. Make sure you get here before I finish praying. Just keep coming, God bless you.

Now those of you already in front and those of you who are on the way, cry to Jesus Christ, tell Him: Lord please save my soul, wipe away my sins. Receive me into the Family of God. I surrender my life to you. I will serve you for the rest of my life.

And the rest of us who are already Born Again, let us stretch forth our hands towards these people and intercede for them. Let us pray that the One who save our souls will save their own souls too. Please pray for them that they too will get a New Name today. They will become children of the Most High God. Intercede for them for about two (2) minutes

Those of you coming please hurry up. I know some of you are coming from afar. Because I will soon be praying for Salvation. Thank you Father. Glory be to your Holy Name. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

GO PRAYS: Saviour we want to thank you for your Word. We want to give you all Glory and Honour for these your people who have come forward to surrender their lives to you. Father you have Promise that whosoever that comes to you; you will no wise cast out. Please receive them, forgive them, let your Blood wash away their sins, save their souls, write their names in the Book of Life, receive them into the family of God and don't let them backslide again. And from now on, anytime they call on you, answer them by Fire. Please Lord, don't let them backslide. And please Lord, let them serve you till the very end.. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

And those of you who have come forward, Congratulations.

... Let me hear you shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

31

I want to rejoice with you. Because of you, Jesus is dancing in Heaven.

I want you to stay where you are. Counsellors could you please come and attend to them? The Counsellors will attend to you where you are. Because i will need your Names and Addresses. And I promise you from tonight onward, I will be praying for you - Congratulations!

I want you to stay where you are because you will be part of the prayers we are about to pray now.

Ok, the rest of us, know that you are now a very Special Person with the name - Light of the Earth, Salt of the Earth, other names.

That if you pray, your prayers will not be anymore hindered by the forces of darkness. I will tell you that whatever prayer you pray today, God is going to answer by Fire in Jesus Name.

I want you to stand on your feet and shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

#### **PRAYERS**:

1. Lift up your voice to the Almighty God and thank Him for the priviledge of being in the Family of God.

2. Say Father; in the Mighty Name of Jesus, any SHAME in my Past, erase it tonight.

3. Say Father; in the Mighty Name of Jesus, any SHAME in my Present, Let it end tonight.

... And now, this one is very crucial;

4. Say Father; in the Mighty Name of Jesus, any SHAME in my Destiny, cancel it tonight.

5. Say Father; in the Mighty Name of Jesus, Let my Future be Glorious.

... Thank you Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

6. Before I pray for you; since you are here the very first night. I think you should ask God for AN ADVANCED MIRACLE - A Miracle that comes before the other people will arrive.

CLOSING PRAYER: Father, I want to thank you for the Opening Night. Thank you for starting with us. Thank you in advanced for what you will do tomorrow. Please accept our thanks in Jesus Name.

Any Shame in the Past of these your children, erase it tonight, in Jesus Name. Any Shame in their Present, end it tonight in Jesus Name. Any Shame in their Future, cancel it tonight in Jesus Name.

From now on, my Father and my God, every day of their lives let there be Glory. And whatever they have asked for tonight, before tomorrow morning, Father please release to them.

And those who have to go home tonight, grant them journey mercies. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Let me hear you shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

33

How about shaking hands with two (2) or three (3) people and then say: How are you Light of the World?

EDITORIAL: What an awesome Moment in the Presence of the Lord tonight.

... Our Glory has indeed start Shinning Brightly to the Glory of God even from Day 1.

Day 1 is down already. Day 2 is the Day for Healings. So for as many people who are sick, it is your Day - Doctor Jesus awaiting you!

The setting is right and we are already in the mood of the Holy Ghost Congress. The Presence of the Almighty so Mighty here and you just need to ensure that you don't miss any Service again from tonight.

COMPILATIONS BY

MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND ADEBANJO ADESOLA,

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018



## DAY 2 - TALK 1 - TOPIC: TOMORROW WILL BE ALRIGHT - MINISTERING: DR. OKE ONUZO

#### (THE ASSOCIATE PASTOR OF THE NATIONAL HEADQUARTERS CHURCH, FOURSQUARE CHURCH IN NIGERIA)

#### DATE: 4TH DECEMBER, 2018

Someone praise the Lord - Hallelujah!!!

I am obligated to the General Overseer and our Mummy G.O. and the Organizing committee of this Congress for the honour to speak here tonight - Amen. My prayers is that God will visit us and minister to us - Amen!!!

Y MEDIA CREW

Shall we rise to pray please:

SONG:

Wo nu mi o

Ko wa bami soro

O wu nu Mose

Mose ba okun soro

Okun gbo

O wu nu Elijah

Elijah ba ina soro

Ina gbo

O wu nu Maria

Maria bi Olugbala

A ra ye

35

Wo nu mi o

Ko wa bami soro.

**OPENING PRAYER:** 

Father, breathe your very life into us. Empower us by your Holy Spirit. Transfer us into the image of your Son. Make your kingdom prosper in our hands, that your Name alone may be Glorified.

For in Jesus Name we pray - Amen!!!

My meditation is actually "TOMORROW WILL BE ALRIGHT".

And because we believe that tomorrow will be alright, we take authority today against principalities, against powers, against rulers of the darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places; completely eliminated to the Glory of our God (Amen)

Can you say Amen to that - Amen!!!

In Luke Chapter 12 Verse 32, the Bible says; "Fear not, little flock; for it is your Father's good pleasure to give you the kingdom."

And somebody say Amen - Amen!!!

I want to read from 1 Kings 18:41-46

36

41. And Elijah said unto Ahab, Get thee up, eat and drink; for there is a sound of abundance of rain.

MEDI

A CREW

42. So Ahab went up to eat and to drink. And Elijah went up to the top of Carmel; and he cast himself down upon the earth, and put his face between his knees,

43. And said to his servant, Go up now, look toward the sea. And he went up, and looked, and said, There is nothing. And he said, Go again seven times.
44. And it came to pass at the seventh time, that he said, Behold, there ariseth a little cloud out of the sea, like a man's hand. And he said, Go up, say unto Ahab, Prepare thy chariot, and get thee down, that the rain stop thee not.

45. And it came to pass in the mean while, that the heaven was black with clouds and wind, and there was a great rain. And Ahab rode, and went to Jezreel.

46. And the hand of the LORD was on Elijah; and he girded up his loins, and ran before Ahab to the entrance of Jezreel.

Our subject tonight is a Prophetic word; TOMORROW WILL BE ALRIGHT!

... Can you say Amen to that - Amen!!!

But to whom is this word sent to and from who?

The first thing to note is that it is not a Prophetic word from me to you. Why not? Because if you are born again Christian, if you are filled with the Holy Spirit, I should not be telling you that your tomorrow will be alright.

The reason is because of two scriptures that tell us our tomorrow can be alright.

The first one is from Deuteronomy 5:27-29

37

27. Go thou near, and hear all that the LORD our God shall say: and speak thou unto us all that the LORD our God shall speak unto thee; and we will hear it, and do it.

28. And the LORD heard the voice of your words, when ye spake unto me; and the LORD said unto me, I have heard the voice of the words of this people, which they have spoken unto thee: they have well said all that they have spoken.

29. O that there were such an heart in them, that they would fear me, and keep all my commandments always, that it might be well with them, and with their children for ever!

... That's how tomorrow is alright.

For every believer in our Lord Jesus, everyone that has received Jesus in their heart and that the Holy Spirit is possessing their heart; tomorrow is Alright!

But we don't only see that in the Old Testament. Our Lord Jesus said exactly the same thing in John 8:28-29;

28. Then said Jesus unto them, When ye have lifted up the Son of man, then shall ye know that I am he, and that I do nothing of myself; but as my Father hath taught me, I speak these things.

29. And he that sent me is with me: the Father hath not left me alone; for I do always those things that please him.

Tomorrow will be alright, if you follow me in the foot print of Jesus who said to us, I do nothing of myself. My Father teaches me, I speak His words and as a result of that, my Father is with me and He has not let me alone. And the reason I always do the things that please Him.

So you and I know how to make tomorrow alright for ourselves if you will follow the Lord. If you will obey the Lord. If you will do as He says. Then, tomorrow WILL BE ALRIGHT!

... Because the greatest guarantee of tomorrow is the Divine Presence.

Jesus said; My Father is with me. And you see; to guarantee that the Father is always with me, I have to do what pleases Him.

... So this is the guarantee of tomorrow!

So no believer in our Lord Jesus Christ should sit around waiting for another brother or sister to tell him or her that tomorrow will be alright. No! Jesus said; it is the way to

make sure your tomorrow is alright. Do nothing by yourself; only do as the Father has taught you. Always do what pleases the Father anywhere and everywhere.

And that's why the scriptures tell is in

Romans 8:14 - "For as many as are led by the Spirit of God, they are the sons of God."

It is the Divine Presence that guarantees tomorrow. It is the Presence of God that says our tomorrow is alright.

Can you say Amen to that - Amen!!!

So, if this is not a Prophetic Word from me to you; what is this then?

This is a Prophetic Word from the Body of Christ for you and I. The body of Christ in Nigeria to the Nigerian society. It is also the Prophetic Word by every Christian to his or her world. You and I are rising to declare to our world, to say to the world of believers: Tomorrow Will Be Alright - Amen!!!

But on what basis should we declare this Word to the world of Nigerians; to Nigeria that tomorrow will be alright?

The answer is in John 17:22 - "And the Glory which thou gavest me I have given them; that they may be one, even as we are one."

The Lord revealed to Moses in Exodus 33 that the Glory of God is the Presence of the Lord. Moses said to Him, Lord show me your Glory and God said I will pass by you, I will hide you in the cliff of the rock and then my Glory will pass and you will see it from the back.

And that scripture therefore, tells us that "I cannot see the Glory of God without the Presence of God."

... And so to bring down the Glory: That is the challenge of the Church! To say to Nigerians, "We will bring down the Glory, and our tomorrow will be alright!"

... Can you say Amen to that - Amen!!!

So when we declare to Nigerians that there is Glory Ahead, that tomorrow will be alright; we are saying to them "Don't worry about tomorrow because we are going to carry the Glory of God into tomorrow."

Say Amen to that - Amen!!!

At individual levels, you and I are declaring to our families, we are declaring to our Churches, we are declaring to our Communities, to our colleagues at work; Tomorrow Will Be Alright!

Because I am going to bring down and manifest the Glory of my God anywhere and everywhere. That means am going to bring down the Presence of God in my world and we together are going to bring down the Presence of God in Nigeria. And the Presence of God will guarantee; as always that Our Tomorrow Will Be Alright!

But then, is this an empty pledge? Is this an empty promise?

We learnt something from the Prophet Elijah, he said to Ahab: I hear the sound of abundance of rain. But where was he hearing it? It wasn't visible so that I hear with my spiritual ears the sound of abundance of rain.

And that is why the scriptures says that God has blessed us with every blessing. But He has positioned them in Heavenly places in Ephesians 1:3.

When we pledge to our world "Tomorrow will be alright"! We, like Elijah must do what he did.

Elijah said rain is coming; rain is coming! But you know he didn't turn around and go to sleep. He didn't turn over and pursue all manners of things. He knew that having made that commitment, he had to bring down that rain.

.. And that's why the Bible said; he began to pray.

But before we get to the prayer, let us look at how you and I can position ourselves. Because you see, when it comes to God, it's a matter of position.

Have you positioned yourself? Because God is moving in a certain direction. And you see He doesn't chase us. We have to turn to position ourselves in the direction of the Divine Flow.

Leviticus 9:6-7; this is what you should do, this is what I should do, so that the Glory of God will appear:

6. And Moses said This is the thing which the LORD commanded that ye should do: and the Glory of the LORD shall appear unto you.

7. And Moses said unto Aaron, Go unto the altar, and offer thy sin offering, and thy burnt offering, and make an atonement for thyself, and for the people: and offer the offering of the people, and make an atonement for them; as the LORD commanded.

Moses commanded three (3) things that the people need to do if they wanted to experience the Glory of God.

1. Point Number One: Bring your "sin offering". What do we mean by that? It is called in New Testament terms "Genuine Repentance."

You know, repentance has suddenly become a word that many people don't understand.

Let me simply explain what repentance is. Repentance has three (3) parts or four (4) parts if you like.

- The first part is; Lord, I am sorry for my sins.

- The second part is; Please wash me in the Blood of Jesus so that my sins can be washed away.

- But then, there is that third part that signals and denotes Genuine Repentance; That is the part that says "by your Grace, by the Power of your Holy Spirit, I will not sin again."

... Without that third part: "I will not do it again"; that repentance is not Genuine.

So when Moses said bring a sin offering. He said approach God with Genuine Repentance so that He will look upon souls that have made a pledge to live Godly lives.

2. The second thing Moses recommended, he says; Bring your "Burnt Offering".

A Burnt Offering is a consecration offering and that is why the scriptures tells us in Romans 12:1 that: I beseech you therefore, brethren, by the mercies of God, that ye present your bodies a living sacrifice, holy, acceptable unto God, which is your reasonable service.

Consecration Offering: these are people who have decided that they will make their lives a sacrifice unto God. They will dedicate their lives to please God, to love God, to serve Him in sincerity and in Truth. Like Jesus said they that must worship the Father must worship Him in Spirit and in Truth.

MEDIA

So burnt offering is a consecration offering. People who have by themselves decided to serve the Lord and they would not look back.

Can you say Amen to that - Amen!!!

42

3. Now, the third thing that Moses recommended that if we do it, the Presence of the Lord will come down;

The third thing is the "Peace Offering". And that Peace offering is a worship offering.

And what is a Worship Offering?

These are people who have come to accept that; every aspect of life must be worship that is acceptable unto God. Whether they are at home; whether they are at work, whether they are doing business; everything they do must be worship that is acceptable to God.

And as a result of that, they live Godly lives at home, Godly lives at work, Godly lives in business and politics and governance. Godly lives in Church.

Because the Bible says in 1 Timothy 4:8 - "For bodily exercise profiteth little: but godliness is profitable unto all things, having promise of the life that now is, and of that which is to come."

Moses said: if we would genuinely repent, if we will dedicate and consecrate our lives to God, if we will worship God with everything that we have; the Presence of God will come down and take over our lives.

Can you say Amen to that - Amen!!!

That is the message we must take to our world. That is the message we must take to ourselves; that God will come down.

But we must repent, we must consecrate our lives and we must worship Him in Spirit and in Truth.

RY MEDI

And then PRAYER!

43

When it comes to Prayer, we rise to say to Him: Lord we trust you, we have Faith in you that you are a Good God; that you are a Faithful God, that you are a God who keeps Promises, your Word is Yea and Amen!

... And so, we stand on that Word and we begin to intercede for our land.

But now, before we shift to that Prayer, let me say that if you are not saved, you don't have to wait to join in this prayer, you can be saved now. And let me tell you why Salvation is important, particularly when the prayer involves warfare, fighting the forces that hinder us.

The Bible calls Salvation, HELMET. If you watch Soldiers who are into battle; they have helmet: They have something covering their head. The Bible says Salvation is Helmet! So we don't want to go into warfare without your "helmet covering your head."

And so, if you are not saved or if you are thinking of being saved, I urge you to be saved now and it is very simple.

You can say Lord Jesus come into my heart, be my Lord and be my Saviour. I repent of all my sins and by your Grace I will not go back to it again. I confess you now as my Lord and Saviour. I believe you died for my sins, I believe you rose again that I may live a new life. Thank you for saving me in Jesus Name I pray. And somebody said: Amen!!!

Perhaps you have been saved but you have backslide. Your Salvation is just in ruins; there is no life to it. Oh this is the time to restore it and to pray and say to Him: Oh Lord my God, I confess all my backsliding, please forgive me all my backsliding. And by your Grace, I will not go back to them again. I will walk in newness of life from henceforth by the Power of your Holy Spirit so that my life will be acceptable unto you. In Jesus name I pray - Amen!

And somebody said: Amen!!!

Now that everyone present supposedly has had the opportunity to put on THE HELMET; their own Helmet of Salvation. It is time for us to pray.

Y MEDIA CREW

The Bible reveals that there are Five (5) enemies that we will deal with when we promise the world; "Tomorrow Will Be Alright."

... We have to sit back and deal with the enemies.

In Ephesians 6:12, the Bible says there are: Principalities, Powers, Rulers of the darkness of this world and then spiritual Host of wickedness in heavenly places and then the fifth one is the Prince of this world.

Where do we find that? We find that in the second temptation of Christ according to Matthew or the third temptation according to Luke. The devil said to Him (to Jesus); see the kingdoms of this world, see the glories of it, see the wealth and the riches and the honours of it are all mine and I will give it to whosoever I will. If you will bow down and worship me, then all will be yours.

... Oh my brother, my sister, that's a clever devil.

Because he knows that you and I want success, he knows that you and I wants to be comfortable, to be rich, to be wealthy. And that is why he has gone there to stand. That if you want wealth then you must compromise. If you want wealth then you must come join us in our way.

And God is calling on you and I to say: "I will prosper and I won't join you."

Can you say Amen to that - Amen!!!

45

"I will succeed and I won't join you". If your way is the only way to prosperity and success then, I will have none of it. I will rather remain poor.

God is calling you and I To dare; To dare the prince of this world, so that the Glory can come down.

And so, I want you to join me. Because of our time, I want you to join me in this Prayer. Wherever you are, you can stand with me. Please stand with me because I want us to pray.

We have to be in agreement; I have to believe that we are in agreement. So I want you to join me in this Prayer because this is a Prophetic Word to Nigeria. We are saying to Nigerians: Tomorrow will be Alright!

And now, we have to pray and this is a prayer I will encourage you to take away. So that when you get home you declare: Yes! Tomorrow will be Alright; because I am praying; I am confident that: Tomorrow will be Alright because I am Praying.

I want you to say with me: Oh Lord our God, we come to you through the Blood of Jesus to ask that the Glory of your Presence, given to us by our Lord Jesus Christ may envelope us now.

Standing in that Glory and on the death and resurrection of Jesus Christ, we take captive and we dislodge every principalities, every powers, every ruler of the darkness of this world, every spiritual hosts of wickedness in heavenly places standing over our nation, Nigeria.

Lord, we come against the prince of this world and all his strategies over our nation, Nigeria.

We bind and dislodge them in the Name of Jesus. We dislodge them in the same way that Michael dislodge the prince of Persia and having dislodge them now; Lord, let all the Angelic messengers to superintend over the birth of a new Nigeria. Let them come forth now in the Name of Jesus.

And Lord we declare, that the kingdom of Nigeria; because of the Glory that is coming down: the kingdom of Nigeria has become the Kingdom of the Almighty God. In Jesus Name.

And the people say: Amen!!!

... I have two more prayers and then am done.

Let us pray for Aso Rock, the seat of power.

Say with me:

Oh Lord our God, Aso Rock is our seat of power in Nigeria, we therefore take captive every principalities, every powers, every ruler of the darkness of this world, every spiritual hosts of wickedness in heavenly places.

Lord, we bind and dislodge the prince of this world and all these devils sitting and blocking the heavenly messengers from bringing down a Genuine Revolution in righteousness in our nation, Nigeria. We dislodge them now in the Name of Jesus - Amen!!!

In the same way that Michael dislodge the Prince of Persia, Lord let the messengers from Heaven come through now to bring your Glory and let your Glory cover Aso Rock - our Seat of Power; to bring about righteousness, peace and joy in the Holy Ghost. So that the kingdom of Nigeria will become the kingdom of our God in Jesus Name we pray - Amen!!!

### PRAYER FOR THE CHURCH:

Oh Lord our God, we ask that your Church in Nigeria be transformed to become your battle axe for a revolution in righteousness in Nigeria.

Therefore, Lord we dislodge every principalities, every powers, every ruler of the darkness of this world, every spiritual hosts of wickedness in heavenly places.

Lord, we dislodge the prince of this world that uses Mormon to guide your Church, we dislodge them all over the Church of God in our Nation, Nigeria in the Mighty Name of Jesus.

Just the same way that Michael dislodge the prince of Persia, Lord let the Helpers from Heaven and the help they are bringing, let them come through now to your Church in the precious Name of Jesus we pray.

... Finally, I like us to pray for each and every one. Pray for your life.

So come with me as we pray: Oh Lord my God, I declare from my heart that from this day forward I am determined that my life must Glorify you on this earth every day.

Therefore, every principalities, every powers, every ruler of the darkness of this world, every spiritual hosts of wickedness in heavenly places, I dislodge you now over my life, over my life spiritually, physically, materially.

Lord, I particularly dislodge the prince of this world over my business ventures so that your true riches will come through to me to the Glory of your Name in Jesus Name I pray - Amen!!!

Take a moment now and take all that in. Take a moment, just a moment, take a moment and say Lord answer me speedily. Answer us speedily and let your Glory come down and guarantee our tomorrow. Thank you oh Lord.

Finally, join me to declare: Lord, we declare as a result of this prayers and because of your Holy Spirit that the Kingdom of Nigeria has become the kingdom of our God in Jesus mighty Name we pray - Amen!!!

### CLOSING PRAYER:

Father, breathe on all your children here present, let your Hand rest upon us that we may go out and guarantee in prayer and dedication and supplications, Guarantee tomorrow for our nation. That the Church will become again the beacon of light and become the battle axe for revolution in righteousness.

We worship your majesty. We give you all the Praises and Honour and Glory for in Jesus Name we pray - Amen!

MEDIA CREW

And all God's people say - Amen!!!

### COMPILATIONS BY

MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND BANJO ADESOLA

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DAY 2 - SPECIAL TALK AND PRAYERS: ALL POWERS BELONG TO JESUS - PASTOR J.T KALEJAIYE

# (SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO GENERAL OVERSEER, RCCG (SATGO) ON EVANGELISM.)

### DATE: 4TH DECEMBER, 2018

Glory be to God Almighty!

By the Grace of God, I gave you all seven (7) Christmas Gifts last Sunday (During the December Thanksgiving Service from the Throne of Grace National Headquarters, Lagos on the 2nd December, 2018) and I promised to give you the New Year Gifts here during the Holy Ghost Congress 2018.

1. New Year Gift No 1: Every problems that followed you to this Place will receive a Divine Solution tonight in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen!

2. New Year Gift No 2: From this moment onwards, you will receive "Credit Alerts" - Joy Alerts, Breakthrough Alerts, Pleasant Surprises Alerts, Promotion Alerts in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen!

Please, let us start this Session with Prayers of Thanksgiving because Thanksgiving qualifies you for the Next Level.

Please wherever you are (or reading this from now); join me to appreciate the Almighty God. Give Him Thanks for what He has done since we started this Congress. Appreciate Him, Bless His Holy Name, Thank Him.

... Father, we thank you Sir: we are grateful, we are thankful

In Jesus Name we have given thanks - Amen!

OPENING PRAYERS:

Father, we want to say thank you Sir. As we proceed in this Session my Father and my Lord; let your Power come down. In Jesus Name we have prayed - Amen!

I am asked to speak on: "ALL POWERS BELONGS TO JESUS!"

And before we begin to pray; please let us examine the Scriptures.

Tonight, none of your Prayers will go into the Voice Mail in the Name of Jesus - Amen!

Psalms 62:11 says: God hath spoken once; twice have I heard this; that Power belongeth unto God.

Matthew 28:18 says: And Jesus came and spake unto them, saying All Power is given unto me in Heaven and in Earth.

MEDIA

... This is not debatable, this is not disputable.

Since "All Powers" belongs to Jesus; it therefore means that all other grounds are "Sinking Grounds".

You must therefore rejects the devil's offer if you want to go far in life.

Jesus Christ uses His Power to save or to transformed lives. He uses His Power to forgives - Matthew 9:6 says that the Son of man has Power on Earth to forgive sins.

Jesus Christ uses His Power to delivers or to set people free - John 8:36 says that: If the Son therefore shall make you free, ye shall be free indeed.

50

... Tonight, God will set you free in the Name of Jesus - Amen!

Jesus Christ uses His Power to heal the sick, He uses His Power to raise the dead. Jesus Christ has the Ability to cast out demons. He can reverse ugly or unpleasant situations because He has the Power to do so.

He has the Power or Ability to give Rest provided you come to Him - Matthew 11:28 is my witness.

Matthew 11:28 - Come unto me, all ye that labour and are heavy laden and I will give you rest.

Jesus Christ is not stingy or ungenerous with His Power. Luke 10:19 says: Behold, I give unto you Power to tread on serpents and scorpions and over all the Power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you.

Now I discovered that everything about Jesus Christ is Powerful; everything about Jesus Christ is a weapon.

So I am here before we pray to give you five (5) Weapons tonight. And in the Name of Jesus Christ Iyanu (Wonder) will sele (happen).

1. Weapon No 1: His Name.

The Name of Jesus Christ is Above every other names and at the mention of the Name JESUS; every knees must bow. The Bible says of things in Heaven and things on Earth and things underneath the Earth - Philippians 2: 9 and 10 are my witnesses.

In Marks 16: 17 and 18; Jesus Christ said that these signs shall follow them that believes; in my Name shall they cast out devil.

In whose Name please? - JESUS!

They shall speak with New Tongues - that is "Divine Utterances".

They shall take up serpents - that is "Divine Lamination".

And if they drink any deadly thing, it shall not hurt them - that is "Divine Immunity".

They shall lay hands on the sick and they shall recover.

John 14:13 says: And whatsoever ye shall ask in my Name, that will I do that the Father may be Glorified in the Son.

Peter used the Name in Acts 3; he told that man: Silver and Gold I don't have but I have something that Silver and Gold cannot buy - in the Name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth; rise up and walk. He lifted up the man and for the first time in over forty (40) years; the man changed position.

... Tonight, you too will change position in the Name of Jesus!

So wherever you are this moment (or reading from); help me shout the Name Jesus - JESUS!

2. Weapon No 2: The Blood of Jesus.

Brethren, there is no medicated soap that can wash away sins. It is only the Blood of Jesus Christ that can do so.

1 John 1:7 says: But if we walk in the light, as He is in the light, we have fellowship one with another and the Blood of Jesus Christ His Son cleanseth us from all sin.

... We will use the Blood as a Weapon tonight.

3. Weapon No 3: His Words.

His Words is very Powerful according to Hebrews 4:12.

Hebrews 4:12 - For the Word of God is quick and powerful and sharper than any two edged sword, piercing even to the dividing asunder of soul and spirit and of the joints and marrow and is a discerner of the thoughts and intents of the heart.

I read John 11: 43-44

53

43. And when he thus had spoken, he cried with a loud voice, Lazarus, come forth.

44. And he that was dead came forth, bound hand and foot with grave clothes: and his face was bound about with a napkin. Jesus saith unto them, loose him, and let him go.

When Jesus Christ got to the tomb of Lazarus, He spoke. The tomb or grave heard His voice and it released Lazarus instantly. This means that the Grave has ears to hear the Words of God.

In Marks 4:39; Jesus Christ spoke, storms heard His Voice and it ceased immediately. This also means that the storms have ears to hear the Voice of the Lord.

... Tonight, Jesus will speak.

A certain Centurion man knew this fact. He said to Jesus am not qualified to have you under my roof. Just speak the Words only and my servant will be healed - Matthew 8:8 is my witness.

Matthew 8:8 - The centurion answered and said, Lord I am not worthy that thou shouldest come under my roof: but speak the Word only, and my servant shall be healed.

In Luke 7: 14-15; Jesus Christ touched a coffin. After, that the content or the dead man arose ... Just a touch!

In Luke 5: 12-13; Jesus Christ touched a leper man. After that, leprosy departed from him instantly

In Matthew 8: 14-15; Jesus Christ touched a woman who has fever. After that, fever departed from her.

Tonight, Jesus Christ will touch you: Jesus will touch your finances, Jesus will touch your Ministries, Jesus will touch your Businesses, Jesus will touch your children ... in the Name of Jesus - Amen!

5. Weapon No 5: His Presence provokes the Miraculous.

Wherever Jesus is, Miracle happens. He was present at a Marriage in Cana of Galilee. His Presence and Intervention provokes the Miraculous - John 2 tells me so.

Tonight, Jesus is here in this Glorious Meeting. Therefore, there will be a Divine Intervention as usual.

Who is going to be the first beneficiary of the Miraculous tonight? - Moses/Titilayomi!

So we are now going to pray. It is time to use the five (5) Weapons. In the Name of Jesus Christ; results will follow - not after this Congress but during this Congress.

So get ready for those Alerts. They are going to begin to manifest now while you are still here in the Camp Ground in the Name of Jesus - Amen!

Shall we rise!

1. Weapon No 1; The Name of Jesus.

I want you to say Father: I have come to you tonight, please let your Glory manifest in my life. Let my life reveal your Glory. Let people see your Glory in every department of my life in the Name of Jesus.

Use that Weapon - The Name of Jesus.

Let people see your handwriting in my life in the Name of Jesus.

Please use that Name as you are not paying for it. It is that Name that provokes the Miraculous.

... In Jesus Name we have prayed - Amen!

2. We are still going to use that Weapon (Name of Jesus). You are going to say that: I Prophesy in the Name of Jesus; it shall be well with me. I will finish strong, make it, do exploits, reach my goals ... in the Name of Jesus.

Use that Name to Prophesy to yourself. In the Name of Jesus, my tomorrow will be better and not bitter: I will not be hungry in the Kitchen, I will not have a better yesterday, I will flourish.

... So shall it be. In Jesus Name we have prayed - Amen!

I want to say congratulations to you all because Testimonies will come from that.

3. Weapon No 2: The Blood of Jesus.

55

You are going to say Father, please wash me and laminate me with the Blood of Jesus. Laminate every members of my family with the Blood of Jesus. No evil hands will touch me. With the Blood of Jesus, no evil eyes will see me.

... Yes Lord, in Jesus Name we have prayed - Amen!

4. Weapon No 3: The Words of Jesus.

Excuse me, one day Jesus Christ called Peter and He said: Simon, Simon; the devil desires to have you but I have prayed for you. After Jesus Christ prayed for Peter, Satan failed over him.

Today, Jesus will pray for you and ALL our enemies will fail over us in the Name of Jesus.

You are going to say Father, please let everything holding me down here, let your Words release me fast in the Name of Jesus Christ.

When He spoke, the grave releases Lazarus. When He spoke, the storms ceased. So whatsoever is still holding us down till this night, Lord speaks. Let them hear your Voice and release me in the Name of Jesus - Poverty, Failure, Sickness, Cancer; I command you release your captives.

... In Jesus Name we have prayed - Amen!

5. Weapon No 4: His Hands.

You are going to say Father, I need a Divine Touch - which Year, Month, Week, Day, Hour? - Now!

Say Father, touch me tonight. Touch my finances, businesses, Ministry, children and spouse tonight.

Go ahead use the weapon: Lord touch me tonight in every department of my life. Touch me Lord.

... In Jesus Name we have prayed - Amen!

6. Brethren, no empty sac can stand upright. It is when you are loaded that you are needed.

You are going to pray; Father, please empower me and let me shine for you and do exploits for you.

All Power belongs to Jesus and He is not stingy or ungenerous with it. He is willing to give so ask Him for Power. He is ready to empower you and make you untouchable.

In Jesus Name we have prayed - Amen!

Can someone please shout Jesus - JESUS!

Let God hear your voice, shout Jesus - JESUS!

CLOSING PRAYERS

Father Almighty we want to say thank you Sir. Thank you for answered Prayers. We are grateful for tonight because we know that the best is yet to come.

My Lord, am saying Happy New Year to all these your children. As they will cross over to Year 2019, I pray that they will never have any carry over in the Name of Jesus Christ.

Every Plans of the devil against them, the Almighty God will cancel them in the Name of Jesus.

Very soon, people will begin to congratulate you. Throughout this Year, nobody will pay you any condolence visit.

Any arrow shut at you will go back to the sender in the Name of Jesus Christ.

I cover all of you with the Blood of Jesus Christ and decree that no evil hands will touch you and no evil eyes will see you in the Name of Jesus Christ.

Thank you Father Lord. In Jesus Name we have prayed - Amen!

God Bless you in Jesus Name - Amen!!!

COMPILATIONS BY

## MOSES DURODOLA AND TITILAYOMI AJAYI

# DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW

# DAY 2 - TALK 2 - TOPIC: A BRANCH OF THE LIFE -PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE

### DATE: 4TH DECEMBER, 2018

Thank you Father!

1. Now let's lift up our hands to the Almighty God and begin to bless His Holy Name. All Power belong to Him. And there is nothing too hard for Him. Give Him all Glory. Give all the Honour. He is worthy to be praised. Magnify His Holy Name.

Thank you Father, n Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

2. Let's lift up our voices to Him and say Father; please heal everyone this very moment Lord.

Thank you Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

SONG:

We give you all the Glory, we give you Honour; We give you all the Glory, we give you Honour.

OPENING PRAYER: Almighty God we give you all the Glory. Ancient of Days we give you all the Honour. The I AM THAT I AM, the Unchangeable Lord, we bow before you our Maker, our Saviour, our Healer, our Provider, our All in All. Glory be to your Holy Name.

Thank you for what you did yesterday. Thank you for what you are going to do tonight. Thank you in advanced for what you will do tomorrow. Please accept our worship in Jesus Name.

Father, we are praying that tonight your Healing Virtues will flow like a Mighty River and it will bring Healing to everyone listening to us (or reading) right now In Jesus Name.

You have done it before, please do it again Lord. So that at the end of tonight, we will all go home singing a New Song.

Thank you Almighty God. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Let somebody shout hallelujah. Now shake hands with two (2) or there (3) people and say; Good evening, God bless you mightily. And then you may please be seated.

BIRTH REPORT: As of 6pm this evening, the numbers of babies born during this Congress stands at Several (7); Three (3) Boys and four (4) Girls. Including a set of twins.

So let the girls shout Praised the Lord. And let the boys shout Hallelujah.

I will want you to inform your friends, relatives, co-workers, particularly your enemies that they should not miss tomorrow. Because tomorrow is "DELIVERANCE NIGHT".

That is why I want you to bring them along. By the time we finish tomorrow, your enemies will become your friends.

And if they miss tomorrow; anyone who mises tomorrow; you have missed half of the Congress.Tell them they should come tomorrow. Like I told you yesterday, the traffic will get better by the day. And tomorrow will be a Glorious day.

If I were to ask those of you who came yesterday to introduce themselves to those who are not here; you will hear some interesting introduction. You will hear somebody saying: I am the Light of the world; I am the Salt of the earth; I am a Christian; I am a child of God.

... Tonight, you are going to add another name to your list of names, and that is: "I am a BRANCH OF THE VINE".

BIBLE TEXT: JOHN 15:1-5

1. I am the true vine, and my Father is the husbandman.

2. Every branch in me that beareth not fruit He taketh away: and every branch that beareth fruit, He purgeth it, that it may bring forth more fruit.

3. Now ye are clean through the Word which I have spoken unto you.

4. Abide in me, and I in you. As the branch cannot bear fruit of itself, except it abide in the vine; no more can ye, except ye abide in me.

5 I am the vine, ye are the branches: He that abideth in me, and I in him, the same bringeth forth much fruit: for without me ye can do nothing.

So, Adeboye (Moses/Titilayomi/Adebanjo) is a branch of Jesus Christ.

What about you?

... I am Branch of the

vine.

And because you are here tonight, you will be completely whole in Jesus Name - Amen!

But much more than that; beginning from tonight, God will begin to use you to heal the sick - Amen.

Jesus said: I am the Vine.

Who is the Vine?

Basically, the Vine (that is Jesus Christ) is a combination of Divinity and Humanity. Jesus Christ is a combination of God and Man.

John 1: verses 1 and 14 says thus:

1. In the beginning was the Word, and the Word was with God, and the Word was God.

14. And the Word was made flesh, and dwelt among us, (and we beheld His Glory, the Glory as of the only begotten of the Father) full of Grace and Truth.

Jesus Christ is God and at the same time, when He was here on earth 100% Man. Matthew 3:16-17

16. And Jesus, when He was baptized, went up straightway out of the water: and, lo, the Heavens were opened unto him, and He saw the Spirit of God descending like a dove, and lighting upon Him:

17. And lo a voice from Heaven, saying, This is my beloved Son, in whom I am well pleased.

And in Mark 4:35-41; the Bible says when Jesus and His disciples were in a boat, the Humanity slept. But once they woke Him up, the Divinity spoke. And as we all know that Divinity never sleeps. He that keepeth Israel neither slumber nor sleep.

But because Divinity was wearing humanity, He slept. And now, as the Vine is, so are the Branches. In 1 John 4:17; the Bible says - Herein is our love made perfect, that we may have boldness in the day of judgment: because as He is, so are we in this world.

So we are also a combination of Divinity and Humanity.

In Mark 6:30-32; Jesus said to His Disciples: Your humanity needs help.

... You need sleep, you need help.

So, no matter how Anointed you are; You need rest. I know some of you don't believe Pastors need rest. Even the General Overseer is human; he needs rest.

But if you are a "True Christian", according to 2 Peter 1: 2-4; you are human. And Humanity can do nothing without Divinity.

That is what He says in John 15:5 - For without me, ye can do nothing.

Even the Vine when He was on earth said so in John 14:10 - Believest thou not that I am in the Father, and the Father in me? The Words that I speak unto you I speak not of myself: but the Father that dwelleth in me, He doeth the works.

Meaning what? You see me healing the sick; that is Jesus saying: you too shall perform miracles. Why? Because He will supply the Power, Strength and Ability from within.

Philippians 4:13 says - I can do all things through Christ who strengthens me.

How many things? All things through Christ.

You can do everything that He did. And so, the Branch is far, far more Powerful inside than it may look outside.

1 John 4:4 says - Ye are of God, little children, and have overcome them: because greater is He that is in you, than he that is in the world.

The One who is in the Vine is also the One in the Branches. In Mark 4:35-44; the storm was raging, they woke Jesus up, and He rebuked the wind. He turned around and rebuked the Disciples. Why?Jesus expected His disciples to still the storm.

If only you will cooperate with the Divinity tonight; beginning from tonight, you will be Healing the sick - Amen.

... I wasn't even expecting you to say Amen to that.

You are not the one who will do the Miracle - it is the One in you. Greater is He that is you than he that is in the world.

And What are the things that are in the world? - Sickness, diseases.

If you are a Christian, the One that is inside of you is Greater.

1. So one of the reasons why He says Glory Ahead is that; beginning from tonight, you too will be Healing the sick.

2. Secondly, the Vine is the Life. John 14:6 says - I am the Way, the Truth and the Life.

That is the One that is living in the Branch.

Galatians 2:20 says - I am crucified with Christ: nevertheless I live; yet not I, but Christ liveth in me: and the life which I now live in the flesh I live by the Faith of the Son of God, who loved me, and gave Himself for me.

I told my children in the month of October 2018 - I said; nobody can kill me. They looked at me surprised and they said why? Because I am already dead. You can't kill a dead man.

Who is living in you? Jesus Christ!

I am very slow tonight, because it is very important. You are going to leave this Congress completely CHANGED - As Light is used to shine in the World; as Salt is used to preserve the earth and as a Branch is used to Impart your Generation.

3. Because Jesus is living in you, His blood is what is flowing in you. On the outside it may not appear so. But in the actual fact, the Blood of Jesus flows in you. And according to Revelation 12: 10-11; that Blood has the Power to overcome the devil.

The implication of this is that if you can believe; the Blood of the Vine flowing in you can overcome any germ, virus, etc.

Because Jesus said in John 10:10 - The thief cometh not, but for to steal, and to kill, and to destroy: I am come that they might have life, and that they might have it more abundantly.

It is written, the Just shall live by his Faith.

65

There are several things happening in life today that someone cannot explain; because it is not by Humanity, but Divinity.

Some of you here remember the story of one of our sisters whose husband was a Doctor. The husband had Ebola. And there was Holy Communion. She took a little bit of the Holy Communion, ran back to her husband. And he was healed instantly.

May I decree to your life today, that whatsoever is called sickness in your life is consumed now. His Blood is flowing in your veins and it will make you whole.

Roman 8: 11; if the spirit that quickens... To quicken means to make alive. To be restored.

ISCOVERY MEDIA CR

For example in Matthew 8:1-3, a leper came to Jesus. A leper is a walking corpse, calling death inside and parts of the body gone. Jesus gave him just a touch, and instantly he was Healed.

In Acts 3: 1-8; Peter said to the lamb man at the Beautiful Gate: Silver and Gold, we have none. And he touched the man. He held him by the hand the man who was lame stood and began to leap and praise God.

I have told you the story before about and elder Chief that was paralysed. He was rich and so taken to London for treatment. The Doctors said they could not help him. And he was brought back home. And one little girl from RCCG told him; I know where you can be Healed. He was brought here. And I showed him this Passage of Scriptures. Preached to him, and he gave his life to Jesus Christ.

... They carried him in, but he WALKED back to his car!

There is a Spirit within you that will begin to Heal you now. If you believe it can I hear your Amen - Amen.

If Christ is in you, this follows that His power and His Virtues will flow through you.

Ephesians 3:20 - Now unto Him that is able to do exceeding abundantly above all that we ask or think, according to the Power that worketh in us,

It is beyond human imagination what God can do for you. Because there is a Power working in you. The minute you give your life to Jesus, God can can do all things, according to His Power.

Mark 5: 25-34 tells us the story of the woman with the issue of blood who said if I can just touch. That alone is enough Power at work. The woman came to touch and was Healed.

In Acts 19: 11-12; the bible says that from the body of a Branch, Paul Apostle; Aprons were taken to the sick and as they touch their bodies they were Healed.

How many Testimonies have you heard; dead

Raised, healing. Go ahead and give the Lord a Big hand of applause. Some of the Testimonies are so big that we are afraid to share them.

I heard a Testimony last month. I was preaching somewhere. There was a man there who said: "If I had known I would have brought my sick person to this Program". But suddenly he remembered he was at the Program. And can pray for the sick. He prayed and the fellow got Healed.

You are here tonight (or reading), in the Name that is above every other names; from this moment onward, when you lay hands on the sick, they shall recover - Amen.

Whatever is in Him is in you. And because it is in you, you can use it and it will perform Miracles.

I can go and on. I can talk about His Words. I can talk about His Name.

Every Branch of the Vine can do what the Vine can do. You can then imagine what happens when you bring two (2) Branches together. What happens if two (2)of us agree as touching anything.

Matthew 18:19 says: Again I say unto you, That if two of you shall agree on earth as touching any thing that they shall ask, it shall be done for them by my Father which is in Heaven.

Is there anyone here tonight who will agree with me that every sick person will be healed? Is there anybody like that?

You may say, we have seen and heard; well you are the General Overseer. But He didn't say, these signs shall follow the General Oversee. He said these signs shall for THOSE THAT BELIEVE.

MEDIA CREW

How many Believers are here tonight?

ERY

() V

You say, but my faith is small. I have Good News for you, I had that problem too before. I believed that everything in the Bible is true. I said Lord I can do it if only my Faith is big enough. And I fasted - real fasting, not Daniel fasting, the real one. And I asked God for just one thing "Lord, let my Faith be big enough so I can perform Miracle.

God sat me down and asked me some questions. I am going to ask you the same question as His Son.

Do you believe there is God? Yes! Have you seen Him before? No! How do you know? Do you believe that He died and rose again? Do you believe He is coming back again? Answer me!

And then why are you saying your Faith is small. You have strong Faith. It takes strong Faith to believe all these.

You may not believe it before now. It takes strong Faith to perform Miracles.

I know you will ask me " what if I pray and nothing happens? "

.. What if you pray something happened?

Why look at the negative side? He said you shall lay hands on the sick and they shall recover. Is God a liar? - NO!

I know the next question will be daddy even with your Faith; why is it that you pray and nothing happens? I was troubled too until God told me "Death is final Healing". Am not talking about Divine Health or having to postponed the day of death.

How many of you wants to live in Divine Health? Let me hear your Amen - Amen!

It will begin from now onward in Jesus Name.

When a child is learning how to walk, he takes the first step and falls. Have you seen a child while trying to walk and cry? No the child laughs.

Beginning from this moment, in the Name that is above other names, you will be Healing the sick. Unless you are not a Branch of the of the Vine. Unless you have disconnected yourself from Vine.

He said; am the Vine, ye are the branches: He that abideth in me, and I in him, the same bringeth forth much fruit: for without me ye can do nothing.

Those of us here who are committed to abiding in Him, no matter what. There are some of us here, no matter what, can't leave Jesus or cease to follow Him. If you are one of us let me hear you shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

As long as you remain connected, the Power is in Him.

-

R

Several years ago He saved my life. So from this moment on, remain connected to the Vine.

It is time to pray. But before I prayer, if you are here and you are not attached to the Vine and you want to be attached to the Vine. I will count from one (1) to ten (10). Before I say Ten (10) come to Jesus, He will save your soul and you will become one of the Branches of the Vine who is also the Life.

So come and surrender your life to Him as I pray for you to become a Branch of Jesus Christ.

I am counting....

69

Thank you Jesus. Those of you on the way keep coming. Those who are already here; talk to Him. Cry to Him to save your soul. And make you a Branch of the Vine.

Y MEDIA

And those of us that are saved, let us stretch forth our hands towards these people and intercede for them. Let us pray that the One who saved our souls will save their own souls too. And make them a Branch of His Vine.

Counsellors begin to move closer. And if anyone wants to still come, Come! As I begin to pray for your Salvation.

Thank you Father. Glory be to your Holy Name. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

GO PRAYS: Saviour, I want to thank you for your Words. I thank you for these your children who have come out. Please remember your Promise that whosoever that come to you; you will no wise cast out. Please receive them, forgive them, save their souls, let your Blood wash away their sins. Attached them to yourself, write their names in the Book of Life.

Now those of you in front congratulations! I will need your names, addresses and Prayer requests. I promise to be praying for you.

The rest of us, if you believe, you will agree with me, now stand on your feet.

PRAYERS:

1. The first prayer is for yourself: Father, everything that is my my System that is not of God; Let your Blood Consume them right now.

2. Now we are going to hold our hands: Father, let your Spirit quickens the body of my neighbour right now.

3. With your hands still joined to your neighbour: Father, we are in one accord in your Church. Let there be no more Cancer

4. Now I want you to lift your hands to God and take this prayer seriously: Father, from now on, when I lay these hands on the sick, let them Recover.

5. For your Final prayer, let me just explain something to you: Some years ago I went on a Missionary Journey on a Country in Africa. The food was something else. So I kept going to the toilet. I think I went to the toilet twenty three (23) times. Suddenly I remembered His Words that says and ye shall lay hands on the sick and they shall recover; even if I am the sick.

Then I laid by two hands on my head and commanded Healing on my body.

So lay your two (2) hands on your head and command Healing into your Body right Now.

Thank you Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

CLOSING PRAYER:

With those hands still on your head: I want to pray for you:

My Father and my God, I want to thank you for your Words. I want to thank you that you are the Vine and we are the Branches. I want to thank you that the works that you did, we shall do also. Please accept our thanks in Jesus Name.

Daddy in Agreement with all these your children and I say right now, right now, right now! Let your Healing Power begin to flow through all of them. I command your Healing into everyone of them right now, in Jesus Name.

And I hereby decree, everyone of them, from this moment onward, when they lay their hands on the sick, let the sick recover in Jesus Name.

And even before tomorrow morning, let the Testimonies be many. Thank you Almighty God. In Jesus Mighty Name.

Put those hands together for the Almighty God and shout a big Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

EDITORIAL NOTE: That was another awesome moments in the Presence of God. And for your information, a third of this Year's Holy Ghost Congress gone already.

God has really manifested Himself in our midst tonight and our Healings are Permanent in Jesus Name.

Day 3 is the Deliverance Day. So ensure like daddy said bring all your associates including your enemies for Deliverance.

The Glory of God surely awaits you in Jesus Mighty Name - AMEN!!!

COMPILATIONS BY

MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND ADEBANJO ADESOLA

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018


## DAY 3 - MORNING - SPECIAL TALK: AS HE IS, SO ARE WE IN THIS PRESENT WORLD: PASTOR STEPHEN RATHOD

### (SENIOR PASTOR, COVENANT BIBLE CHURCH, OKLAHOMA, USA)

#### DATE: 5TH DECEMBER, 2018

#### **TEXT: 1 JOHN 4:17**

Let me greet you in the Name of the Most High God: the Merciful God, the Gracious God, the Loving God, the Forgiving God, the Kind God and the God of our Saviour. The Lord Jesus Christ. I greet you in the Name of Jesus.

So, my Subject this morning is: AS HE IS, SO ARE WE IN THIS PRESENT WORLD.

You can find that Scripture in 1 John 4:17;

"Herein is our love made perfect, that we may have boldness in the Day of Judgment: because as he is, so are we in this world."

Let me ask you a question, who are we talking about, when we say: As He is?

What is His Name?

Jesus! Shout it out: JESUS!

... So, as JESUS is, so am I in this Present world.

So, am going to take four (4) different approaches to this text:

#### 1. How He was

2. How He is now

3. What is He telling me to do?

4. How to do it.

Soviet that I can be like He is; in this Present world.

1. How was He?

John 1:29, 36:

29. The next day John seeth Jesus coming unto him, and saith, Behold the Lamb of God, which taketh away the sin of the world.

36. And looking upon Jesus as he walked, he saith, Behold the Lamb of God!

Jesus came here as a Lamb of God. That's how He was.

Matthew 11:28-29; Jesus said: I am gentle, I am meek.

So when He was here on the Earth, He was a Lamb of God, He was a Man. Like Daddy GO said last night; God Man. He was gentle, He was meek.

Another thing Bible says is in Hebrew 4:15. The Bible says that when Jesus was here on earth, He was tempted in all our ways.

Next one; and this is where my Main Point will be.

2. As He is:

74

So when He was here, John 16:33 says: "I will overcome the world".

Jesus was an Overcomer.

Say it: JESUS was an Overcomer. Say it again - Jesus was an Overcomer.

What did He overcome? We have three (3) Main Enemies; I know last night we heard in Ephesians 6:12; that we wrestle not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of the darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places.

But let me break it down in this phrase "We have three (3) Enemies" in 1 John 2:15-16; the three (3) Enemies are:

- 1. The Lust of the Flesh;
- 2. The Lust of the Eyes;
- 3. The Pride of Life.

And Temptation that Jesus faced was: lust of the flesh; lust of the eyes; pride of life.

But thank God, when He was here, He was tempted, but He did not sin; He overcame all the temptations.

How was He? Bible says in Acts 10:38: 'How God anointed Jesus of Nazareth with the Holy Ghost and with Power: who went about doing good, and healing all that were oppressed of the devil; for God was with him."

As He was! Let us go back; He was a Lamb of God, He was gentle, He was meek, He was tempted; He overcame lust of the Flesh, lust of the eyes, pride of life.

He was a Healer, He was a Deliverer; but the best thing when He was here: Jesus Overcame the devil and destroyed the devil.

In Colossians 2:14-15; the Bible says: Jesus destroyed the devil when He was here. He destroyed all the works of the devil.

In the Mighty Name of Jesus, I say to you: He was an overcomer when He was here.

Next thing He did when He was here; 1 Corinthian 15:26 - "The last enemy that shall be destroyed is death."

But thank God, when He was here, He destroyed death. Because in Revelation 1:18", the Bible says: I am He that liveth, and was dead; and, behold, I am alive for evermore, Amen; and have the keys of hell and of death."

So Point No.1; As He Was..., but the Bible did not say: As He was, we are in this world. It did not say that. It says: As He is Now! So let us talk;

2. How is He today? In other for you to be like Jesus, you have to look at Jesus; see Him, talk about Him in a different way. He is no more the Lamb of God. He is the RISEN SAVIOUR! He is in control. He is the Almighty, He is in charge! So He is the I AM.

So wherever I go, "I am in control". Say it: I am in control; I am in charge!

How is He today? Matthew 28:20; All power in heaven, on earth, underneath the earth belong to Jesus. So as He is, so I am. So I say gladly "All Power belongs to me". Say it: All Power belongs to me.

Don't pray: Lord, you have all the Power. Don't pray that way. Pray: I have all the Power; because as He is, so am I in this world.

How is He today? Revelation 1:5 says: "And from Jesus Christ, who is the faithful witness, and the first begotten of the dead, and the prince of the kings of the earth. Unto him that loved us, and washed us from our sins in his own blood."

How is Jesus? Revelation 1:11 says: "I am Alpha, I am Omega; I am the First, I am the Last".

How is He? He is no more a Lamb. Listen to this; again, the same same Revelation 1:12-18 Listen to this, How is Jesus? He is the Resurrection, He is Glorious, He is the Almighty. He is sitting at the Right Hand of God the Father.

The Bible describes how He looks in verses 14-16, thus:

14. His head and His hairs were white like wool, as white as snow; and His eyes were as a flame of fire;

15. And His feet like unto fine brass, as if they burned in a furnace; and His voice as the sound of many waters.

16. And He had in His right hand seven stars: and out of His mouth went a sharp two edged sword: and His countenance was as the sun shineth in His strength.

How is Jesus? He is Glorious Jesus. So if He is Glorious, I am Glorious. He is in control; so I am in control. My circumstance does not control me; "I CONTROL my CIRCUMSTANCES!"

Listen to this: How is Jesus? He is The Overcomer! Say: Jesus is The Overcomer - JESUS is The Overcomer!

Revelation 5:5 says: "And one of the elders saith unto me, Weep not: behold, the Lion of the tribe of Judah, the Root of David, hath prevailed to open the book, and to lose the seven seals thereof."

SCOVERY MEDIA CREW

... In Jesus Name. Amen!

77

How is Jesus today? Let me read to you some more; He is my Redeemer!

And let me go back: I believe in 1952, when the Lord spoke to Papa Akindayomi, that one who didn't speak English. He could neither read nor write in English. Yet, the Lord gave him the Name of the Church.

Do you know that name of the Church that God gave Papa Akindayomi? What is the name of the Church? It is: The Redeemed Christian Church of God.

And listen to this; The Lord spoke to him in 1952; when He gave the name of the Church. And the Lord made a Covenant. Did you hear me? I did not say: Papa Akindayomi made a covenant with God. NO! God made a Covenant with Papa Akindayomi.

And the Covenant is: "When i come back: when Jesus returns; The Redeemed Christian Church of God will be alive and well; Will be alive and well, on the face of the Earth!

How is Jesus: as He was; As He is? And Point No. 3.

3. AS HE IS, SO ARE WE

As He is, so are we! The Lord, by the Special Grace of God, gives Special Anthem Song of our Congress Theme to Daddy GO every year. So this year, the Lord gave a Song.

Am just going to read something to you "AS HE IS, SO ARE WE in this Present World"

THEME SONG FOR HOLY GHOST CONGRESS 2018

TUNE: WE ARE ABLE TO GO UP AND TAKE THE COUNTRY

1. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION

IN ALL SITUATIONS THAT MAY COME MY WAY I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

CHORUS: SINGING HALLELUYAH SINGING HALLELUYAH SHOUTING HALLELUYAH TO GOD

(HALLELUYAH WE ARE)

SINGING HALLELUYAH SINGING HALLELUYAH SHOUTING HALLELUYAH TO GOD

2. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION OVER PAINS, OVER SICKNESS AND DISEASES I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

3. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION OVER SIN, OVER BONDAGE AND DEMONS I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

4. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION
OVER LOSS, OVER FAILURE AND DEFEAT
I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY
FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

5. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION OVER DEATH, OVER SORROW AND DESPAIR I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

79

6. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINIONOVER BARRENNESS, AND ALL FRUITLESS EFFORTSI AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY

FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

7. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINIONOVER HELL, BACKSLIDING APOSTACYI AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORYFAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES.

8. I AM CERTAIN I HAVE FULL DOMINION MY MOCKERS ARE NOW SILENCED FOREVER I AM SEATED WITH JESUS IN ALL HIS GLORY FAR ABOVE POWERS, PRINCIPALITIES. (ETC).

Now, we come here, we sing this Song everyday. But, my question is: You are singing: "I have Dominion over Sin. Then, why are you sinning? You have Dominion over sickness. Then why are you sick? You have Dominion over Bondage. Then why do we have "Deliverance Is Services every time we get to gather?

What I want to talk to you about today is: As He is, so are we! Now, you have to understand the reality of Scriptures. It says; "POSSESSIONAL" in Jesus, in Him: I am seated in heavenly places.

But Bible does not say: As He is, we are in HEAVENLY PLACES. It say: As He is, we are in this PRESENT WORLD.

So I have a question for us: Does your POSSESSION and your PRACTICAL LIFE line up? Is your Possession in Heavenly Places in Jesus Christ. Is it the same on the earth?

... IT IS NOT!

Am going to teach you how your Possession and your Practical Life can be the same, in Jesus' Name. Your Possession and your Practical Life will soon Line up!

Now, let me talk to you; I don't know. I know it rains here in Nigeria, but it does not rain like it rains in India. In India, we have four (4) months on Non Stop Season of Rain.

Now watch it; everybody is walking with either an Umbrella, a rain coat, a rain hat or rain boats. But some people use their umbrella as a "Walking Stick". Now, when it rains, even if they have umbrella; they still get wet. Why? Because what they have "Possessionally", they DO NOT USE!

What they have "Possessionally"; you ask him: Whose Umbrella is this? Mine! Whose hat, Rain coat, Boats are these? Mine! Why are you wet? Because I am NOT USING what is mine.

As He is, so are we in this Present world! Let me see what I have. I have Salvation "Possessionally"; I have to use my Salvation. "Possessionally" i am healed. I have to use my healing. "Possessionally" I am delivered; I have to use my Deliverance. "Possessionally" I am More Than a Conqueror...

So let us talk now; As He was: He was a Conqueror. As He is now: He is MORE THAN a Conqueror. And now everything Jesus accomplished; listen to me, "POSSESSIONALLY" is Mine. But how are you in your Practical Life?

"Possessionally" Bible says: Whomsoever the Son sets free is Free indeed!

Let me ask you a question: "Possessionally" you are Free. Practically; are you Free? If not, today is your day. This morning is your morning. This morning, we are going to bring everything that we possess, we are going to bring them down from Heaven to Earth.

As He is, so I am in this Present world.

81

Ok! Let us talk some more. This morning, I want you to Study (on your own) the Book of Revelation chapters 2 and 3.

For the next few minutes, am going to talk to you about the people in the Church; who were Born Again. They were in the Church, and yet; "Possessionally" they were. But in

real life they are not. So let me point out Seven (7) areas that we are going to pray about this morning:

Oh! By the way, before I say this, let me make a statement. There are Seven (7) Statements that Jesus made to the Church. If we are already Overcomers, why did the Resurrected Christ; the Powerful God, the Almighty, All Sufficient, the Head of the Church. Why did He say in Revelation chapters 2 and 3 (7 times); "He who Overcomes to give I will give...?"

So this might shock you. This might surprise you: "Everyone in the Church; everyone who sings, who jumps, who shouts: is not the Overcomer".

By the Special Grace of God, we have almost ten (10) million people here (in Camp).

Jesus Christ would have said to the Church of Ephesus, the Church in Smyrna, the Church in Pergamos, the Church Thyatira, the Church in Sardis, the Church in Philadelphia and the Church of Laodicean. Jesus did not say: Hallelujah! Come right in; hallelujah! I have paid the Price, you are all ok. He did not say that! So don't let anyone deceive you.

Yes, you are in the Church; But are you an Overcomer in the Church?

If you are not an Overcomer, then you are just a Church Member.

So let me talk to you on the areas you need to work on. So get connected as I teach you: HOW YOU CAN OVERCOME?

1. How is your LOVE for JESUS?

How is your love for Jesus? The Lord spoke to the Church in Ephesus, and He said: You left your first love. "I used to be No.1". You used to say: Seek ye first Kingdom of God and His Righteousness. But now, you are seeking self. It is all about you.

You are not the Overcomer if you have lost your first love. Now let me correct it. He did not say: you have LOST your first love. He said, you have LEFT your first love. You are a Prodigal son, who knows the father but he left the father's house to do what he wanted to do. He was a son, but he left the first love.

... You are not an Overcomer if you have left your first love.

2. You are Complaining about the suffering that you go through.

Now let me talk to you; between us and Heaven, there will be trouble, there will be problem. But Jesus said: I have overcome the world. But you just keep complaining and complaining. Complainers are not Overcomers!

... Those who left their first love are not Overcomers. Those who complain in the Church are not Overcomers.

3. The one who will Compromise the Word of God; you are not an Overcomer.

You left your first love, and now you have found another lover which is called The World! Jesus said: You are not my friend if you are a friend of the world.

Let me ask you one question: Are you an Overcomer? How is your love? How do you handle pressure? How do you handle suffering? Do you compromise sin?

4. The Church in Thyatira; it is called the Adulterous Church - "The Adulterous Church!"

Meaning that they have lost their standards.

And again, I am so glad I have the Book - the Vision/Mission Statement of the Redeemed Christian Church of God:

1. To make Heaven.

83

2. To take as many people as possible with us. etc

... HOLINESS will be our Lifestyle.

If you are in the Church, even in the Redeemed Christian Church of God, and you are not living Holy; you are not an Overcomer - You have LOWERED your Standard.

5. The Church in Sardis: on the outside they look good; they looked very good on the outside. They have as it were "Glass Windows": they have a Mass Choir, hundreds of Musicians, they are jumping, they are shouting. The Church has a thousand members. And if you ask somebody, they will tell you: that Church is alive!

But that is what men say. What did Jesus say? You are DEAD! And you don't even know you are dead. Be sober, Be vigilant. Stay ALERT!

6. Thank God for the Church of Philadelphia - Obedient Church, Faithful Church.

7. And the last, the Church of Laodicean. You know, last night Daddy GO was talking that he was in some African Country and he ate something. And he got sick, by what he put in his mouth.

And Jesus is talking to the Church at Laodicean and He said, you know what? You all make me SICK! You are not HOT, you are not COLD. You are just lukewarm.

If you are a Lukewarm Christian, you are not a Conqueror.

... As He is, so are we in this Present World!

And the Lord said, Listen! People don't want to hear it. But the Head of the Church says: "Am going to SPIT you out" Why? Because of your lifestyle.

How do you live on this earth? As He is, so are we in this Present World!

So my last Point; all these might sound negative, sound challenging. But when Daddy GO mentioned a Scripture last night. So let me say it again; everything am saying today, Daddy has talked about them last night. So I am coming from a different angle; talking the same thing.

So do me a favour: look at your brother or sister who is sitting next to you and ask them a question; Are You an Overcomer? Ask them loudly; Are you an Overcomer? Ask the other fellow: Are you an Overcomer?

And if the answer is "NO, I am lukewarm, I have left my first love, I look like am alive but inside I am dead, I compromise, I love the world more than I love Jesus".

Am going to give you the FORMULA: How you can Overcome. I am not talking about: Seated in Heavenly Places", I am not talking about Possession in Heaven. I am talking about Practical Life on Earth!

Am going to teach you three (3) things; never forget these. Every morning you have to do this. Every afternoon you have to do this. Every evening do it, in the night time, think about it.

My last Point; Pastor Stephen How can I be an Overcomer like Jesus is? As He is, so I am!

Let me read a Scripture; I want you to memorize this Scripture. You know, I live in America. I have been living in America for forty five (45) years. I have seen Mega Churches, men of God and they use this Scripture. But they don't use it. Let me say how they use it; and let me ask you how you use it.

They use is like this: Revelation 12:11 - "And they overcame him by the blood of the Lamb, and by the word of their Testimony;"

MEDIA

... and they STOP! You didn't hear me. I don't know how you use this Scripture. But there is a Prime Point which is very important. And it says: "... and they loved not their lives unto the death."

They left the first love; but to be an Overcomer you've got to love God. Even if you die! You will die loving God.

My points: How do you overcome?

1. Through the BLOOD.

The Blood of the Lamb. They redeem me, they cleanse me. They justify me. They sanctify me.

Because of the Blood ... The Blood speaks today. Because of the Blood I have access to Heaven. Because of the Blood I have life.

So in the morning, when you get up, you say: Thank you for the Blood of Jesus. I am an Overcomer because of the Blood of the Lord Jesus Christ.

... They overcame by the Blood and word of their mouth.

2. How do you Talk?

Do you talk as an Overcomer or do you talk as the one who is defeated? You have to say what the Bible says.

So you are an Overcomer by the Blood of the Lord Jesus Christ; by your Confession.

3. By your Commitment unto death.

Daddy GO said this last night. Galatians 2:20 - "I am crucified with Christ: nevertheless I live; yet not I, but Christ liveth in me: and the life which I now live in the flesh I live by the faith of the Son of God, who loved me, and gave himself for me."

MEDIA CREW

I am Committed! Paul said in Philippians 1:21 - "For to me to live is Christ, and to die is gain."

How do I become an Overcomer? By talking about the Blood, by Speaking who I am, by Committing my life unto death. And my last point;

4. Hebrew 12:1-2. As He is, so am in this Present World.

1. Wherefore seeing we also are compassed about with so great a cloud of witnesses, let us lay aside every weight, and the sin which doth so easily beset us, and let us run with patience the race that is set before us,

2. Looking unto Jesus the author and finisher of our faith; who for the joy that was set before Him endured the cross, despising the shame, and is set down at the right hand of the throne of God.

... And this is what I want you to do: Looking unto Jesus the Author!

How did Jesus become a Conqueror? Here is the bottom line of the Message. And the bottom line of my Message is: "The Glory Ahead".

Jesus went through it all; He suffered all for one reason only; Bible says: "... for the JOY that was set before him".

... That JOY is the GLORY AHEAD! Glory is waiting for you!

87

Would you all stand please? Go ahead and stand up please; Stand up please. We are going to PRAY:

1. Say Father; in the Name of Jesus, please forgive me, because I have left You; I have left my first love for you. I want to go back home, I want to live with you. I want you to be No.1 in my life; in the Name of Jesus.

2. Father Lord; forgive me because I am always complaining. I am always complaining. Help me to be Faithful, in the Name of Jesus.

... If you have compromised to get ahead: You have compromised on standard of holiness, you have compromised the Word of God.

3. Say Father; Promotion does not come from the East, West, North or South - Promotion comes from God. Forgive me Oh Lord, I trust in you to promote me in the Name of Jesus. Forgive me for lowering my standard. Forgive me for not been obedient; forgive me for not been alert, for not been vigilant, for not been sober.

4. And the last prayer we are going to pray, If you are lukewarm; am going to pray that the Fire of God will fall upon you today.

May the Fire of God fall upon you; that which was dead, let them come alive. That which is unfaithful, let it become faithful. That which had lowered the standard, let God lift up. God lift up your standard. May God help you to be Totally Obedient.

5. And my last one; May God Set you on Fire!

Say Father; let your Fire burn inside me. Let the Holy Ghost Fire burn inside me.

Let me talk to you. Like in said, I am from India. So what we do; we get some Woods, some chips. We strike the match. And when the Fire starts burning; you know what we do? We fan the flame. We fan the flame.

Let me tell you; God has started the Fire inside you. But it is your job to fan the flame: Live holy, speak the Word, keep the standard, pray in the Holy Ghost.

Because this morning, starting from now, till JESUS comes; As He is, so I am in this Present World!

... Now go ahead and pray; pray your prayer.

88

Let me say one more thing before I go to my seat. Bring that young man (a man who under the Power of the Holy Ghost). Stretch your hand toward this man.

**PRAYER**: My Father and my God, in the Name that is above other names, I pray: Let the Fire of God fall upon you, in the Name of Jesus. May you stay on Fire for God all the

days of your life. May you never be lukewarm. May you always be on Fire, in the Name of Jesus.

... I have 3 more minutes; Man of God come here. Stay here Sir.

In the Name of Jesus let the Fire of God fall on you. My God! In the Name of Jesus.

As He is, As He is; As He is! So am I in this Present World. In Jesus Name - Amen!

... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... Reaching out to the world through the Power of the Gospel!

COMPILATIONS BY ERM EDIA CREW

MOSES DURODOLA AND TITILAYOMI AJAYI

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

## DAY 3 – TALK 1 - TOPIC: ROYAL PRIESTHOOD -REV. FELIX OMOBUDE

# (THE NATIONAL PRESIDENT, PENTECOSTAL FELLOWSHIP OF NIGERIA AND THE GENERAL SUPERINTENDENT, NEW COVENANT GOSPEL CHURCH, BENIN CITY)

#### DATE: 5<sup>TH</sup> DECEMBER, 2018

#### **TEXT: EXODUS 19:4-6**

SC

Everybody Praise the Lord - Hallelujah!!!

At the wave of hands, Praise the Lord - Hallelujah!!!

VERY

I greet everyone of you in the Name that is above every names - even in the Name of our Lord and Saviour, Jesus Christ.

MEDIA

On behalf of all the Pentecostals in this country, I bring greetings to our Leader and Father, Pastor Adeboye. We are very grateful to God for your life and leadership you have continued to offer to us.

I thank God for our Mother. Mama. May God continue to strengthen you in Jesus Name. And all the Leadership of this great, great, great Church. I celebrate everyone of you.

Go ahead, give the Lord a Big hand, please!

The subject of our consideration this evening as has been announced is - "THE ROYAL PRIESTHOOD".

May I ask you to open with me to your Bible to EXODUS 19: 4-6;

4. Ye have seen what I did unto the Egyptians, and how I bare you on eagles' wings, and brought you unto myself.

5. Now therefore, if ye will obey my voice indeed, and keep my covenant, then ye shall be a peculiar treasure unto me above all people: for all the earth is mine:

6. And ye shall be unto me a kingdom of priests, and an holy nation. These are the words which thou shalt speak unto the children of Israel.

God gave an insight to His dream of a very unique people inside His people. He told Israel don't forget what I did in Egypt. I bore you on Eagle's wing. Pharaoh was subdued not because of your strength or arm. I bore you on Eagle's wings. The Red Sea divided not because you were powerful but I bore you on Eagle's wing.

In other words, this people rode or the few; on the wings of God's Grace. And God said, the reason was that: I want to bring you to myself.

When we realise what God has done for us, when we walk within the orbit of His Grace in our lives, we celebrate His goodness in the Generation that don't know Him. For this group of people, the Israelites, God said to them, if you will obey my voice indeed and keep my covenant, I have a dream of making you a kingdom of Priest.

Sadly, Israel failed God severally and could not fulfill her part of this agreement. And also the dream of a kingdom of Priest was not fulfilled. But God saw the Glory Ahead and was not ready to give up on His dream. It was necessary that humanity be redeemed from the clutches of sin. So God made a way when He sent His Son into the world; Jesus Christ fulfilled the demand of Justice when He paid the Supreme price on Calvary's Cross.

Somebody shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

In other to understand what this Kingly Priest was supposed to be. It is important for us to look at the kind of Priest that Israel had at that time.

... Priests ordained according to the order of Aaron;

1. Basically, this Priests were to offer sacrifice for the sins of the people and for their sins.

2. Secondly, they stood as Meditators trying to make God and man reconcile and make people walk right.

3. And thirdly, they rendered services to man in things that pertains to God.

But God saw that this kind of Priesthood every time they sacrificed goats, they sacrificed rams, they sacrificed unburnt incenses and did all kinds of sacrifices and the sacrifices could not put an end to the sin problem.

So God made a way. The Covenant that Israel violated, that Israel couldn't keep; Jesus fulfilled the Covenant.

In Hebrew 10:14; the Bible says: by one offering, just one offering, He has perfected forever, He paid for it.

Unlike the Priest of old, the offering of Christ, the Great High Priest of the Royal Priesthood was once and for all.

In I Timothy 2:5; Jesus did the Mediatory role more than any of them that lived and indeed the Bible says for there is One God and One Mediator between God and Man and that Mediator is the man Jesus Christ.

Somebody shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

He came and redeemed a peculiar group of people not just Israelites. His redemptive work gave birth to a New kingdom.

Somebody shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

In Revelation 1:5; the last aspect of it says: Unto Him who loved us and has redeemed us, washed us with His own Blood.

In Revelation 1:6; it says: He has made us Kings and Priest. He has bequeathed to us the right to be Kings and Priests. This is where Royalty meets the lPriesthood.

And everyone of you in this house tonight, if you have been redeemed with the precious Blood of Jesus Christ and you have experienced His deliverance through Faith in His Name, you are a part of this Royal Priesthood!

If you believe you say Amen loud - Amen!!!

Now, what are the DUTIES of this Priesthood?

In I Peter 2:5, He says we are; He called us Lively Stones. And that we are built up as a Spiritual House.

When we serve as Royal Priesthood to offer Praises unto Him as Kings and Priests, we are called to reign here on earth, to show forth His Praise, to show forth His light, to show forth His righteousness. We are called to RULE our world!

OVERY MEDIA (

Somebody shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

93

Wave your hands and shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

In I Peter 2:9, the Apostle says that we are Peculiar, Unique, called out like Israel was delivered through the Grace of God from Egypt. This group of people have been delivered from the slavery of sin by the Grace of God in Christ.

We are Unique, I call on you today to begin to reign in your dream - Amen!

... The Amen is low - AMEN!

Somebody shout Glory - GLORY!!!

You are a Peculiar People. You are a Royal Priesthood, not like the Priesthood of Aaron, No? Not like the Levitical Priesthood. You are called to Dominate this World and fill the Earth with His Light, with His Glory, with His Power. Bring Praise to Him, bring Honour to Him. Exalt His Name by the way you live.

In closing, I Corinthian 1:26 says: 'For you see your calling brethren....."

Give it a consideration; that not many Mighty, not many Nobles, are so called.

God in His grace considered us and gave us a Holy Calling. This is exciting and you will live and continue after this Congress: never you forget who you are; Peculiar, Special, Called Out!

You rarely don't need the Ordination of a Church to work in this office. By means of your redemption, you are a part of the Royal Priesthood.

Royalty is going home with you - Amen. I didn't hear your Amen oooo - AMEN!

You know the Priest of Aaron's day rendered services so much so that if someone was afflicted with leprosy, until a Priest declare him whole, he cannot enter the congregation or midst of people.

But we have a higher Priesthood. The Bible says we have not gotten a High Priest which cannot be touched with the feelings of our infirmity. You can touch Jesus, the Great High Priest of our Royal Order and you will not be Healed - Amen!!!

And the Bible says by His stripes we are already Healed. So we don't really need to be certified someone. He brought Healing, He brought Grace, He brought Favour, He touched the untouchable.

... Such a High Priest have we become!

The world need the touch of your Gospel. The world need what we have. And as we leave this Congress, consider your role as a Royal Priest. Honour the Royalty. Give Glory to the King of your kingdom.

May I hear His Royal Highnesses and Her Royal Highnesses in the house; may I hear you shout Glory - GLORY!!!

... Stand on your feet and lift your two hands.

Ask God to help you. That you will be a Priest that will not bring disgrace to Him. That you will execute this office with Dignity, with Purity.

Open your mouth and draw strength from the Great High Priest of the Royal Priesthood. Let the Heavens hear your voice. Open your mouth and tell Him what you want.

Thank you Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we pray - Amen!!!

#### CLOSING PRAYER:

Father, we thank you. We give you Praise and Glory. Once we were not a people but now we are the people of God. We rejoice in your Faithfulness. You called us out of darkness into your Marvellous Light and you forgave us. You called us into a Ministry of Reconciliation and Anoint your children tonight with a Royal Anointing - Amen!!!

May ROYAL OIL come upon your life - Amen! As you officiate as Royal Priests, may your Generation hear your voice - Amen!

You will not bring disgrace to our King - Amen! You will further the kingdom of God in your time - Amen!!!

I declare this to be so in the Name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit - Amen!!!

And let the Royal Priesthood shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!!!



## DAY 3 - TALK 2 - TOPIC: UNDER A NEW MANAGEMENT - PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE

## DATE: 5TH DECEMBER, 2018

1. Now let's lift our hands to the Almighty God and begin to bless His Holy Name. Give Him Glory, give Him Honour, give Him Adoration. Begin to bless Him. Worship the King of kings and the Lord is lords.

Give Him Glory, give Him Honour. He is worthy to be Adored. Magnify His Holy Name. Praise Him. Give Him Glory, Give Him Honour, Give Him Adoration. Lift His Name high; there is nothing too hard for Him to do. Praise Him!

Thank you Father; Glory be to God. Thank you Lord. May you be Glorified forever. Thank you Saviour. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

2. With all your heart, cry to the Almighty God and say Father; Let the Fire Fall tonight.

CREW

... Go ahead, talk to the Almighty God.

Thank you Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

SONG:

The God of Abraham, Isaac and Jacob,

Jehovah the Man of War,

Your Mercies endudreth forever and ever;

Oh praise His Holy Name (Amen).

#### OPENING PRAYER:

God of Abraham, God of Isaac, God of Jacob. The King of Glory, the Lord Strong and Mighty, the Lord Mighty in battle. Glory be to your Holy Name. Accept our worship, in Jesus Name.

Thank you for what you did on Monday. Thank you for what you did yesterday. Thank you for what you are about to do tonight. Thank you in advanced for what you are about to do this weekend. Please accept our worship in Jesus Name.

In this place tonight, and in all the Viewing Centres all over the world (and all those reading worldwide); today let your Fire Fall.

My Father and my God please, Let your Fire Fall. Let every yoke be consumed by your Fire tonight. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. Amen!

Let somebody shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Shake hand with two (2) or there (3) people, tell him or her: The Fire will Fall tonight.

... And then you may please be seated.

BIRTH REPORT: As of 6pm this evening, the numbers of Babies born during this Congress has increased to Twenty (20). Nine (9) Boys and Eleven (11) Girls. Today we have a set of twins - both of them Boys!

Alright, let the girls shout Praise the Lord. And let the boys shout Hallelujah.

... Don't worry boys, we will catch up with the girls.

I want to thank the fellow who gave the First Talk. The President of the Pentecostal Fellowship of Nigeria. My father in the Lord, Reverend Felix Omobude. Thank you Sir. God bless you.

Glory be to God!

Tomorrow, we will still meet here (the Old Auditorium); even though this place is rather too small for us, we will still manage it. But by Friday, we will move to the New Auditorium (New Arena).

BIBLE TEXT: MARK 5:18-20

... And we will be talking on: UNDER A NEW MANAGEMENT.

18. And when he was come into the ship, he that had been possessed with the devil prayed him that he might be with him.

19. Howbeit Jesus suffered him not, but saith unto him, Go home to thy friends, and tell them how great things the Lord hath done for thee, and hath had compassion on thee.

20. And he departed, and began to publish in Decapolis how great things Jesus had done for him: and all men did marvel.

When you leave here, at the end of this Congress and begin to tell people what God has down for you; They will Marvel!

Now, if you ask those who have being here since on Monday, to introduce themselves to you, you will be hearing so many names - Common go ahead and introduce yourself to two (2) or three (3) people.

I am sure you are hearing them use names you have not heard before: "I am the Light of the world, I am the Salt of the Earth, I am a Christan, I am a child of God..."

... And what did we say your name is, yesterday? "I am a Branch of the Life".

Today, I want to make available to you a New Name. And this time, it is "An Ambassador".

2 Corinthians 5:20 says: "Now then we are ambassadors for Christ, as though God did beseech you by us: we pray you in Christ's stead, be ye reconciled to God."

The interesting thing about the Name AMBASSADOR, is that "You represent your King". And you have his full backing. Wherever you go, your King is there.

Oh! You say, your President, your Head of State. In our own case, He is our King.

I am sure you have noticed that when you want to salute a President or a Head of State, you say: Your Excellency!

When you want to salute an Ambassador do you say? "Your Excellency" - YES!

Could you please help me tell two (2) or three (3) people around you: Your Excellency.

I want you to tell your friends and those around you: Be careful how you treat me, because I am "His/Her Excellency".

There is another thing I want you to know about an Ambassador. You may not be the Ambassador of your Nation; but you are an Ambassador of the King of kings.

"The Residence of an Ambassador is SECURED".

If you are in any kind of trouble in any Nation, and you run to the Embassy; You cannot be arrested. Even if an enemy is pursuing you. If you enter the Palace of your King, you are secured.

May I decree to somebody here tonight; Your Residence is a FORBIDDEN ZONE to the devil.

Tonight is a very SPECIAL NIGHT. And am sure you can feel it in the air already.

Now, I will tell you a story; it is my true life experience. Shortly after I became the General Overseer, the Lord built me a small house in the out-sketch of my Town - my mother lived there with a little girl (take care of my mother).

And then one day, a mad man break loose and began to terrorise the people in the area. He was chasing a woman who had a baby on her back and a child in her hand. When the woman saw that the Mad Man could catch up with her, she dropped the child and ran into a house.

The mad man took the child and broke the arm. Then he saw another woman. He pursued her, when she noticed he was very close she branched into my house. The mad man got to the door and turned back.

I decree tonight, your home will become a forbidden zone to the devil.

... You are an Ambassador!

101

Now, there are two (2) Principal Kingdoms: The kingdom of darkness and the Kingdom of Light.

Colossians 1:12-13 says:

12. Giving thanks unto the Father, which hath made us meet to be partakers of the inheritance of the saints in light:

13. Who hath delivered us from the power of darkness, and hath translated us into the kingdom of his dear Son:

There are two (2) Kingdoms; it has been like that from the beginning.

In Genesis 1:1-2; when God created the Heaven and earth; Darkness was upon the face of the deep. Darkness - it was the first kingdom. Associated with it is confusion, emptiness.

Until God spoke in Genesis 1:3; Let there be Light. And there was Light. The Bible says: God saw that the Light was good.

I am believing God for somebody here tonight that: There will be a permanent separation between you and the kingdom of Darkness.

In the kingdom of darkness there is always Sorrow. In the Kingdom of Light, there is Joy. Psalm 30:5 says - "For his anger endureth but a moment; in his favour is life: weeping may endure for a night, but joy cometh in the morning."

Sorrow and Darkness go together. While Joy and Light go together.

In the Name of the One who created Light; there is someone here who will not sorrow again.

Now, which Ambassador are you? Is it the Ambassador of the kingdom of Darkness or the Ambassador of the Kingdom of Light?

I want to explain briefly what you will get as the Ambassador of Darkness. Yes! I need to explain that quickly, because tonight is a Night of DELIVERANCE. And you must come Under a New Management.

If you are Satan's Ambassador, you can expect the following:

1. He uses people, and then Humiliate them.

102

In I Kings 18:25-29; the Prophets of Baal cried unto Satan, they cut themselves, then shouted, but there no answer from the god. Even when Elijah mocked them. Satan did not come to their rescue.

If you are his Ambassador; sooner or data he will humiliate you.

2. Satan will use you, only to DISCARD you.

He uses his Ambassadors and then discard them. You can read that in 1 Samuel 17:1-52.

For forty (40) days he used Goliath as a Terrorist. But the moment he hit the ground, Satan forsook him and David cut off his head.

3. Satan uses people only to DESTROY their Destiny.

In Acts 1:15-20; the Bible tells us concerning Judas Iscariot. That this man was supposed to be an Apostle; but he ended up committing suicide.

So I am appealing to you tonight; if you are linked to in anyway to any Cult, evil covenant; anything that has the trace of the devil: Get out tonight!

If you choose to be God's Ambassador, what can you expect?

# 1. You can expect Glory.

God uses people and then Glorifies them. In 2 Kings 2:11-12; He used Elijah, and sent His own Special chariot to bring him home.

2. God uses people only to Promote them.

103

2 Kings 2:12-15; He used Elisha and then promoted him from being a Servant of the Prophet to becoming a Prophet.

3. If you are an Ambassador of Jesus Christ, you need to expect that even when you are discouraged He will Encourage you.

In 1 Kings 19:1-8; Elijah was discouraged to the extent of thinking of committing suicide - Elijah came and sat down under a Juniper tree: and he requested for himself that he might die; and said, It is enough; now, O LORD, take away my life; for I am not better than my fathers.

Like I told you last month: God does not bury His own. He feeds them!

4. When you are in the Storm of life; He will come and Help you.

In Acts 27:21-25; Paul was in a storm and God sent an Angel to go an encourage him.

Thank God for the Choir Ministration this night; The Lord of Hosts will STILL every storms in your life, in Jesus Name.

5. He Answers your Prayer by Fire.

In 1 Kings 18:30-39; Elijah prayed for only two (2) minutes and the Fire Fell.

And tonight as you pray, the Fire is going to Fall.

I just want to give you some SIGNS that you need Deliverance, and come under a New Management.

1. The first sign is Fear. Suddenly you become afraid is sleeping, of waking up, of going to work, of returning from work. Afraid of several things. If there is Fear in your life, you need Deliverance.

Because Fear is a spirit; it is a demon. 2 Timothy 1:7 says - Fear is a Spirit! And fear has torment. Fear is a torment according to 1 John 4:18.

2. If you have Anxiety; you are always worrying about tomorrow, your children, your wife/husband. Always worrying; then you nerd deliverance according to Philippians 4:6-7.

And the only thing that worry does for you: It robs you of Joy. Psalm 30:5.

Your tomorrow is going to be alright! Amen!

I didn't hear your Amen - Amen!!!!!

If Joy is coming in the morning, then why must I worry tonight?

Oh! Daddy, you don't know what I am going through. What are you going through that can be compared (with all humility) to what I am going through?

One of my sons said he is stressed. And I asked why? He said because he is a Pastor in charge of a Province, with hundred Parishes. And I asked him: If you are stressed, what am I supposed to do?

"I will serve God with Gladness; because my tomorrow my tomorrow will be alright".

.. Now lift your hands and repeat that: I will serve God with Gladness; because my tomorrow my tomorrow will be alright.

I have told you the story before; when I newly became the General Overseer, with thirty nine (39) Parishes. Oh! God, thirty nine (39) problems.

When I travel and return, my wife will tell me: there is problem here, there is problem there. I will say: I see, please give me my food. She will be surprised, expecting that maybe when I finish I will comment. When I finish eating I pray and go to bed.

Why must I worry, when Joy comes in the morning.

How many of us believe that your tomorrow will be alright? Let me hear you shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

3. Self Destruction Habit: Like the mad man of Gadara. He was cutting himself with stones. There are many of us who have habits that we know are injurious to our health and yet we can't stop it. You need Deliverance!

There was a Medical Doctor who was smoking. Why are you smoking? Something has to kill you, he said. Some people will die through gun shots, some through accidents. In his own case he chose to die though smoking. He was aware of the injury smoking does to his health; but kept doing it.

There are many of us, who are doing things that are destructive to our health; But the Lord will deliver you tonight.

4. Sorrow: Yes, we are human, and can be sorrowful sometimes.

If you are sad, Cry! Even Jesus wept. And when something sorrowful happen to me I weep. I remember a time somebody lost a close relative. I visited them. He was crying and I joined him to cry. The people there said they thought I should be consoling the bereaved. I told them, Even Jesus wept!

5. And this Big one - DISOBEDIENCE.

You know the Will of God and yet refuse to do it. John 15:14 "Ye are my friends, if ye do whatsoever I command you."

What is the meaning of that? If you don't do what I command, you are no longer my friend.

1 Samuel 15:22-23 says:

106

To obey is better than sacrifice; and the sin of rebellion is as witchcraft.

Oh! If you consider that alone; there are many young people who are in need of Deliverance. They just want to show their parents that they can rebel.

... God will give you Deliverance tonight, in Jesus Name.

6. What is that thing He commands you to do?

He said to that Mad Man who had being delivered, from our Text (Mark 5:18-20): I want you to be my Ambassador; go and tell others what God has done for you. "Go and Witness".

If you find Witnessing difficult; you need Deliverance. If you can't open your mouth and tell others about Jesus Christ; You need Deliverance.

Anyone who is an Ambassador of Jesus Christ; who is on the side of God will have this insatiable urge to Witness. You will find it difficult to keep your mouth shut.

I will give you just two (2) examples.

107

Some of the older ones here will remember one man named Moses. Brother Moses was an Ambassador of Satan. Before he met Jesus, he has sex with animals; goat, dog, chicken. No child was safe when Moses was around. Whenever he is on holiday, parents tied their children.

When he was An Ambassador of Satan; he did a great job! And when he gave his life to Jesus, he just couldn't keep his mouth shut. You can't spend few minutes with Moses without him witnessing Jesus Christ to you.

If you are truly saved; you can't keep your mouth shut. .

You want me to give you another example? He is the one who is talking to you. My wife said I should not be telling you the details; and I respect her a lot. But you know who I was. And that is why I witness Jesus Christ everywhere. I can't keep silent.

If you are still keeping silent, you need Deliverance.

What is God Expecting from His Ambassadors?

1. He expects you to be His Voice. He expects you to be His Witness - Acts 1:8.

2. He expects His Ambassador to set the captives free. He expects you to have a Deliverance Ministry; everyone, not the Pastors alone - Mark 16:16-18 says:

17. And these signs shall follow them that believe; In my name shall they cast out devils; they shall speak with new tongues;

18.They shall take up serpents; and if they drink any deadly thing, it shall not hurt them; they shall lay hands on the sick, and they shall recover.

It tells you what He expects from you; the first thing that He said is: you will cast out demons;

You witness, you cast our demons and you heal the sick.

Are you saying that "I am to cast out demons?" Provided you are not under the influence of demon yourself. If you are truly connected to Jesus, you will command demons to go and they shall obey you.

It is when you are not connected to Satan that Satan can answer you: Jesus I know, Paul I know, Adeboye I know; who are you?

Is there any Reward for Ambassador of Christ?

Many of them but I will give you only one, now
1. An Ambassador does not need to Defend himself. His defence comes from the King or the Head of State.

When an Ambassador goes to any country, he returns safely. Nobody messes with an Ambassador; No matter how little he might be: they don't mess with Ambassadors.

You people have asked me, when people criticise me: Why don't you fight back? I tell them I can't. I only pray for them. You don't know the secret? I will tell you the secret tonight.

Exodus 23:22 says: "But if thou shalt indeed obey His voice, and do all that I speak; then I will be an enemy unto thine enemies, and an adversary unto thine adversaries."

Anybody who is attacking an Ambassador, is asking for the Consuming Fire to come and fight him. And the only thing you can do for such a fellow is to beg God for mercy.

If you become an Ambassador today, God have Mercy on your enemies.

A mad dog when it sees Fire, it pulls back. Have you seen a mad man who got burnt? No matter the level of madness, a mad man can never get burnt.

Do you know the Name of your God? He is a Consuming Fire. So when somebody is fighting the Ambassador of God; he is challenging God to a contest. And you need to pray for God to have Mercy on that enemy.

If you will be Obedient to your King; He will Supply all your needs. He will make your Residence secured. He will Defend you.

If you want to give your life to Jesus now and get connected to Him come now. Before we begin to pray for Deliverance; you need to be Born Again. You need to be washed in the Blood. Because when we begin to pray tonight, demons jumping out will be looking for where to hide.

I am going to count from one (1) to ten (10). Do if you want to be born again, come quickly; so I can pray for your Salvation.

Am counting...

Now those of you already in front and those of you on the way, talk to God: Please forgive my sins. Wash me with your Blood and I will serve you all my life. Please make me your Ambassador - Go ahead to talk to the Lord.

And the rest of us, let us stretch forth our hands towards these people and intercede for them. Let us pray that the One who save our souls will save their own souls too. Please intercede for them.

... Counsellors please move close.

And those of you who are on the way keep coming and just make sure you are here before I finished praying.

Thank you Father. Glory be to your Holy Name. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

GO PRAYS: Saviour we want to thank you. Thank you for these your children who have come out. Please remember your Promise that whosoever that come to you; you will no wise cast out. Please receive them, forgive them, let your Blood wash away their sins, save their souls, write their names in the Book of Life, receive them into the family of God and don't let them backslide again. And from now on, anytime they call on you, answer them by Fire. And in your Kingdom, don't let them be missing. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

And those of you who have come forward, Congratulations. Let me hear you shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

The Counsellors will give you card. Please fill your Name and Address and Prayer request. I promise I will be praying for you.

... Please go to your seat. We will wait for you.

And the rest of us, while we wait for these people to fill their cards, we will worship the Lord. Let's go ahead and worship Him for what He is about to do tonight.

... Brief Session of worship by the choir.

When we call on the Almighty God to send down His Fire tonight; there is the possibility of some people that are being set free struggling a little bit.

It is called Manifestation. So if as we begin to pray you see somebody begin to behave a bit unusual; you have to help bring them to the Open Space in front. Or if you know that you need Deliverance; the sensation that you are having shows you need Deliverance; even as we begin to pray, come forward as well.

If you believe the Fire of God will Fall tonight shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

PRAYERS:

1. Say Father, Cover me with your Blood.

2. Everyone of us in one accord say Father, Let your Fire Fall.

Now we want to go to War Front. The Musicians, we are going to sing Warfare Songs.

And I want to invite the Ministers to join me here as we stretch our hands and pray for you.

... Warfare Songs going on.

Thank you Father, Glory to your Holy Name. Thank you Father. Thank you Ancient of Days. Thank you Lord of lords. Blessed be the Name of the Lord. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

GO DECREES:

112

Be FREE in Jesus Name. Remain Free in Jesus Name. For the rest of your life, enjoy Freedom in Jesus Name.

So shall it be in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. Amen!

Let me hear you shout a Big hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Go Free! Go on praising, Magnifying His Name!

It shall be well with you in the Name of Jesus. Amen!

EDITORIAL NOTE: It is getting better by the day and we warmly welcome you all to the dispensation of a New Management of your life.

So far so good, Day 1 to Day 3 has been wonderful and we are sure Day 4 promises to be more Glorious.

Activities for the day (Day 4) continues in the Old Auditorium and you just have to find your way down to the Redemption Camp as we cross over to the 2nd Half of the Congress - The 2nd Half promises to be Great as we have laid the foundation in the first three (3) days - Salvation, Healing and Deliverance.

... The siege over getting your Glory has been lifted indeed and you are positioned for the "Glory Ahead".

Jesus Christ sure waiting you you. Ensure you don't come alone - come with all your family members and invite your friends, neighbours, co-workers, acquaintances and enemies (yet to be delivered).

We appreciate you all for reading and keeping faith in our Crew little efforts to reach out to you!

... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... taking back the Power in the Media Space!

COMPILATIONS BY

## MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND ADEBANJO ADESOLA

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018



# DAY 4 - MORNING TALK - TOPIC: WINGS' LIKE AN EAGLE - PASTOR BAMIDELE STURDIVANT

## (GENERAL OVERSEER, FAITH UNITED MINISTRIES, MARYLAND USA)

### DATE: 6TH DECEMBER, 2018

Well let somebody shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

If you know that the Glory is Ahead, you should shout the loudest Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

I wish you do me a favour - just turn to two (2) or three (3) and tell them something is going to happen for me here today - Amen!

We thank the Almighty God for the opportunity to be here again and we thank our daddy and our mummy for the privilege and the chance that they have gave for us to share what the Almighty God has spoken to us with you.

Please understand that you are not just here because someone invited you or you are not here by coincidence or circumstances.

Whatever means God has used to bring you here was because the Almighty God desires an encounter with you today.

Please go to somebody and tell him or her that I will have an encounter with the Almighty God.

OPENING PRAYERS

114

My Father and my God, we thank you so much for this day. We bless you now for what we know that you are going to do.

Whatever situations your children brought to this Place; let them leave differently in Jesus Mighty Name.

Whatever sickness, whatever diseases, whatever distress - whatever come here with them today; my Father and my God by the time they leave here, let them leave singing a New Song.

And at the end of it all, you take all the Glory and let your children get the Blessings.

For in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen.

My assignment with you today is to Talk with you on the topic: "Wings' like An Eagle".

Our text will be taken from Exodus 19:4 - Ye have seen what I did unto the Egyptians and how I have you on Eagles' wings and brought you unto myself.

Beloveth, the God that we serve is a God of Purpose. By that we mean that He already has a reason in mind and a Destiny prepared before He brings a thing to come to past.

For example, the Bible says in Romans 8:28 - And we know that all things work together for good to them that love God, to them who are called according to His Purpose.

So I remind you again, the Almighty God is a "God of Purpose". He is not the one that has to wait to see how a thing will go to determine whether it will be a success or not. He has already spoken Success before He speaks the thing to come to past.

What does this means to you and I?

This implies that even our adverse situations, even the circumstances that are uncomfortable; even the things that seems to be chaotic (I think the word we use here is wahala - trouble,).

... Even all those works together for your Good.

It means that there is absolutely nothing that can come into your life that God who has your destiny has not designed for you. Even that situation(s) will work to get you there.

Why? Because the Bible says in Psalms 37:23 that: The steps of a Good man are ordered by the LORD and he delighteth in his way.

So you should know that you will get to where God said you will get to.

I want you to understand that it does not matter how devastating the situation may appear; even in that moment, it may seems things has fallen out but the Truth of the matter is that even that is the part of the Process that will cause you and I to make Progress so that we can grab hold of God's Promise.

I said that even the adverse situation is part of the Process so that we can attain God's Promise for our lives.

Listen, I need you to understand that every adversity works to your own advantage.

Tell someone near you that neighbour; my adversity will work to my advantage. Common on tell one more person on the other side that: my adversity is going to work towards my advantage.

... If you believed it shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Now how can I said that: Listen to me, it is because the Plans God has for your life, He had it before you are born. The Plans that God has for you and I, He had it before we were born.

He had a pre-birth Destiny for you and I. In Psalms 139: 13-16 paraphrased. It says: I was formed in the inward part of my mother's womb. It says that he has possessed my reins and covered me while I was in there in the womb. It goes on to say that my face was not hidden from you. When I was made in secret, the Psalmist says God's eyes saw my substance, yet being unperfect.

Meaning that before He formed you, He already has the Finished Product of what you and I will be.

He said it this way to Jeremiah in Jeremiah 1:5 when Jeremiah was coming face to face with his assignment for life. And he was saying that he was unable to do it.

The Almighty God reminded him of this; that before I formed thee in the belly (of your mother's womb); I knew thee and before thou camest forth out of the womb I sanctified thee and I ordained thee a Prophet unto the Nations.

That means that even before you kick your mummy the first time in her womb; before you took your first breadth of air; before you came out - God already had a Plan and Assignment for your life and He already knew that you will be a Success in it.

How do I know that?

Because He said in the same Jeremiah 29:11; it says: For I know the thoughts that I think toward you, saith the LORD, thoughts of Peace and not of evil, to give you an expected end - it means to give you a Future and a Hope.

He says that I am already thinking of your tomorrow while you are still struggling with your today. He said that I already got your Future Plans for you.

I have come to tell someone here today that you are not an afterthought, you are not an accident but you are an Assignment.

And since you are an assignment, you belong to Him and His Name is on the Line. And so He is going to do whatever it takes to make sure that you and I succeed so that His Name does not go down.

Listen Beloveth; am telling you that you are going to succeed not because you are smart, have most money but because His Name is engraved on you.

He is your Manufacturer and you are the Product. He is going to make sure that the Product succeeds and He is going to do so for His Name's Sake.

Please turn to your neighbour and tell him/her that I have gotten to succeed because God's Name is on the Line.

Exodus 32: 9-14; that is the story of how God heard the noise going on in the camp. He told Moses to go back to the camp as He has heard a lot of noise of these people. They are stiff necked people and I don't want to deal with them again. He said am going to consume them and make them a Great Nation. Now hear what Moses said: Moses said you cannot kill them because our enemies will say that you brought them out of Egypt and could not keep up with your words of taking them to the Land promised to them.

As a result of that, God said since I put my Name out there; am going to work with them to get them in.

What am I telling you?

118

Am telling you that if everyone else wants to give up on you; when everybody else wants to walk away from you; am telling you that am going to succeed.

Why? Because God's Name is on the line.

I wish you are going to touch your neighbour and say don't look at where I am not; I have gotten a destiny that I got to fulfill.

MEDIA

... If you believed shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Beloveth, I want you to understand that the Almighty God speaks concerning you and I. And when He speaks, concerning you and I; He is not a liar. The Bible says in Number 23:19; it says that: God is not a man that He should lie; neither the son of man that He should repent: hath He said and shall He not do it? Or hath He spoken and shall He not make it good?

Meaning God's Name and God's Words are on the Line.

I am going somewhere with this: Whatever God had spoken concerning you and I; He got to make it happen somehow because His Words has gone out.

The Bible says in Isaiah 55:11; it says that: So shall my word be that goeth forth out of my mouth: it shall not return unto me void, but it shall accomplish that which I please and it shall prosper in the thing whereto I sent it.

Whatever God has spoken about you has got to happen.

I was here some years ago and heard daddy said the Testimony of a woman that came to him that was having in her womb a pregnancy of a girl. But because her husband wanted a son, she wanted daddy to pray and agree with her that the child will change from being a girl to a boy.

And I heard that Testimony and I wrap my Faith around it for something that I want God to do for me.

How much do I know that some years later; there will be a young man that came to me in our Ministry and he had two (2) girls and wife pregnant now and has two (2) more weeks to go in her pregnancy and had a girl.

And he was depressed and came to me and said Pastor: Can you agree with me and pray that my wife will have a boy. I said when will she be due; he said in two (2) weeks. I said ok; I held on to what I heard daddy said. I told him that if you will be at the next place that am doing Ministrations I will lay hands upon you and God will surprise you.

I went to another city; he came to where I was and I saw him in the Service. He came afterwards and said: Here I am and I placed my hands on the wife's stomach and say God will surprise you. I said when next will your wife go back to the hospital. That day was Friday and he said Tuesday. I pray a simple prayer.

The following Tuesday, he and his wife went to the hospital. He called me and told me: daddy you won't believe what happened. He said the doctor said he doesn't know what happened? It was a girl for eight (8) and half Months and now it is a boy in the womb.

Listen, I don't care what the situations appear to be; if the Almighty God has spoken over your life, somehow He got to make it happen.

Stand to your feet, please I want you to lift up your voice loud and clear and say: Father, turn the tides in my Favour.

Go ahead and pray like a Warrior please. My Father and my God, my situation is looking one way; turn the tides in my Favour. Let it work together for my good.

... Thank you Lord, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. So shall it be in Jesus Name. Please be seated.

Listen, wherever God said you are going to end up; not only whatever He says; you will end up somehow. He is going to get you there

Listen to me closely, by God's Plan you are already there.

... Common on say it to yourself: Am already there.

And His Plan for your life, you are already there.

120

You simply have to go through the Process because the Destiny is already steady. You are already there and its just that you only have to go through a Process.

The Bible says in Isaiah 46:10; it says that: He has called your end from the beginning. And things that are not yet from Ancient times saying my Counsel will stand and I will do my God Pleasure.

Which means that wherever He has told you that you will end or be is already settled.

I remember daddy teaching us maybe two (2) years ago. He said God concludes or finishes a Project before He begins it.

How can that be so? Listen the Bible says in Revelations 1:8 - He refers to Himself as Alpha and Omega. He is the Beginning and the End.

Which means when He starts, it is over. When He begins, it is finished because beginning and Ending are in Him. Started and Finish are in Him.

In order words, do you remember in Luke 1: 27-33. You remember how Gabriel came to the virgin Mary and when he came he said oh woman you are highly favoured. He says you are Blessed among all women. He says that you are going to conceive and have a child. He is going to be called Emmanuel. He is going to Head a Great Nation. He is going to rule His people. He is going to have a Kingdom that never ends.

Watch this; that is the story. But he is telling her about a future and a Son - his life, reign and Kingdom and she has not even gotten pregnant. Yet he talked of a future while she is still looking to wrap her mind about today.

I am talking to somebody here right now, because what the Lord deal with her and by the time she got to Luke 1: 34; she said how can this be since I don't know a man?

In other words, God is saying that I have your future mapped out for you. I have already got people to help you, got people who will do that. All I need you to do is to trust me that I will do it.

I want to help someone here today; when it comes to God, I want you to know that your future is God's Past.

Why should I say that? Listen to me; He is the One who was, and who is and who is to come.

I wish you to tell your neighbour that my future is already settled.

If you believe that shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Now I begin to round up. The real issue that caused you and I to struggle is this: After we have accepted the fact that the Almighty God will do what He said He will do because

He is not a liar; after we know that whatever He said He will do will come to past; after we have accepted that our future is already settled then the thing we now struggled with because of our hearts is to BELIEVE.

That is why the Bible says in Marks 9: 23-24 -

23. Jesus said unto him, if thou canst believe, all things are possible to him that believeth.

24. And straightaway the father of the child cried out and said with tears, Lord I believe; help thou mine unbelief.

Because it is sometimes hard for us to believe that God has the ability to do what we are believing Him for. And so the text that I read in your ears about the Eagles' wings is now going to show us why the text is important. The record is in Exodus 19:4.

God says that do you see what I did to the Egyptians? He said I brought you out to myself.

Beloveth, the efforts in getting you to where you are is not based on you but with the Almighty God.

Tell your neighbour that God is going to do it.

Now I want to say something: When He said I brought you out on Eagles' wings; it simply means that all efforts are on Him. He said I brought you out to myself.

Why? I have a Place I need to get to. So I did all the work.

You see the Lion is the "King of the Beast" in the Jungle. But in the airways, the Eagles is called the "Royalty of the Airways'.

There are a whole lot of things that I can talk to you about the Eagles but I have to leave here.

I have no time to tell you that it is the greatest of all birds - its Vision is so sharp and could see miles away. I have no time to tell you how patient it is - when it waits for raven for hours and when the raven comes, snatch it because the ravens is not expecting it.

There is no time to talk about the Eagles as a Warrior - when it looks as if it is about to lose the battle; it won't give up but rather die than quit.

There is no time to talk about how the Eagles takes on the serpent because it will take the serpent high into the air and then drop it on the rock in order to kill it and eat it.

There is no time to talk about some of the characteristics of the Eagles which shows how tall it was. The Eagles' wing is about six (6) to seven and half thick. Which means that the Strength of an Eagle is double its size of its body.

There is something about the Eagles in Proverbs 30: 18-19 -

18. There be three things which are too wonderful for me, yea four which I know not.

19. The way of an Eagle in the air, the way of a serpent upon the rock, the way of a ship in the midst of the sea and the way of a man with a maid.

In other words, he is saying that I don't understand how an Eagle does what it does when in the air.

Literally, he is saying that it is a function of the wings that the Eagles has that cause its arms to wander.

This is what he says about the Eagles

1. The Eagles without a GPS system or a Road Map can stay in the air and get to where it is supposed to be even though it looks as if no way for it to happen.

Am here to talk to somebody again that with God moving us, He does not have to have a GPD system, He doesn't have to have a Road Map. Even if you see a Red Sea; you serve a God that can make a way where there seems to be no way.

Stand to you feet please. I want you to pray with all your Might and say Father; every Place that was blocked in my destiny, please make a way for me - Pray now Warriors, you can pray.

In this situation that is concerning me, Lord make a way for me. Don't let my adversaries mock me.

... Thank you Lord. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen. So shall it be in Jesus Name. Please be seated.

2. Listen to me; not only can the Eagles find its way where there seems to be no way but the Eagles like to go to High Places. Eagles like to get to High spots. They are not comfortable being in the down low. They are always looking forward to go Higher.

David made a statement in Psalms 61:2. He says that: From the end of the earth will I cry unto thee, when my heart is overwhelmed: lead me to the rock that is higher than me.

I don't know who I have come here for but I have come to Prophesy to someone that this is the end of your Low Season. You will find your Way higher.

If you believe shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah

124

3. Not only does the Eagles has the ability to go without any Pathway and want to go to High Places but listen; the Eagles is interesting because when the doves and other birds sees problems coming (when the storm is coming); they will run to the back of the rock to hide. But what does the Eagles does? When the Eagles knows that the storm is coming; it positions itself, wait for the storm and with the storm coming it will run to the storm, stretch out its wings and make the story carries it instead of having to flap its wings to where it supposed to go. So the Eagles uses the storm to promote itself to its Next Destiny.

Stand on your feet please, we want to pray to the Almighty God and we want to ask that the Almighty God and say Father; the storms that is about to come - take me out or destroy me; let me use it to take me to Glory Ahead and to my Destiny - Pray like Warriors.

Thank you Lord. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen. So shall it be in Jesus Name.

4. Please let us remain standing as I want to tell you something else about the Eagles.

Not only does it position itself when the storms is coming but hear this; what the storm does is that it lifts the Eagles up because its wings stretch out - so the Eagles is now riding on the storm.

You will ask the Almighty God now saying Father, I don't want the storm to destroy me. Let me just ride it out.

Say Father, I decree that the storm will not destroy me as am going to ride it out - Pray Now ... Pray!

This is not the end for me. Am riding the storm out. Am using this adversity to my advantage. I am on the Eagles' Wings.

Thank you Lord. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen. Let your Amen be loud and clear - Amen!

Do you know that there are some people who has advantage over you. But what they don't know is that you are on Eagles' Wings.

Listen, do you remember in 1 Kings 18: 41-46; Elijah said to Ahab - get your horses and chariots for there is a storm coming; I have heard the Sound of Abundance. So you need to go ahead.

And I want you to know that Ahab took off with his horses and chariots. But Elijah waited and positioned himself and there came an Eagles' Wings. The Bible says that the Hands of the Lord came upon Elijah and he outran Ahab with his horses and chariots.

I have come to Prophesy to you and to tell you that everyone who started ahead of you; they will soon be looking at your back.

Lift up your voice loud and clear and say Father, put me on Eagles' Wings. Let my enemies see my back - Pray now, Pray!

Everyone that has gone ahead of me, let me outrun them.

Thank you Jesus. In Jes<mark>us M</mark>ighty Name we have prayed - Amen. Let your Amen be loud and clear - Amen!

5. Beloveth listen to this; I told you that the Eagles body can be one height but the wings is double the height of the body.

The Bible says in 1 Kings 19: 1-7; when Elijah had come from one journey and then was running on the storm. He said this: he was so depressed and wanted to die. But God gave him one portion of food and told him to go to sleep. He woke up, God gave him a second portion. He gave him twice as much as he needed.

So if the Eagles' wings are twice the size of the body. That means that when God is ready to move you and I; He is going to double out our portion for where we have to go.

I want you to lift up your voice mightily now and say Father, there is Glory Ahead please give me a double portion - Go ahead and pray now.

I got to make it on my journey. Symbolically, double my supply, portion and what I need as you are the God of More than Enough. Have used so much this year and am on my way to Glory. My Next Season will be Glorious - double my portion.

Thank you Lord. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen. So shall it be in Jesus Name.

Finally, I want you to pray this Prayer point mightily - Not by Might, not by Power but by the Spirit of the Lord.

We want the Almighty God to let His Spirit hold us up so that we will never go down again.

... This level that we are now, you will never come back to this level again.

Lift up your voice loud and clear and say: Father, by your spirit lift me higher and don't let me ever come down again.

Am tired of the valley, don't let me ever come down to this level again. Take me higher and higher in you and I will never come down again. Take me higher in every facets of my life - spiritually, materially and maritally. Now shall my head be lifted up above all my enemies.



## CLOSING PRAYERS

127

My Father and my Lord we thank you. Saviour we bless you Daddy for all your children that are here and all those watching us all over the world (or reading).

My Father and my God, put them on Eagles' Wings in Jesus Name.

Daddy as am asking you sir don't let them ever settle for the valley in Jesus Name.

Father, every storm that comes in their lives, let that storm be used to promote them to a New Level in Jesus Name.

Father, am asking you that even when they feel faint, they feel like giving up; remind them that those that wait upon you shall renew their strength. They will mount up with the Wings as Eagles; they will run and not be weary; they will walk and not faint. Let them experience Victory in every facets of their lives.

Thank you my Father. Glory be to your Holy Name. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Common on shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah.

Tell your neighbour that there is Glory Ahead.

Clap your hands and give God all the Praise.

... Let every Eagles Praise the Lord - Hallelujah!!!

# DCOMPILATIONS BY ERY MEDIA CREW

## MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND ADEBANJO ADESOLA

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DAY 4 - SPECIAL TALK AND PRAYERS 1: TOPIC: JOY COMETH - REV. (MRS.) MERCY EZEKIEL

## (CO-PASTOR, CHRISTIAN PENTECOSTAL MISSIONS INTERNATIONAL)

#### DATE: 6TH DECEMBER, 2018

#### **TEXT: PSALM 30:5**

Somebody, praise the Lord - Hallelujah!

That your Hallelujah is to weak - Hallelujah!

Do Hallelujah so that the enemy will know you will do next year - Hallelujah!

Do an awesome..... Hallelujah!

Glory be to God, 'JOY COMETH'

And I prophecy to someone hearing the sound of my voice, you will end this year with joy - Amen!

The louder your Amen, the higher your blessings - Amen!



i stand in this name ocsus chins

The Bright and Morning Star

To appreciate my Mom and Dad, G.O, Papa and Mama Adeboye,

Let's appreciate them

You you want to be great as they are, stand up and appreciate them.....

If you want to have the blessing, appreciate them.

What you don't appreciate does not come to you.

Go ahead and appreciate them, do it harder.....

Thank God for their life

Thank God for the ministry

Thank God for their Children

Thank Him, thank God for what God is about to do more in their homes

In Jesus name - Amen!

Hold your neighbour

If you have a neighbour, let's pray together.

If you don't have a neighbour, hold your head.

Do you have a neighbour?

Alright, tell your neighbour

Stand up, hold your neighbour

Say neighbour, you will end well

Say neighbour, you will know the meaning of joy this year

And this year, joy will end with you - Amen!

Say neighbour, you will not end up in sorrow

You will not end in shame but you will end up in joy

Say neighbour, say neighbour, if you want to end up with joy, do something to praise the Lord.....

MEDIA CRE

Go ahead, do something to praise the Lord

Do something to praise the Lord

Our God is awesome

Our God is beautiful, there is none like Him

And nobody will ever be like Him

Go ahead and do something.....

You are alive, oh neighbour, you are alive

Thank you Jesus

Thank you Jesus

Thank you Jesus, in Jesus name we pray - Amen!

Somebody shout a louder Amen - Amen! Somebody shout a louder Amen - Amen! Take your seat

Give the Lord the highest Hallelujah you can afford - Hallelujah!

I am asked to speak on - JOY COMETH with Prayers

Open your Bibles to Psalm 30, if you have a Bible, open it to Psalm 30:5

Have you seen it

Alright, it says,

5. For his anger endureth but a moment; in his favour is life: weeping may endure for a night, but joy cometh...... when...... in the morning'

Night does not last forever, your morning is coming - Amen!

That place they put you and they think that's where you will end is a lie, you are coming out - Amen!

MEDIA CREW

You will enjoy the goodness of the Lord - Amen!

You will enjoy the favour of the Lord - Amen!

You will enjoy the joy of the Lord - Amen!

Jump up and shout, I will enjoy the joy of the Lord

FR

Glory be to God - Hallelujah!

Amen, say neighbour, sit down, sit down, sit down

Say neighbour, sit down

Say neighbour, there is something I feel in my body

I feel the joy of the Lord

Say neighbour, I jump to shout, I will enjoy the goodness of the Lord and I will enjoy the joy of the Lord

If you know you will enjoy the joy of the Lord, shout Hallelujah!

I didn't hear your Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

I want you also to open Isaiah 12 verse 3

3. Therefore with joy shall ye draw water out of the wells of salvation.

With joy, with joy.....

Those of you that have not seen joy this year, you will see Joy - Amen!

Nobody will sell your Joy - Amen!

Nobody will buy your Joy - Amen!

If you believe you are going to enjoy the joy of the Lord, jump up and shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Well, if you ask me, what is Joy?

What is Joy?

Joy is one of the fruits of the Spirit

Joy is the fruitvof the Spirit and you can get it in Galatians 5:22

22. But the fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, longsuffering, gentleness, goodness, faith

Joy and love works together

I want to prophecy to you today, if you have never seen somebody to care for you, to love you, after this program, Somebody will pick you up - Amen!

Somebody will bless you - Amen!

Somebody will take you to your next level - Amen!

Somebody will announce you higher - Amen!

Hatred shall depart from - Amen!

Those who hate you will go away from your life - Amen!

Those who don't want to see you, will go away from your life - Amen!

Can I hear you shout the largest Amen - Amen!

I said joy is one of the gift of the Spirit and I said you can get it from Galatians 5:22.

Another point am going to make is Joy is the strength of every believer.

Joy is the strength of every believer.

Nehemiah 8:10, just put it down because of time.

Joy is strength of every believer to deliver you from shame.

So prophecy to you as long as you are a believer or if you are not a believer before you go, Joy will enter your life - Amen!

And that Joy is Jesus

You will never go empty handed - Amen!

If you are a believer, shout I have strength.....

Please say it three times.....

I have strength.....

I have strength.....

I have strength.....

You are saying it as if you don't understand

If you are a believer and you don't have strength, the enemy will be beating you up every time

But when you have strength, when they come because the joy is always there with you, the joy of the Lord not the joy of money

The joy of money will fail

The joy of beauty will fail

The joy of favour will fail

But the joy of the Lord will never fail

So your joy will never fail - Amen!

So your joy will never fail - Amen!

If it has failed before, from now it will never fail again - Amen!

I speak in the name that is above every other name,

I command every joy that the enemy took away from you that should have been your strength

That should have been your power That should have been your covering, to return back to you - Amen! Every glory that has to favour you to return back - Amen! Lift up your hands and say, I receive back Lift up your hands two hands and say, Father in the name of Jesus Christ, I receive back my Joy, my strength You my strength wherever they tie you, wake up and work for me - Amen! I'm a child of God, am a royal child I have been redeemed by the blood of the lamb and no power can stop me I have the joy of the Lord If you have the Joy of the Lord, jump up and shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah! Number Three - Joy opens a new chapter in our life Joy opens a new chapter in our life When Mary visited Elizabeth and there the baby in her womb leaped up The Holy Ghost baptized and a new chapter was opened for Elizabeth.

I prophecy to somebody hearing the sound of my voice, that after this program, a new chapter will be opened in our lives - Amen!

That chapter that they closed will be opened - Amen

Shall be opened - Amen Shall be opened - Amen

Shall be opened - Amen

Shall be opened - Amen

Shall be opened - Amen

Shall be opened - Amen

Shall be opened - Amen

Shall be opened - Amen

If you are the person, shout the loudest Amen - Amen! Glory be to God - Hallelujah!

I remember, am going back to Psalm 30:5

Am going to major there now because of time

Psalm 30:5, it says,

For his anger endureth but a moment; in his favour is life: weeping may endure for a night, but joy cometh in the morning.

For what..... a night.....

Some of you, you did not enjoy this year

Everyday is weeping and weeping but I stand to let you know that from today, joy will take away that weeping - Amen!

Joy Cometh, that means joy is looking for somebody

Joy is looking for somebody to wipe away the tears

Joy is looking for somebody to honour

Joy is looking for somebody to give life

So I prophecy to you, you will not die this year - Amen!

You will not die this year - Amen!

The favour of God will overtake you - Amen!

Your Amen is weak - Amen!

If you know you will see the end of this year, jump up and say the loudest Amen - Amen!

Somebody is not jumping.....

If you know that you know that they will not bury you with this year, jump up and shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

You are the one am talking to.....

Joy Cometh in the morning

Peter Simon, he went a fishing in the night

This is a man that was a specialist in fishing, but that night and the fishes ran away, cray fish say No and he refused to go away because he knows he cannot face his wife

I perceive you have a nagging wife

I perceive the woman would say you will not enter here until you bring fish He was there until the Bright and Morning Star came Jesus is about to enter your boat - Amen! I prophecy it to you, your suffering is over - Amen! That your suffering is over - Amen! Whoever that detained you, you are coming out - Amen! Their hands would wither away - Amen!

Can I hear you shout Jesus - Jesus!

You are about to do it, to show that you know Him

He is our King

He is our Saviour

He is our Lord

136

He said that Joy cometh in the morningmorning

So those who used to know you in the night, after this program, they will no more meet you in the night - Amen!

I speak to you wherever you are hearing the sound of my voice, lift up your hands and shout my night is over!

Glory be to God - Hallelujah!

I didn't hear your voice, I want to hear your voice.....

Let people in your village hear your voice.....

Let people in Nigeria hear your voice.....

| My night is over!                |
|----------------------------------|
| My shame is over!                |
| My sickness is over!             |
| Go ahead and tell them, yes, yes |
| Joy has come, joy has come       |
| Go ahead and shout it            |
| Joy has come                     |
| Joy has come into my heart       |
| Joy had come into my home        |
| Into my marriage                 |
| Into my education                |
| Into my business                 |
| Into whatever I am doing         |
| Joy has come!                    |

If you are that person that knows that joy has come, please stand If you know that joy has come, stand Thank you darling, thank you

Hear me, when joy came, prosperity came

All the people that left him came back And those who did not believe in him, they believed in him His boat started sinking, he called them He said hello, you my people All of una wey leave me, God don bless me Eeeh, God don bless me ooooooo I want you to tell someone by your side, God don bless me ooooooo All of dem, wet leave me, hear my voice Something don happen, my story don change Tell them say, my story don change You don know me before but now My story don change! My story don change! My story don change! My story don change! Tell them, tell them, go around and tell somebody My story don change oooooooo Tell them my story has changed MEDIA CRE You no know me again You no recognize me again

Because the master has change my story If you believe that, shout the loudest Amen - Amen! I stand in this name to prophecy to you, to somebody As many that are hearing the sound of my voice, hear you the word of God 2019 will be your year of joy - Amen! I prophecy to the four corners of this earth 2019 will release your blessings - Amen! Will release your blessings - Amen!

Will release your prosperity - Amen! Will release your favour - Amen! Will release your open doors - Amen!

| You are the best!  |
|--|
| You are the best!  |
| If you know you are the best, shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah! |
|  |
| We are about to shout Jesus                                  |
| We will shout His name                                       |
| He's the Kings of Kings                                      |
| I have seen people that get money but dem no get joy         |
| I've seen people, dem get money but dem kill themselves      |
| But I want to let you know,                                  |
| God will give you money this money this year - Amen!         |
| You no go beg again - Amen!                                  |
| You no go lack - Amen!                                       |
| You no go beg - Amen!  |
| You no go lack - Amen!                                       |
| You no go want - Amen!                                       |
|  |

I command sickness to die in your system - Amen! Every sickness in your body, I command it to die - Amen! I command that sickness that your doctor says is incurable

I command that sickness, die in the name of Jesus - Amen! Die in the name of Jesus - Amen! By the stripes of Jesus Christ, you are healed - Amen! You are healed - Amen! And I prophecy to you that any principality and power that detain you They will let you go - Amen!

They will let you go - Amen! They will let you go - Amen!

Do you believe they will let you go? If you believe they will let you go Shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

The Bible says that Joy Cometh - When? In the morning.

Don't be afraid of the night. We are going to call Jesus. When we call Him, you will see Him.

Whatever you have not been able to do for several years, He will do it - Amen!

And you are not born again, call Jesus into your heart.

Now we are ready

Are you standing, thank you for standing.

Now we are going to go - Jesus. Shout it:

Can we go - Jesus!

Go ahead shout that Name Jesus - Jesus!

Go ahead shout that Name Jesus - Jesus!

Shout that Name Jesus - Jesus!

Go ahead and shout and shout and shout and shout and shout and shout and shout

Somebody you are not shouting - Jesus Somebody you are not shouting - Jesus

Shout that Name - Jesus! Shout that Name - Jesus!

**COMPILATIONS BY** 

MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND BANJO ADESOLA © DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW

# DAY 4 - EVENING - TALK 1 -FROM GLORY TO GLORY - PASTOR TAIWO ODUKOYA

#### (SENIOR PASTOR, FOUNTAIN OF LIFE MINISTRIES, ILUPEJU, LAGOS)

#### DATE: 6TH DECEMBER, 2018

#### **TEXT: ROMANS 5: 17-18 AND 2 CORINTHIANS 3:18**

Somebody shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah. If you know you will experience the greatest breakthrough in this Conference, let your shout be louder than everybody's shout. Shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

I count it always a very high privilege and a great honour to stand before God's great people. And I want to say: Thank you very much ma and thank you very much sir, for giving me the privilege.

GLORY TO GLORY!

For our Scriptures, I like us to turn to the book of Roman 5:17-18. Then we read 2 Corinthians 3:18.

Romans 5: 17-18 ERMEDIA CREW

17. For if by one man's offence death reigned by one; much more they which receive abundance of grace and of the gift of righteousness shall reign in life by one, Jesus Christ.)

18. Therefore as by the offence of one judgment came upon all men to condemnation; even so by the righteousness of one the free gift came upon all men unto justification of life.

Then 2 Corinthians 3:18 says:

"But we all, with open face beholding as in a glass the glory of the Lord, are changed into the same image from glory to glory, even as by the Spirit of the LORD."

### **OPENING PRAYER:**

143

Father I receive utterance in the Name of Jesus. I ask for understanding for my hearers. Take all the Glory in Jesus Name - Amen!

The concept laid out in Roman 5:17 is clear. Some Theologian would call it "The Roles of Federation". But anyhow we call it, it's an allusion of the Covenant. I have been looking at it for some time and it has affected me tremendously.

Permit me to say quickly, the first time I had the privilege of sitting in the presence of Daddy G.O, I asked him a question. Then he was in our Church and I was with my late wife. Daddy had come to Minister to us and we sat there. And I was just kind of struck it all. I was just praying inwardly and looking. Then my late wife said: Ask him question. And I remembered the first question I asked him was: Sir, you have an usual understanding of the Covenant. I..., can I ask if there are certain things you want to tell me?

Daddy, laughed... he went on ha ha ha ha ... He said few things, as it were. So I looked at it; and I began to look at it in this particular way: that the concept of the Federal Head should be such that: "You present your champion; if your champion wins, you win. If we defeat your champion, you are our slaves".

And Paul looked at that and decided to teach us that the life we are living in, something is happening. It is the question of: who is reigning in life? Who is reigning in my life? Who is reigning in your life? What is reigning in my life and your life?

It is either sin is reigning or you are reigning by the Grace of God.

I pray for you today, and I decree in the Name of Jesus, that for the rest of your life; you will reign as Kings/Queens - Amen!

The Wayman version says: "those who have received the overflow of Grace and the gift of righteousness will reign in this life as Kings."

So I ask myself a question: Are there still such people here? Yes! Are they on earth? Yes! Who are they? They are those who have received abundance of Grace. Who are they? Those who have received the Grace of righteousness.

If you are one of those here today, you know that you are born again, you have received the abundance of Grace and the gift of righteousness; Shout "Am a King/Queen in the Name of Jesus".

I can't hear you - Am a King/Queen in the Name of Jesus.

The Bible says: sin reigns through one man. And that got me looking at the Book of Genesis. And I looked at how God created, and everything that has God's Signature rules. The Bible says in verse 18; it says God created the two (2) Lights: Sun to rule by day, the Moon to rule by night. Then He created the fishes in the sea. He said, let the fish bring out abundance. And He said to them ... In fact, the Bible says: He blessed them and He said to them, multiple and fill the Medium. The same thing to the fowl of the air.

... Filling the medium is subduing your medium; subduing your environment; subduing where I have put you.

But when He came to man, Ladies and Gentlemen, in Genesis 1:28; you read that: "And God blessed them, and God said unto them, Be fruitful, and multiply, and replenish the earth, and subdue it: and have dominion over the fish of the sea, and over the fowl of the air, and over every living thing that moveth upon the earth."

So man was created for an OVER and ABOVE life. God actually created a King on earth.

I mean, if you are going to be in His image and after His likeness, and we are going to have Dominion; then we just have to be like Him: High and Lifted up!

Isaiah said that: the year that King Uzziah died "I the Lord"; He was High and Lifted up.

If He has created us in His image and after His likeness, and given us dominion. No wonder we are created OVER!
Tell your neighbour, say: Am created OVER! I can't hear you - Am created OVER - Hallelujah!

But you see: as high as man was; as full of authority as he was - he fell. He lost it, he exchanged it for Nothing. Man fell and this concept started to play. He damned fell. And I looked at the concept, and I found it again in Hebrews. Talking of the Levi; He said: Levi gave tithe and received tithe and I began to wonder where is Levi and Melchizedek. He said he was in the bosom of Abraham.

So when Abraham and Melchizedek were exchanging title on the communion; everything in Abraham gave Tithe! So, you see the concept running through the Bible.

Am here to say that the Glory of the Lord in your life can never, never go down, in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

Follow me closely; if man shaded things as it were and man became subdued for the first time. So Adam took all of us and moved us into the kingdom of darkness.

Somebody say, the first regeneration was not from darkness to light. It was from light to darkness. The first being born again was not from darkness to light. It was from light to darkness.

Permit me to describe this in Glory Parlance "Everything that bears God's Signature carries His own Glory". Because He is the Lord of Glory. He is the Most Glorious. And that is why you read from the Epistles of Paul it says: "There's one Glory of the sun, there's one Glory of the moon. There's one Glory of the star."

No star; no two (2) stars have the same Glory: they differ in Glory!

145

God has created you with Glory; you carry God's Glory. There is a Glory of the Terrestrial; there is a Glory of the Celestial. Any person that bears His Signature has it!

So, still talking about this concept; then the issue of this scripture is: "It is who is reigning".

So Adam lost it! And permit me to make some assertions here, because of my time -"The natural man, no matter how good, no matter how intelligent, no matter how rich, no matter how high, by default: is a slave."

He said: what do you mean? It means: Whatever they have and they are priding themselves; does not last. "It is ONLY what the Lord does, that last forever".

And we too, though by creation we were Kings but when we lost it by default; we became Slaves!

Hear it in another way; He said: For all have sinned, and come short of the Glory of God;

So, we were born with Glory and birthed in Glory. But then, we fell short. We lost a lot of things when man fell.

I am talking of the Federal Head; am talking of Adam. For everyone born of a woman " suffered the consequences of sin".

But thank God for JESUS. Because it didn't stop there; it says: but all who have received the abundance of Grace and the gift of righteousness "Will Reign in Life".

Am saying in this Service; Your Next Level is Unquestionable in the Name of Jesus! You are Unstoppable!

You say how? How did it happened? Permit me to quote my first Law of Motion: "Everybody born of a woman is heading for hell 'tarara (straight without stopping)'; except it is acted upon by the Love of Christ".

And my Bible tells me in 2 Corinthians 5:21: "For He hath made Him to be sin for us, who knew no sin; that MOSES/TITILAYOMI might be made the righteousness of God in Him."

I have the righteousness of Christ; I have received it. Have you received it? If you have received it: shout Amen - AMEN! I can't hear you: If there is anybody here or reading,

who has received the gift if righteousness; let him/her shout Amen - AMEN! You are a KING on earth!

Early in the Ministry, the Lord spoke to me. He said: "Any time you hold the Mic (microphone) before my children; you are addressing Kings and Leaders.

And I say to you, "I am talking to LEADERS!" You may not look like it, you may not smell like it; but I know that as you behold Him as in a mirror; "It is from Glory to GLORY!" You will get there in the Name of Jesus.

Hallelujah. I say hallelujah - Hallelujah!

And so Jesus, who knew no sin became sin. What did Jesus do? Ephesians 2:1-6 (Refer).

Now hear me; what is the Transformation like? What is the Regeneration like? He came, you were dead in your trespasses. I was dead in my trespasses. I was heading no where but hell.

Ephesian 2:4 says: "But God, who is rich in mercy, for his great love wherewith He loved us".

Because of His great love. God loves you! Did you hear me? I said: God LOVES You!

He came and He quickened me.

SONG (in Yoruba dialect):

Opelope Re, Opelope Re,

Aiye i ba yeye me,

Opelope Re.

(But for your mercy Lord, the world would have ridiculed me)

He quickened me together with Him. He raised me together with Him. He made me to sit down together with Him. In heavenly places; high above all principalities.

Are you Born Again? Have you received abundance of Grace? Have you received the Gift of Righteousness?

... You are seated with Him above all Powers and Principalities.

Now hear me; by default today, you are a king. Did you hear me? I said you are a KING!

Now you say; why are you saying this? Because in the Kingdom; if you don't know, you can't benefit from it. Well, if you know and you forget; you won't benefit from it.

Thank God for the Holy Ghost; He will not only teach you. He will also take the things of the Master and reveal them to us by Revelation. He will REMIND us; He will GUIDE us; He will LEAD us.

Let me put this to you again: Your Next Level is Unquestionable, in the Name of Jesus.

Am still going; but let me just teach you one more thing about this Creation Thing: "Everything that God created; He created to INCREASE! He created to Grow!" Everything He created, He blessed. He said: be fruitful, multiply and replenish.

You see, Increase is fundamental to the Kingdom. If it is of God; you will INCREASE!

Glory be to God in the highest. I say: Glory be to God in the highest.

If anything will stop your increase in life, it will be because you are yet to get Born Again. Or because you are Born Again but you don't know who you are or what you have in Christ Jesus.

... But NOW you know!

I decree in the Name of Jesus; By the time you are leaving this Congress Ground; you would have been moved Up: going higher and higher; and higher and higher, in the Name of Jesus.

We used to sing this song in the University. I didn't know then, but I later understood the meaning.

Am going higher, yes I am; am going higher today (2ce)

Reigning with Jesus today,

Am going above the shadow,

Into the presence of God,

Into the presence of Jesus,

Am going higher today.

So I used to wonder; Now let me explain this, so that you can understand: this story in 1 Samuel 17.

... I don't want to dwell on it, because of my time.

Remember, King Saul had taken the children of Israel to war against the Philistines. And the Philistines had a Champion - GOLIATH! The description of this man and his armour was enough to intimidate any man.

And this guy will not just keep quiet! He will come out and blaspheme God; despise the King of Israel; despised the Armies of Israel and despised the God of Israel. And the Bible says; he did it for Forty (40) days and Forty (40) nights.

Whatever has been despising your God is troubled tonight, in the Name of Jesus - Amen. They will know a King/Queen has arrived, in the Name of Jesus - Amen! Forty (40) days and Forty (4) nights; and the king will run. All the people in the Army will run. And nobody will dare challenge him. And then by "Divine Orchestration"; the boy (David) was called to run an errand for the people.

... There is nothing "small" that God will not use: that will not invariably be a blessing, no matter how small.

Then he did what he had to do. The Bible makes us to understand that he left his sheep in the care of someone; and then he ran to the war front. And so it happened, that when David was coming in, was when Goliath was coming to BRAG!

Everything that has been rising against you; trying to prevent you from going to your Next Level: It shall be BURIED on this Ground, in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

So he (Goliath) came to brag at that time David was coming in. And it was such a coincidence. Though there is no coincidence with God.

And at that time, David stopped short and listened to the bragging of Goliath. Then he said, "What will happen to the man that fights him?"

... And I tell you why in a minute. You say why? I will tell you. Because, of all Old Testament Saints, ONLY David knew that he was a King.

At least I support it with the Bible. I stand to be corrected; but I support it with the Bible: ONLY David knew that he was a King!

You say how? Psalm 8:1, 3-5 says:

1. O LORD, our Lord, how excellent is thy Name in all the earth! who hast set thy Glory above the heavens.

3. When I consider thy heavens, the work of thy fingers, the moon and the stars, which thou hast ordained;

4. What is man, that thou art mindful of him? and the son of man, that thou visitest him?

5. For thou hast made him a little lower than the angels, and hast crowned him with Glory and Honour.

... You crowned him with Glory and Honour!

No wonder when God was looking for a King; he went into the wilderness.

When you know who you are; Heaven will always look for you.

After this Congress, they will look for you. I say: You are the next Glory! They will look for you; because Heaven has chosen you. You are a King on earth in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

What will happen? At this time his elder brother came and said: "I know you like to dig to things that you are not called to do; with whom did you leave those few sheep?"

Men may decide to bring you down, but because God has earmarked your next level; No man can put you DOWN - Amen!

Is someone hearing me? I say God has lifted you up; no man can put you down, in the Name of Jesus - Amen! Your Next Level is a MUST, in the Name of Jesus - Amen. Never mind all those who are saying rubbish about you. It is sheer jealousy! One thing you don't want to do: is to LOOSE FOCUS!

... So we behold as in a mirror.

Keep your focus! You are doing a great work. I say you are doing a great work. Heaven is applauding you. Hallelujah! In the Name of Jesus - Amen.

He moved to the second person. But he answered the brother before he left. He said: Sir, Brother, "Is there no cause?" If somebody had taken on this man, will I be here?

There is a Goliath that you are about to bring down. And up until now, the whole of creation has been waiting for you. Your Time has come, in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

And while he was asking; they took him to the King. Guess what he said? He said, Sir! "Let no man's heart fail him". He knew he was a King!

No wonder the lion will always trouble David. Not with any other man, but with David. How? He said he has put him under his feet. He knew it! No wonder he will go after a bear to rear it. Because he KNEW!

"Let no man's heart fails him; your servant will go and fight him"

He said: Whose son are you? He said, I am the son of Jesse the Bethlemite, your Servant. I keep my father's sheep. And when the bear will come, I will go after the bear, pull up the kid and tear the bear.

Because he knew: "Am deck with Glory and Honour." Am deck with God's Majesty. All things: including lion and bear are beneath me.

They that know their God will be what? Strong! And they will do what? Exploits!

You will rise out of this Congress to do unusual exploits in the Name of Jesus - Amen. Your Next Level is a must, in Jesus Name - Amen.

"Ibaje enia ko le da ise Oluwa duro (the wickedness of man cannot stop God's work).

Let me finish this; and then the King said something to David. He said: eeh! You are just a youth; you are not able to fight him. He said, he is a Warrior right from his youth.

Sir, he was a Warrior from his youth. I can as well be a Warrior from NOW! If he has been a Warrior from his youth; then my own Warrior starts NOW!

I declare to someone here today or reading; Your Warrior Nature will begin to manifest from today, in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

Please permit me to say this: Enough of the days of "jatijati" (rubbish). Today, it is bye bye to "Jatijati" (rubbish).

You are busy doing good works for the Lord. Let no man's storm disturb you. We condemn those storms now, in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

Then Saul gave him some armour; he wore the armour. David moved and he fell. He said: Sir! I am not used to this.

... And that's why; what you are not used to, DON'T USE!

God will never call you without equipping you. Appreciate God enough, to appreciate what He has given you. That's how you carry Glory.

He ran into the battle; holding a staff and a sling: with five (5) smooth stones. Come on, Can I speak to someone here today or reading? What you will use to overcome will look so meaningless to the world. But thereafter; they will sing the praises of your God, in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

The Bible says: he ran in there, and we were told in that Scripture that Goliath cursed him. Let me speak Yoruba: "Goliath fi David bu!" (Goliath cursed David). If it was today, you will say: Curse ko, Curse ni! (Which one is curse).

David didn't even care, because "A curse causeless shall not come!" When you know that you REIGN over things here; he didn't even bother himself, he ran forward!

And then Goliath said: Am I a dog? He said it and he died like a dog. Then he also boasted; he said: "I will cut off your head and give it to the dogs". David said "Iro lo pa!"

(You are bluffing)! I will kill you; not only cut off your head, your flesh and the flesh of your entire Army. I will use them to serve the kites of the field. Only ONE SHOT!

Can I explain to you ..., you know what we do in Congresses like this? We came to be Prepared. We came to be Sharpened. We came to be Thrilled, and to be Released!

I was listening to Daddy yesterday, he said: can you imagine the Body of Jesus, and then Paul; he said: and you too. I said AMEN!

You are here to be: focused, sharpened and released! You are coming back with Testimonies in the Name of Jesus.

He killed Goliath!

154

Now the question is this: King Saul was in the war front - the Champion of Israel; and Goliath, the Champion of the Philistines was there. But who was the King in the war front? It was David, who was the King. It was David.

As I close, I want to say this; from today: Know that He who has started this Good Works in you will always bring it to perfection, in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

When we say GLORY TO GLORY; it is as related to us, not God. God is the embodiment of Glory. He is Glory Personified. We are the ones that change from day to day; from Glory to GLORY.

From today, begin to rise in the Name of Jesus into your Next Level and into your Next Strength. Grow in Grace. I say grow in Favour in the Name of Jesus - Amen. Grow in knowledge, Grow in wisdom. I say increase in Strength in the Name of Jesus - Amen.

Paul said: "my little children in whom I laboured until Christ be formed in them."

The time is coming, when as you walk the street of Lagos; they will be calling: "Is this another Jesus?" And so shall it be in Jesus Name - Amen!

Shall we rise! If you are a King/Queen rise up and shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Just this SONG as I go with my Bible. It says:

When you see me dance

I dance like a Winner.

When you hear me shout

I shout like a Winner.

I want to hear you SHOUT! I can't hear you; I want to hear you shout the SHOUT OF A KING (5 Times).

... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... Reaching out to the world through the Power of the Gospel!

# D<sub>COMPILATIONS BY</sub> ERY MEDIA CREW

# MOSES DURODOLA AND TITILAYOMI AJAYI

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DAY 4 – SPECIAL TALK AND PRAYER 2 – THE PATH OF THE JUST - PASTOR AYODELE JOSEPH ORITSEJAFOR

# (FOUNDING AND SENIOR PASTOR OF WORD OF LIFE BIBLE CHURCH, WARRI, DELTA STATE NIGERIA)

### DATE: 6TH DECEMBER, 2018

#### **BIBLE TEXT: PROVERBS 4:18**

Go ahead and shout hallelujah - Hallelujah! I say wave your hands and shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!.

Go ahead over there, wave your hands and shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Thank you sir, thank you ma.

Proverbs 4: 18 - But the path of the Just is as shining light, that shineth more and more unto the Perfect day

Now, what is a PATH?

A Path is a narrow rough way that can take you from point A to point B.

... Please stay with me!

156

Incidentally or coincidentally, Jesus said in Matthew 7:14 - "Because strait is the gate, and narrow is the way, which leadeth unto life, and few there be that find it."

If you want the life of God, you must travel on that narrow way. Well, if you must travel on the narrow way; then, you must be born again. You must receive Jesus as your Lord and Personal Saviour.

In 2 Corinthians 5:17, the Bible says: Therefore if any man be in Christ, he is a new creature: old things are passed away; behold, all things are become new.

As you hear me tonight or reading; you are either Old or New. But I speak into your life; that because of this Congress, God has made you NEW.

I say: God has made you New (twice). If you believe it, wave your hands and shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

But a PATH can also be described as "Divine Direction" in the journey of life - Divine Direction in the journey of life.

For Warri where I come from, some people dey miss road; them dey miss road

Even when there is Divine Direction; there are many in the Church who still cannot find their way. They love God; they are serving God. But they still miss their way.

Why? Because there is no LIGHT. Everybody say: Light - Light! I can't hear you say: Light - Light!

No wonder David said in Psalm 119:105 - "Thy word is a lamp unto my feet, and a light unto my path."

... So, even with Divine Direction; you will still miss your way WITHOUT the Light. It is the Word of God that gives you Light, as you go along that pathway.

Everyone hearing the sound of my voice or reading this message; there is a Path, there is a way. There is a direction that God has already created for you.

... You will arrive at your destination - Amen! You will not miss your way ooooh! You will arrive

You see, the Nation of Israel rebelled against the Word of God. And because of that; for thirty eight (38) years, they went round and round in circles.

... Thirty eighty (38) wasted, round and round.

But in Deuteronomy 2:3, God spoke. And then God spoke through Moses, and then He said: "Ye have compassed this mountain long enough: turn you northward."

Hear me tonight (or reading) this message; eleven (11) months have come and gone. You have compassed this mountain long enough. You have been going round and round in circles.

There are some women here, or reading now; in these eleven (11) months, you have had up to six (6) miscarriages. I have come to tell you; get ready for your twins, as you enter the New Year.

Some of you have become frustrated with life in the past eleven (11) months. You have laboured, but you have nothing to show for it. Enough is Enough! You have been suffering from what many people will call "Near Success Syndrome"

... For Warri, we go say "You don nearly get am; but you no take am".

I prophecy on you, wherever you are hearing the sound of my voice or reading this message; what you couldn't get in the eleven (11) months that have passed: in the remaining twenty five (25) days of this year (2018), God will put it in your hands.

Eeh! I say God will put it in your hands - Amen!

If it is this God that gives Divine Direction; He will direct your steps. You will meet the right people. You will enter the right contacts.

If you believe it, I want you to shout a loud Amen - Amen!

... It is your Time!

In the remaining twenty five (25) days of this year, the devil is a liar. Whatever made you cry in the past eleven (11) months; get ready for your Laughter. Oh! I say, get ready for your Isaac. Get ready for your Laughter! Testimony upon Testimony.

We serve a Mighty God. He is the same yesterday, He is the same today, He is the same forever.

If you believe it, wave your hands; shout YES!

Twenty five (25) days; oh my goodness! God is going to do wonders in your life: What your eyes have not seen, what your ears have not heard; it has not even come into your heart to think of it. God will do it in your life. Oh! Even your enemies will celebrate with you.

You see, in this life, people will either PITY you or ENVY you. Just one (1)! Don't be afraid when people envy you.

... Na because you carry something; you get something wey them no get: you get the thing wey them dey find.

It is better for people to envy you. You don't need people to pity you. Are you hearing what I am saying? If you believe me, wave your hands, shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

As am speaking, the Power of God is coming to you. Even during this Congress, your Testimonies will begin. Many of you, your phone, when you leave this Hall today, in the morning, it will begin to ring for you. Good news is coming into your phone; coming into your life! God, who is directing your step is directing you to your Miracle: to your breakthrough.

If you believe it, wave your hands, shout Yes!

... It is your season!

158

Ladies and Gentlemen, Christmas is not just a day; Christmas is a Season! And Jesus is the REASON for the Season!

May I Prophecy to you, that in this twenty five (25) days; Oh my goodness! Those who used to pity you: they will look for you and celebrate you.

It looks like nothing is happening in your Ministry - in these twenty five (25) days, Heaven is going to open for you - Amen! In these twenty five (25) days, God will take you from where you are; He will take you to where you are supposed to be!

If you believe, shout a loud Amen - Amen!

... My God! There is Power in this place.

You know, in the Bible, the Words of God is described as a Covenant; it is described as a voice. It is also described as the Will of God.

1 John 5:14-15, the Bible says:

14. And this is the confidence that we have in Him, that, if we ask any thing according to His Will, He heareth us:

15. And if we know that He hear us, whatsoever we ask, we know that we have the petitions that we desired of Him.

Make you settle, no fear. Ma beru! (Meaning fear not). No shake! For waterside wey I come from, we no dey fear there ooooh! No fear.

This God who is directing your steps; the next twenty five (25) days; this is the confidence, according to 1 John 5:14-15. I don't know why? God is just asking me to key into these twenty five (25) days remaining. There is something about these twenty five (25) days remaining.

My God! You have been looking for work. "Dem go come your house come tell you say: come go start work". Amen!

Within these twenty five (25) days; somebody you showed kindness to many years ago and you have forgotten about it; they will remember you in these twenty five (25) days. Ah! Somebody is coming to wake up your dreams. Great things are about to begin to happen to you.

The PATH of the righteous; God will direct your Path. He will lead you one step at a time. If you are with me, wave your hands, shout Yes!

Nothing can stop you now! Twenty five (25) days. I know 2019 is going to be Fantastic.." For the next twenty five (25) days, "God go give you the thing wey you go carry ENTER 2019".

He will give you something with which you will enter the New Year. You will not enter the New Year empty handed - Amen!

If you believe me, I want your Amen to be very powerful - AMEN!

Raise your hands, say Lord; I will not enter the New Year empty handed. If you believe it, let your Amen shake this place - Amen!

Miracles are happening all over this building. Everywhere (5 times); all over this building; everywhere. The Hands of God is moving.

He said I should tell you: beginning from right now (3 times); your life is about to change forever - Amen!

Where I come from, dem dey sing one song: "If you know me before oooh; you no go know me again".

God will so drastically change your life in these twenty five (25) days; such that those who knew you before, they will wonder if it is the same person - If it is the same man and if it is the same woman.

You don't serve a "dead God". Your serve a Living God! He is the same yesterday, He is the same today, He is the same forever!

If you believe it, wave your hands, shout Yes!

In 2 Chronicles 13: 2-15 (we will dwell on these verses of scripture, so please note).

The Bible tells us that there was War! Don't be afraid of war. There was war between King Abijah of Judah and King Jeroboam of Israel. There was war!

Hear me and hear me well, the war your grandfather could not win; that he transferred to your father. Your father could not win; he transferred to you. You will be the one to make the difference in your family - Amen!

Listen! Listen to me; make I follow una talk small.

Sir, I don't know if I have ever told you; my father died at the age of thirty four (34) years. He went to Ilesha Grammar School. One day, I will tell you the history. He died at thirty four (34). His brother that looked exactly like him died at thirty four (34) - His elder sister told me.

I was born here in Lagos (Nigeria), Isale Eko. Yes, it is true! So, my sister said (because he died when I was still very young); he drove himself to the hospital. They told him; relax, there is nothing wrong with you. By the time they got back, he was DEAD!

His younger brother, that looked exactly like him: was driving home from Lagos, somewhere around Ijebu Ode or so (in Western Nigeria). They brought him back to the hospital in Lagos - Igbobi. It was something about his knee. They fixed it; he went home.

But about a week after, he became sick somehow. Feeling funny. So he drove himself to the hospital. It was on a Sunday. They gave him a bed. They said: ok, we will observe you. He was reading Newspaper and he died!

Sir, when I turned thirty four (34) years old and that was just recently (laughter all over). That's true; Just recently!

When I turned thirty four (34); I became very sick. One night, around 1.00am; I heard a voice that said: I will kill you as I killed your father.

... It was then I realised that it was a "Family Battle".

Am not telling this story just for telling sake. God told me to tell my story, because of many of you listening/reading. Some of you are Pastors. Your fathers could not win the battles; your grandfather did not win: But you will be the FIRST to win this battle.

Oh yes! I prayed till 7.00am in the morning. And the Lord said to me: "IT IS DONE!"

I have outgrew my father (few years). Nobody dies at thirty four (34) years old ANYMORE in my family. The battle is over!

Because God is directing your steps, you hearing me/reading during this Congress; you will finish the battle - Amen! I said, you will finish the battle here. If you believe it, wave your hands and shout hallelujah ooooh!

... I said if you believe me, wave your hands and shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Alright! In 2 Chronicles 13:2-15; verse 3 Jeroboam had eight hundred thousand (800,000) men, Abijah had four hundred thousand (400,000) men.

How do fight a man that has double your number?

... It's either you are mad; or you know something your enemy does not know.

That takes us quickly to verse 5; and Abijah said to Jeroboam: let's use the King James language, "Ought ye not to know?"

"You no suppose know?" (Na waterside I come from).

In other words, I already know, but it looks like you don't know. That is why you brought eight hundred thousand (800,000) men.

Because if you knew; you won't come to this battle. You are already a loser before you came here. He said; you mean you don't know that God gave the kingdom of Israel to David and his sons forever - by a Covenant of Salt.

Are you hearing what am saying? It is the Word of God: You shall live and not die. It is the Word of God: You will be head and not the tail. It is the Word of God: You will be on top and not beneath.

If you believe it shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Oh Yes! Proverbs 4:18 (our Bible Text); that is the verse - "But the path of the Just is as the shining light, that shineth more and more unto the perfect day."

... You get Light so you no go miss road. You get Light, you will not take the wrong step. You have Light, you will not go in the wrong direction. You have Light, you will know where to go; when to go and how to go - You will take your enemies by surprise.

If you believe me, let me hear that AMEN like thunder - AMEN!

Go to verse 14, Jeroboam came from the back and came from the front. Let them come: from the Left and from the right; from the back and from the front.

God is a Promise Keeper! Whatever He has said, is guiding your steps. I said: what God he said is guiding your steps.

You will be a SURPRISE to your enemies. If you believe it, wave your hands and shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

In that same verse 5; the Priest blew the trumpet. I like verse 15: and the people of Israel, the men, SHOUTED! With a great shout.

I have been hearing a lot of Speakers tonight, talking about that shout!

Go ahead; SHOUT, SHOUT, SHOUT!

Alright, hold on, hold on. Wait, wait, wait! Because am about to close. Listen to me; when you shout, you are declaring your Victory ahead of time; in twenty five (25) days!

Open your mouth and Shout, Shout! Stand up on your feet shout, shout, SHOUT!!!!!



... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... Reaching out to the world through the Power of the Gospel!

COMPILATIONS BY

162

#### MOSES DURODOLA AND TITILAYOMI AJAYI

#### © DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DAY 4 - EVENING TALK 2 - BEFORE YOU CALL: PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE

#### DATE: 6TH DECEMBER, 2018

#### **TEXT: ISAIAH 65:19-24**

Thank You Lord!

1. Well, let's go ahead and lift our hands to the Almighty God and let's give Him Glory, give Him Honour, give Him Adoration. Praise Him, Praise the King of kings. Worship the I AM THAT I AM. Give Him praise.

He is worthy to be Praised. He is worthy to be Adored. Magnify His Holy Name. Bless Him, He is worthy. Give Him Glory. Bless the King of kings and the Lord of lords.

Thank you Father; thank you Almighty God. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

2. Now lift your voice loud and clear, say Father; Every prayer I shall pray here today, please answer by Fire.

RY MEDIA CREW

... Go ahead, talk to the Almighty God.

VE

Thank you Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen.

SONG:

You are the Mighty God,

The Great I AM,

Hallelujah, Hallelujah!

#### **OPENING PRAYER:**

Father, we want to bless your Holy Name. Because you are the Almighty God. You are the I AM THAT I AM. You are the One who can change a Night of Sorrow to a Morning of Joy. Glory be to your Holy Name. Please accept our worship, in Jesus Name.

Thank you for what you did on Monday. Thank you for what you did on Tuesday. Thank you for what you did yesterday. Thank you for what you have already done tonight. Thank you in advanced for what you will do this weekend. Please accept our worship in Jesus Name.

Father, we are praying that tonight; every prayer we shall pray here would be answered by Fire. And all those who are listening to us all over the world (and all those reading worldwide); Father, answer their prayers also.

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Alright, let somebody sh<mark>out h</mark>allelujah - Hallelujah!

Well, shake hand with two (2) or there (3) people. Say: Good evening your Excellency! And then please be seated.

... All those who are coming for the first time may not understand you.

DISCOVERY MEDIA CR

The rest of you who have being coming since Monday; maybe you need to introduce yourself to one (1) or two (2) people besides you. Tell them who you are:

Tell them: I am the Light of the World. I am the Salt of the Earth. I am a Child of God. I am a Christian. I am a Branch of Life. And I am the Ambassador of Christ.

Glory be to God!

164

BIRTH REPORT: As of 7pm this night, the number of babies born during this Congress has risen to Twenty Eight (28). Well, the Girls are still leading - thirteen (13) boys and fifteen (15) girls.

Well, let the girls shout Praise the Lord and let the boys shout Hallelujah!

I want to thank God for the Great Men and Woman of God that have spoken before me today. It has been wonderful!

And if Thursday is like this; it makes you wonder what Friday will be like - am looking forward to a Glorious tomorrow. And I say: God will bless all the Ministries of the people who have ministered to us tonight, in Jesus Name - Amen.

Because our time is a bit far spent; I will move straight away to the Talk for tonight: BEFORE THEY CALL.

### BIBLE TEXT: ISAIAH 65:19-24

165

19. And I will rejoice in Jerusalem, and joy in my people: and the voice of weeping shall be no more heard in her, nor the voice of crying.

20. There shall be no more thence an infant of days, nor an old man that hath not filled his days: for the child shall die an hundred years old; but the sinner being an hundred years old shall be accursed.

21. And they shall build houses, and inhabit them; and they shall plant vineyards, and eat the fruit of them.

22. They shall not build, and another inhabit; they shall not plant, and another eat: for as the days of a tree are the days of my people, and mine elect shall long enjoy the work of their hands.

23. They shall not labour in vain, nor bring forth for trouble; for they are the seed of the blessed of the LORD, and their offspring with them.

24. And it shall come to pass, that before they call, I will answer; and while they are yet speaking, I will hear.

... You can put the Name of your Nation there.

God is going to hear somebody here tonight; and He WILL ANSWER!

## Why Do we Need to PRAY? Why pray at all?

Well, several reasons;

1. One of it will be because the Spiritual controls the Physical.

Whatever is happening in the Physical is controlled by what is happening in the Spiritual.

For example; Job didn't get into trouble until there was a discussion concerning him, between God and the devil.

In Joshua 6:20; men shouted and God responded in Heaven; and the wall of Jericho fell. I have heard a lot of shouting tonight; and I know many walls have already fallen.

But there is nothing wrong in shouting ANOTHER hallelujah - HALLELUJAH!

Why Pray? Because the Spiritual controls the physical.

Why Pray?

166

5

2. It is because there is Help for you.

You may not know where that help is; but God knows!

For example; years ago, I met a woman who said: she never wore the same dress twice. If she wears a dress now, that is the last time she will ever wear the dress. And so, the only problems she had was where to keep her dresses.

And there are some people who are still believing God for the dress they will wear at Christmas.

... So there is someone who has more than enough; and there is someone who does not have enough!

There is someone looking for Help; and there is someone who needs who to Help.

There is Help for you; and God knows where that Help is. That is why David said in Psalm 121:1-2:

1. I will lift up mine eyes unto the hills, from whence cometh my help.

2. My help cometh from the LORD, which made heaven and earth.

So why Pray?

3. It is because God can DIRECT Help to you.

He knows what you need, and can direct the one who can supply the needs.

For example, in 1 Kings 17:8-16; A widow had only one meal left and God directed a Prophet to her before it is too late.

Do I hear somebody say: Right Now Lord, send Help to me?

I have told you this story before; we were building the First Auditorium, in preparation for our First Convention. A man was driving past. We had only one (1) week to go before

the Convention. He was driving past; he wasn't a member of the Church. And he saw a Bulldozer there working, and branched.

What are you people doing here? Oh! We want to build a Camp. What for? For Convention. Oh! What do you need? I said: the only problem we have is that the land here is clay; as we are digging the well, the well kept on collapsing.

He said: What you need is a borehole. I said: I know that; where is the money? He said: I will build you one (1). But there is only one (1) week to go. He said: That is more than enough.

... Six (6) Days later, Water was flowing freely!

May I Prophesy to somebody here today; God will send Helpers to you - Amen!

Why Pray? Because God knows you need help; because He knows where Help is, He can direct Help to you. But He can do more than just direct the Help;

4. He can FORCE the one who must help you to come yo you.

In Genesis 41:1-44; the Bible said God had promised Joseph: You will sit on the Throne but he ended up in prison.

When the time came for the Almighty God, the One who can bring to past the fulfilment of God's Promises in the life of Joseph; gave two (2) bad dreams. And by the following morning, they have to send for Joseph. And the destiny of Joseph was accomplished.

I want to decree to someone here tonight (or reading); those who will help you to fulfil destiny: they will no longer rest until they bring the Help to you - Amen!

Am just going to tell you these few stories because we will soon be praying.

Again, I have told you; it is a story you know. We were building the First Auditorium. The carpenters came to me and said they needed N204 (Two hundred and Four Naira) for the work to continue. And at that time, I had not N1 (one Naira) left.

So, when they said they needed N204 (Two hundred and Four Naira), I said: it's ok, when I have the money I will send for you. The Leader was VERY CROSSED with me because he thought I was lying. And then he began to grumble as he was going: You are the one who will say the work is slow. We ask for only #204 (Two hundred and Four Naira) and you say you don't have. As he was grumbling away, I said to God: Daddy, I hope you are hearing?

I fell asleep; it was early on the morning, I had prayed all night, asking for Help. When I woke up, there was a man sitting in front of my office; sitting at the door eating breakfast. So I said: sir, what is the problem? He said; I have no problem. I just collected my house rent, I wanted to eat my breakfast; when God spoke to me and said : don't eat yet, take the money to my son in the Camp.

I collected the money from him. I prayed for him. He said, when I came and I saw you sleeping, I said: God can I eat now? I counted the money: it was N1,200 (One Thousand Two Hundred Naira). A thousand Naira more than I needed.

I decree to you one more time; May the people who should Help you, who are not Helping you now. From now on, they won't be able to sleep.

Why must I Pray? ERY MEDIA CREW

5. Because there are Heights that you cannot reach on your own. And yet, God wants to take you very high. God wants to take you very high.

The plan of God for you is GLORY. But on your own, you can't get there. So He needs to lift you up. You need the Everlasting ARMS of the Almighty God to bring you to such heights. When you pray, He will show you that what is impossible with man is possible with God.

I will tell you probably another story, this might be the last story I will be telling you tonight; before I tell you one (1) or two (2) more things and then we go and pray. Because tonight, YOU MUST PRAY!

I told the story when I was a little boy. And I was playing ball; it was this Tennis Ball -Old Tennis Ball that somebody gave to me. And I was kicking the balk all over the place. And I kicked it high, and it landed on the roof of our house. And the roof was thatched roof.

So because it was thatched roof with leaves; The ball got there and got stocked. If I move back, I can see the ball. So I took a big piece of wood and for me to reach the roof tip, I would have to move close. And as I move close, I can't see the ball again. I will move back, I will see the ball. I will move closer, I won't see the ball.

I was doing that again and again. And all the while, my father was sitting on a chair beside me; getting some fresh air. When I was tired of going forward and backward, I turned to my dad: Please help me; my ball fell on the roof.

He said to me; you know I am here and you didn't say anything. He got up, with one swing of his hand; he brought my ball back to me.

Today, the One with the Everlasting Arm; with one swing of His Hand, He is going to take you to that Height, in Jesus Name.

Now, when we pray; when we talk about prayer, there are three (3) Major Possibilities. Three (3) Major Possible Responses from God.

1. God could say: When they call, I WILL answer. "When they call"; because Jeremiah 33:3 "Call unto me, and I will answer thee, and shew thee great and mighty things, which thou knowest not."

Although He added in Isaiah 55:6-7

6. Seek ye the LORD while he may be found, call ye upon him while he is near:

7. Let the wicked forsake his way, and the unrighteous man his thoughts: and let him return unto the LORD, and he will have mercy upon him; and to our God, for he will abundantly pardon.

When you want to call, you MUST follow the Right Procedures. Psalm 50:14-15; He said:

i. You must come with Thanksgiving. You must thank Him for what He did in the past.

ii. He said you must pay your vows. That is a BIG one. Because some of us are still owing God several vows which we have not paid.

It is my prayer that the Almighty God will enable you to pay quickly.

iii. It is then He says: CALL! And I will ANSWER.

... So, that is possibility No. 1

2. There is Possibility No. 2: God could have said, Before they call I CAN answer.

I CAN; it doesn't mean <mark>I WIL</mark>L. Before they call I can answer.

Why? Because Acts 15:18 says He knows the end from the beginning.

For example, in Exodus 15:22-25, by the time the children of Israel got to Marah and they couldn't drink of the water; there was already a tree waiting by the riverside that God showed Moses to put in the what and the water became sweet.

He knows the end from the beginning. So He could say; ok before you call, I can answer. He is God, He is Sovereign. If you call and He doesn't answer, what are you going to do? You can't sue him?

But the BEST of all, which is the Good News I have for you;

3. BEFORE they call I WILL Answer.

God is going to answer somebody here tonight.

Why will He answer BEFORE you call?

Psalm 103:8 says that: "The LORD is Merciful and Gracious, slow to anger, and plenteous in Mercy."

... That is why He says before you call I will answer.

In Ephesian 2:4-5; He says because He is Rich in Mercy. He can reach down to you and help you. Even when you are still dead in sin and trespass.

But then He says there is another reason why He would answer before you call. And that is in Psalms 106:7-8; He said, I will do it just for my Name sake. Not because of you, not because of anything else. But for MY NAME SAKE!

He will answer you tonight, for various reasons:

1. Because you are a child of God.

2. Because you are His Branch.

3. Because you are His Ambassador.

Before you call, He WILL answer you!

And then probably you will be waiting for me the give you one (1) more Name. And you thought probably I forgot. But the New Name is in the Text I read to you.

-

ACR

It says: "THE ELECT of God".

Now what is the meaning of The Elect?

5

173

It means the Favourite! The Beloved. The one whom God has chosen to love.

Now, may I just give you an example. In John 13:21-26; The Lord was at Dinner Table with His Twelve (12) Apostles. And He began to talk, and He said that one of them was going to betray Him. And everybody was asking "Is it me?" And He was not forth coming.

Then Peter turned to John and said; ask Him, He will tell you. And so John; you know his Title is "The Beloved" drew close and said: Lord, who is the fellow? And there were Twelve (12) of them on the Table.

And Jesus said to him; don't let me mention his name. But I will show you a sign. I will take a bit of bread, out it in the stew and put it in the mouth of the fellow. Whose wer that fellow is, that is the Traitor.

Don't let anybody deceive you by saying that God loves us equally. That is not true. He loves me more than you. So if He loves you more than me, it means He doesn't love us equally.

There are some people; before they call, God answers. They have the kind of relationship with God that is not common to man. And I will explain, because we are going to pray now, very soon.

Y MEDIA

After I became Born Again, I told the Almighty God: I don't want to be an Ordinary Christian. I don't want to be like anybody else. I want to be SPECIAL!

Then we began to talk. It will interest you to know that, at least in Nigeria; I am the first fellow to call God DADDY.

When I began to call God Daddy, I got very stiff opposition from many people - What is wrong with you? God is Father, not Daddy. Don't treat Him as if He is an Ordinary human being.

I said: don't let us quarrel, He is your Father. But He is my Daddy. There is a difference between the two. He is not just my Father, He is my Daddy. Or to use the language of the young ones; He is my POOPSIE . And whether you believe it or not, I am His BOMBOY.

You need to get into that intimate relationship with God so that when you call; even BEFORE you call - He WILL answer.

And I will give you just a little illustration; and release you to talk to God.

For reasons that am sure is common to men; my last son was very close to me - Very little thing, almost like a puppy. And I will be in my Prayer Room; in the first house I lived.

My Prayer Room, those of you who have been there; we call the house now "Open Heaven House". My Praying Room is adjourning my Bedroom. And it has no comfort. No Fan, no air condition. I made it on purpose; because when I go there, it is for serious business.

So I will be there in my Prayer Room, stark naked before my God, praying and discussing serious matter: how the Church will grow, peace in the Nation - very serious matters!

And my little Bomboy will come in and say: Daddy, I want cookies. I am praying, go to your mother. Papa I want cookies. The mistake you can make is to say: get away from here! Then he began cry "Cookies". So if you are wise, you will suspend your BIG prayers and give him what he wants.

Since I knew that, that will happen again and again; any time I am going into the Prayer Room to pray, what do you think I will do? I make sure the cookies is waiting before he comes. So when he comes and say daddy - before he calls.

If you haven't given your life to Jesus Christ, you haven't even started the relationship at all. Not to talk of becoming His favourite.

So I am to give you just two (2) minutes. If you are here and you have not yet given your life to Jesus; rush forward! You have to really run tonight, because the rest of us want

to talk to our Daddy. We need some serious discussions with our "POOPSIE": There are things we want to ask Him today; that we must receive before tomorrow.

The Man of God was talking about the next twenty five (25) days - twenty five (25) days begin NOW!

So, if you have not yet given your life to Jesus Christ; before I say twelve (12); come and before me. I will pray for your Salvation. We will get you out of the way, and then we will be able to talk to the Almighty God.

So, if you want to give your life to Jesus; begin to come now, as I count...

The only prayer that God can answer for a sinner is: "God, have mercy on me; save my soul'. That's the only prayer He can hear from you.

So you better come to Him; and come and surrender your life to Him. And let Him: out of His Mercy save your soul.

Thank you, those of you who are clapping - Your hands will never be empty. Ok, thank you very much;

Those of you who are already in front, begin to call on God and say: Just have Mercy on me. Save my soul and I will serve you for the rest of my life.

... Those of you who are already on the way, keep coming. We will wait. Get here before we finish praying.

Cry to Him: Save my soul, have mercy on me, forgive all my sins Lord. And receive me into the Family of God. I want you to be my Lord; I want you to be my Father.

And the rest of us, would you please stretch out hands to these people and intercede for them. Pray that the One who save our souls will save their own souls too. Also, pray that the Almighty God will turn them to children of God. Pray for them Brethren. Intercede for them just for one more minute. Pray for them?

Those of you who are on the way, hurry up. Pray as you come. Ask God to have Mercy on you and to save your soul.

... Thank you Jesus; keep coming, I will wait for ten (10) seconds more. And then we will pray for you.

Thank you Father; In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

**GO PRAYS:** Father, I just want to say: Thank You. Thank you for your Words. And thank you for these people that have responded to your Words. You have Promise that whosoever will come unto you; you will no wise cast out. They have come to you now. Father, please receive them, forgive them, let your Blood wash away their sins, save their souls, write their names in the Book of Life, receive them into the Family of God.

I pray that the Lord God Almighty, from now on; anytime they call on you, you will answer them by Fire. Thank you Almighty God. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Those of you who have come forward, I rejoice with you, because from now on, by God's Grace; I will be praying for you. So the Counsellors will be giving you cards. Please fill the cards very quickly; your Name, Address, your Prayer Request. And I promise you I will be praying for you.

We will wait for you just for two (2) to three (3) minutes before we go on: for you to finish filling your forms.

In the meantime; the rest of us can begin to Thank God in advanced. Because He is going to hear our prayers tonight. And the answer is going to come immediately.

So let's spend some time thanking God in advanced.

Those of you still on the way, keep coming. You can still catch up with us. You are not late.

... Choir over to you!

Am fully aware that there are still some of you who needs to go work tomorrow. And the time is far spent. But I want to appeal to you in the Name of the Almighty God; that you at least in the next fifteen (15) minutes: you are going to talk to God. You are going to ask for Help - that is, if you need help; and I know, I need Help.

... And am going to open the Altar to you; if you want to come and lay yourself before Him.

Just say my Daddy; Help me, send Help to. You say before I call you will answer. You know where those who can help me are. Send them to me: from the East, West, North and South. From Heaven Above; Lord please send Help to me.

Thank you Jesus; hallelujah Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

### **CLOSING PRAYER:**

177

Almighty God, Help of the helpless, please send Help to us. We are your Favourite children; we are the Elects of God. Some of us are in very serious need of Help; Father send Help to us!

You are the Ever Present Help in Time of trouble: Some of us need Spiritual Help; some of us need Financial Help; some of us need Physical Help, some of us need Marital Help - Lord send Help to us. From the East, send Help to us. From the West, send Help to us. From the North, send Help to us. From the South, send Help to us. From Heaven Above, send Help to us.

We have no Help but Thee. To who else shall we go? You are our last bus stop. Please Daddy, send Help to us. Let our Joy come speedily. Thank you Almighty God.

As your children will be going; please go with them. Protect them from evil. By the time we gather again tomorrow, let everybody have their Testimonies.

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. Amen!

Let me hear you shout a Big hallelujah - Hallelujah!

God bless you! You can go back to your seats or you can go home. Go in peace. The Lord will go with you. Make sure you come very early tomorrow (Friday) as you know that there will be a crowd.

**EDITORIAL NOTE:** It is getting better by the day and we warmly welcome you all to the dispensation of: Before your Call...

So far so good, Day 1 to Day 4 has been wonderful and we are sure Day 5 promises to be at its very peak

Activities for the day (Day 5) will be at the New Auditorium, Simawa. And you just have to find your way down to the Redemption Camp.

... The siege over getting your Glory has been lifted indeed and you are positioned for the "Glory Ahead".

Jesus Christ sure waiting you you. Ensure you don't come alone - come with all your family members and invite your friends, neighbours, co-workers, acquaintances and enemies (yet to be delivered).

We appreciate you all for reading and keeping faith in our Crew little efforts to reach out to you!

... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... taking back the Power in the Media Space!

# COMPILATIONS BY

MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND ADEBANJO ADESOLA

#### © DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DAY 5 - MORNING TALK: HEAD NOT TAIL - PASTOR ABRAHAM ADEWALE HAASTRUP

# (ASSISTANT GENERAL OVERSEER, RCCG IN AUSTRALIA AND SOUTH PACIFIC)

#### DATE: 7TH DECEMBER, 2018

Let somebody shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

179

If you believed and know that today is the day God will do something New in your life, shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

I want you to please rise up on our feet as we begin this important Intercession with Prayers. Please let us rise up on our feet:

1. Father, please make today a Positive Turning Point in my life and even in my family, Church and this Nation and those Nations represented here.

... Father we worship you. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

2. Preambles: A few days ago, there was something the Lord put in my heart and I want us to use that thought as a Prayer Point.

And the Prayer is that as God did to Saul of Tarsus on the way to Damascus as a further step to persecute the Church of God; that whosoever is persecuting the Church of God particularly in Nigeria (whether from within the Church itself or outside); that God will turn them to Promoters of His Kingdom - Please open your mouth and pray. In a way no man can explain, please turn them to Promoters of your Kingdom in Jesus Name. Let them Promote the Kingdom everywhere in the world. ... Thank you Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

3. Preambles: Still on that Prayer; we are still going to pray because God did something for that Saul of Tarsus before he became an Apostle. Because he did not want to yield gently to God; God knocked him down.

So you are going to pray that all these people that we are talking about who will not yield gently to God; God should knock them down Himself.

Father, every enemies of your Kingdom that will not change gently; as you did to Saul of Tarsus, please knock them down so that they will come by force to begin to Promote your Kingdom.

... Thank you Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we prayed - Amen!

4. We are going to pray that on this Camp Ground on this Special Day; in all our lives God will do something New and Unique: Something that had not been done before, something we will Praise God for all the days of our lives - Talk to God.

Today is the 7th day of December, 2018; Father do something unique on this Camp Ground: Something Unique, something Glorious and something that we will remember for the rest of our lives.

OVERY MEDIA

... Thank you Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen.

5. Finally you will pray for yourself that this morning the Word of God will come to you and it will be for you - Open your mouth and talk to God.

Father, let me receive a "Personal Word" from you. Let every Words that you send today affect my life for Good.

... Thank you Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!
### SONG:

I will enter His Gates with Thanksgiving in my Hands.

I will enter His Courts with Praise

I will say this is the Day that the Lord has made

I will rejoice for He has made me glad.

Chorus: He has made me glad, am so glad. I will rejoice for He has made me glad Hallelujah (Repeat)

#### **OPENING PRAYER:**

181

Father Almighty, this is our confession this morning and we shall rejoice because you have made us glad. We are confident that by your Spirit, Word and Grace; today will be a day of Great Testimonies in all of our lives. Even on this Camp today, you will do something New, something Unique and your Name will be Exalted.

We pray particularly that you renew the strength of our daddy, your son and your servant. As he takes us in your Presence today, do something New in the Power of your Words in the Name of Jesus.

Father, we are grateful to you. Thank you for the beginning of this Program: Thank you for what you did on Monday, thank you for what you did on Tuesday, thank for what you did on Wednesday, thank you for what you did yesterday on Thursday, thank you for what we looked forward to that you will do today and that you have begun already; please receive all the Glory our Father. In Jesus Name.

Father, today fill this Ground with your Presence, Power and Glory in the Name of Jesus Christ.

Father as we go into the Session; manifest your Glory. Send your Words to us. Let your Words come to us and be for us in the Name of Jesus Christ.

Father we thank you. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Praise the Mighty Name of our Lord Jesus Christ - Hallelujah!

I welcome everyone of us to this 5th Day of this Glorious Congress 2018 in the Mighty Name of the Lord Jesus Christ.

We thank the Lord for all He has done in our lives since the Program began as well as all the people that God has used for us.

We want to specially thank our Father in the Lord, the General Overseer of this Church who God has continued to make use of as a Blessing to Nations and Generations. May the Lord renew his strength in Jesus Mighty Name.

Daddy, we thank you for this great privilege to be asked to take this very important Session. May the Lord renew your strength in Jesus Name.

Now to all of us who are here; I want you all to know that this is an important Session of this Year's Holy Ghost Congress.

I will call it a "Discovery Session" and am believing God that God will make it a "Positive Turning Point" in all our lives in the Mighty Name of our Lord Jesus Christ.

By the Grace of God, we have been asked to lead us in the Session of Words and Prayers with the theme: "HEAD, NOT TAIL".

EDIA CREW

Now, I want you to declare to yourself that: "I will be the Head and not the Tail".

... And God will make all of us the Head in Jesus Name - Amen!

Can I hear your resounding Amen - Amen!

### **BIBLE TEXT: DEUTERONOMY 28: 1-2 AND 13-14**

1. And it shall come to pass, if thou shalt hearken diligently unto the voice of the LORD thy God to observe and to do all His commandments which I command thee this day, that the LORD thy God will set thee on high above all Nations of the earth

2. And all these blessings shall come on thee and overtake thee, if thou shalt hearken unto the voice of the LORD thy God.

13. And the LORD shall make thee the head, and not the tail; and thou shalt be above only, and thou shalt not be beneath; if that thou hearken unto the commandments of the LORD thy God, which I command thee this day, to observe and to do them.

14. And thou shalt not ho aside from any of the Words which I command thee this day, to the right hand, or to the left, to go after other gods to serve them.

... May the Lord bless the reading of His Words in our hearts in the Mighty Name of Jesus - Amen!

Head, Not Tail!

What does the word Head means or stands for?

The Head is defined as the upper part of the body of an animal that contains the brain, the eyes, the ears and all the sense organs as well as the mouth.

It is often said to be the "Seat of Intellects" where a person mental ability resides.

... So we now all know that the Head is very important.

Now what about the word Tail?

The tail is referred to as the rear end of the body of an animal. It is said to be the back, last, lower or the inferior part of something.

And that is why I pray for you straightaway: You will be the Head and not the Tail in Jesus Name.

I want you to rise on your feet and speak to the atmosphere: I will be the Head and not the Tail.

Shout it and let all the people that is around you hear: I will be the Head and not the Tail.

... And God will make you and me the Head and not the Tail in the Name of Jesus Christ.

Even from the little we have said about the Head; we will know that the Head is very important and that the Tail is not a place to be.

... God will make us Head and not the Tail in Jesus Name.

There are five (5) Peculiarities of the Head that I want to remind us of before we go to the other aspects of our discussions today:

1. The first thing is that everything that God made has an Head - whether it is man, animal, bird or even fishes; everything that God made has an Head.

MEDIA

In the same manner and following God's pattern; everything that man has created or device; they always call a part of that thing a Head.

Everything that is manufactured has a Head. Something that we can call the "Brain of that Device".

2. Not only that; the Head is always on top or in front.

And that tells us straightaway the importance of Head: It is designed to be above, to be in front and when it is in front, it means that it is to carry responsibilities. It is to lead and give directions.

Head is very important and we know that when something is wrong with the Head; things will be wrong with the other parts of the body.

... Nothing will happen to your Head in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen. And even as an organ in this Church, nothing will happen to our Head in Jesus Name - Amen!

3. The Head always have some "Special Organs and Features" - eyes, ears, nose, mouth. And even the mouth itself is made up of the lips, teeth and tongue inside it.

4. Each of the Organs in the Head are meant for "Specific Functions and Roles".

The brain has its functions, the eyes have their functions, the ears have their functions, the nose has its functions, the mouth has its functions, the lips has their functions. Even the teeth inside the mouth has their functions, the tongue has its functions - every organs in the Head has its functions.

5. The "Master Plan" of God for me and you is to be the Head and never the Tail.

And God has made this very clear in His Words that He will make us the Head and not the Tail.

... I pray for you one more time that you will be the Head and not the Tail in Jesus Name - Amen!

By the decision to make us the Head; God was and is still aiming at something. He is aiming at we fulfilling His Original Mandate of we having Dominion.

And thank God for this; He also did that so that you can experience the Glory that is ahead of you.

... And you will experience it in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen!

As I hinted you earlier; to be Head implies to be on top of a ladder or on top in an hierarchy. It also means to be right in front or ahead.

Now there are some people who wants to be Head just for reasons that are selfish:

1. Some people wants to be Head either for Glamour - so that men can praise them as they don't want to be Head in order to take responsibilities.

2. Some people wants to be Head just to exercise authority or Lord it over other people. They don't want to serve.

3. Some wants to be Head just to amass wealth and holds others to ransom.

Let me tell you something very important: Becoming an Head is a huge responsibilities.

It is meant to be a blessing when it is to be a "Change Agent" - It is to see ahead (to be a man or woman) of Visions. It is to lead others.

... God will make you and me Head in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen! We will not be the Tail in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen!

Not only that; being a Head comes with huge responsibilities. It involves a Process.

Before Abraham became the "father of Nations", he went through a Process as a lot happened to him. He did not just become a "father of Nations" overnight. God called him, God promises him and be followed God's Words and at the end of the day; he became the "father of Nations".

... You can write down Romans 4: 17-21.

Before Joseph ended up in the Palace in Egypt, he went through a Process.

Remember his brothers first of all envied him and hated him at first. They even attempted killing him but God delivered him. They put him in a pit, God brought him out. In Egypt, he was in prison, God delivered him and from prison, he went to the Palace.

Being the Head involves a Process - a Process to transform and a Process to lead you up.

Before David ascended the throne as King over Israel and Judah; he went through a Process – in fact a long Process.

Before Jesus Christ got a Name that is above all names; He went through a Process. The Bible tells us in Philippians 2: 5-8 that: Let this mind be in you as in Christ Jesus who ... and the Bible listed many things that He did: Not making Himself of reputation, He was obedient even unto death on the Cross.

It was when He went through all these that is the Process; that He has a Name that is above all names became a reality.

He went to the Cross, dies on the Cross, buried and He rose again.

... He paid the Price for you and me and today; He has a Name that is above all names.

Becoming a Head involves a Process.

187

... And I pray that we will all become Head as God has promised us in His Words in the Mighty Name of Jesus - Amen!

To the Glory of God, before God made our daddy what he was today as a voice to Nations and Generations; believe you me that our daddy has gone through a lot of Processes. He has given Testimonies of the things he went through physically and Spiritually before God made him what he is today. ... And I want to assure you all that God is taking our daddy higher in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen!

What are the things to do or the conditions to fulfill if we will be what God wants us to be - the Head and not the Tail?

I want us to go back to our text in Deuteronomy 28: 13-14: The Bible says that the Lord will make you the Head and not the Tail and you shall be above ONLY and not be beneath. The conditions were stated there that if you heed to the commandments of the Lord your God which He commanded you today and are careful to observe them; so you shall not turn aside every of the Words which He commanded you today to the right or to the left to go after other gods to serve them.

In these two (2) verses; we see the things we needed to do if we will be who God wants us to be - be the Head and not the Tail.

The Bible says that the Lord will make me and you the Head and not the Tail if we will let Him do what He wants to do then we must do some things:

1. We must heed His Words.

Pay attention and do the Words of God. A disobedient person will remain a Tail and never a Head.

2. We must be careful to observe His Words.

Careful observations and not just glazing through the Words of God. Paying attention to every Words of God - every Words of God prescribed something to do. So pay careful attention to the Words of

God.

3. God will make us Head if we do not turn aside from any of His Words - please don't add, don't branch off from the Words of God, don't follow tradition, don't live by "dem say" but live by the Words of God.

### In practical terms; what does all these means:

1. Study the Bible to know what God says. We must study the Words of God.

The Bible is the Words of God. It reveals the Will of God and the Mind of God to us. A man cannot do what he does not know about or understands - he must know what God says always.

Now when I talk of understanding what God said in His Words; am not saying that God will give you reasons why He wants you to do His Words. He may not give you the reasons why He asked you to do what He is asking you to do. But when you obey Him by Faith, believing Him that He has your interest at hearts; then it will be well with you and you will be the Head and not the Tail.

When you study the Words of God and you are sure of what He is saying then you can be sure that you will be on your way to the Top.

By God's Grace some years ago. I went to stay in the United Kingdom (was sent there on Scholarship); studying there and trying everything to stay there. And God spoke to me: You are not going to stay here; am sending you away as a Missionary to East Africa.

Thank God that He helped me to obey Him. That was 29 years ago. Until now that am standing here, He has not given me the reason(s) to regret. But looking back, I have no single regret of answering Him.

You must understand the voice of God; you must carefully observe His Words; you must obey Him and then it will be well with you in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen!

Brothers and Sisters, I have no single regrets that twenty nine (29) years ago I yielded to what He asked me to do. I give Him all the Glory.

... You too, you will not regret when you obey God in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen!

2. It means not going after other gods. And that was the problem many people have both in the Bible and even in our Generations today. God will say something, they will hear His voice but they will branch to the right or to the left a little.

And when you branch off God's Plan for your life, the more you go off, the more you go far from the center. That was the problem one King has in the Bible. The King called Solomon in 1 Kings 11: 1-11 (you can read that at home). There was a particular warning God gave to the Israelites - don't marry foreign women as they will take your hearts away from me. Don't give your daughters to them. The Bible says that Solomon refused. Not only did he marry just one, two or three but several of them. The Bible says that at the end of the day, they turned his hearts away from God. They made him to be serving other gods. Even in Jerusalem (City of God); he began to build shrines for all his women and polluted the land of God.

That will not be your portion in the Name of Jesus Christ.

At the end of his life, God took away the Kingdom from him. God said I will take my Kingdom away from you. But because of David my servant; I will not do it now but when your children get there.

It was very unfortunate. The Lord will help us to stick to God's Words in the Mighty Name of the Lord Jesus Christ - Amen.

Now, what are we trying to say if we will be Head and not Tail?

1. We must not be ignorant of the mind and Words of God.

In Hosea 4:6; the Bible says my people are destroyed for lack of knowledge because you have rejected knowledge; I also reject you from being a Priest for me.

Because you have forgotten the law of your God; I will also forget your children (that won't be our portion in Jesus Name).

In this scriptures, we see three (3) levels of Ignorance:

1. Lack of Knowledge. Ignorance is lack of Knowledge.

2. God said that He will deal with them and they will perish because they rejected knowledge.

There are many people, they told you that this is what will help you but they say I don't want it.

That is why many are still living in sin today. If you tell them that Jesus is the Only Solution; they will say I don't need Jesus. If you tell them that His Blood is the Only one that can cleanse you; they will say I don't need His Blood.

... They are rejecting the Knowledge that can bail them out of their troubles.

3. If we will be Head and not Tail, you must not let the enemies deny or rob you of our rightful Positions in Christ - don't comprise your stance with God. Don't sell your birthrights. Don't let the enemies rob you of your rightful Positions and benefits God has ordained for your life.

**GENERAL PRAYERS** 

Please rise up on your feet. We are going to talk to the Lord now: Head not Tail.

1. Thank God for the privilege to hear the Words. The Bible says you shall hear the Truth and the Truth shall set you free. The Bible says that the entrance of your Words gives light and gives understanding to the simple.

I want you to close your eyes and say: Father, thank you this morning for the access to your Words - Your Words that is Spirit, Life and Transforming.

Lift up your voice and say Father thank you for your Words: thank you that am not deaf, dumb, can see clearly, hear your Words and am already on my way to be the Head and not the Tail.

2. Thank you God for speaking to us as individuals. Thank Him that His Words has come to you and for you.

The book of Jeremiah 1:4 says that before you were formed in the womb; I knew you; before you are brought forth I sanctify you and ordained you as my Prophet to the Nation.

Thank you for making me Head and not Tail. Thank you because I will fulfill your Purpose for my life. Blessed be your Name my Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we prayed - Amen.

3. It is likely that some of you are not hearing this verse for the first time in our lives but yet it appears you are not the Head. People will look at you and say that you are the Tail.

Talk to God this morning and say: Father, everywhere sin had kept me from being the Head; please forgive me today and show Mercy.

Maybe He has given us the opportunity to be the Head but we have not gotten there because some things has crept into our lives. Pray to God: Lord anywhere sin has kept me from being the Head please forgive me today.

4. You will pray for yourself: Maybe it is ignorance that has kept you from being the Head; pray for yourself that anywhere Ignorance has made me not to be who I should be, Father have Mercy on me and make me to be wise.

5. In 1 John 3:7 - Little children, let no man deceive you: he that doeth righteousness is righteous, even as he is righteous.

You will pray for yourself: If it is the enemies that is directly at work from me being a Head; today in my life and family destroy the works of the devil in the Name of Jesus Christ in my body, soul and Spirit.

Maybe you have taken what you should not have taken; eaten what you should not have eaten; spoken what you should not have spoken and that has hindered you from being

where you should be; Father destroy the works of the devil in my life, home, office in Jesus Name - Amen!

6. Pray for yourself: Lord don't let me be an enemy of myself. Don't let me be the one to hinder myself from being the Head that you want me to be.

Don't let me go where I should not go, take what I should not take, see what I should not see, say what I should not say, eat and drink what I should not eat and drink, move with people I should not move with.

I want to be the Head and not the Tail. Please help me to be who you want me to be.

7. Pray for yourself by Prophesy: That today am entering a New Era in my life - an Era of Glory Ahead, no more shame in my life, no more failure and stagnation. From today onwards, it is forward ever and backwards never. From this day, greater days ahead of me. I will be going higher and higher in obedience and journey to the Top. I will be the Head and not the Tail.

8. Begin to speak some words of Prophesy into some organs God has put in you - your head, eyes, ears, mouth, lips, teeth, tongues.

You will say that my brain from now begin to think right, think Godly thoughts, Progress that God will Perfect. Put those hands in your head - no more evil thoughts, defeats, shame etc.

You will say my eyes from now on begin to see right, visions from God, open visions, Help and Helpers of Destiny.

You will say my ears from now on begin to hear voice of God, voice of Abundance of Rain, Good News, Divine Direction from God.

You will say my mouth from now on begin to give daily Praise to God, Witness of the Glory of God, win souls for God, speak righteousness, speak Progress, Pray Prayers God will answer.

You will say my lips from now on begin to Praise God, speak no evil as God has made me the Head and not the Tail.

9. Finally, pray to God that every Good Things that I have lost - my wealth, Progress, Destiny, Health, Vision; today restore to me.

Make this day a "Day of Restoration" in my life. Every Good Things that I have lost, please restore - my Faith, Destiny, Promotion.

That Glory Ahead of me, I walk into it. Thank you Father, we give you all the Glory and Praise. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

#### DECLARATION

<mark>I w</mark>ant you to put you<mark>r two (2) hands on your head and say:</mark> Father, I shall be the Head and not the Tail. Today, am occupying my rightful place.

I shall be the Head and not the Tail because I will obey the voice of God in Jesus Name - Amen!

MEDIA CREW

... Let somebody shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

#### **CLOSING PRAYERS**

194

Father Almighty we thank you for this Glorious Day. Thank you for your Words to us and for us. Thank you because we will heed to your Words as we will not turn to the right or left from following your Words. We will not follow other gods. We will stick to your Words even as you speak by your spirit and your Grace in the Name of Jesus Christ.

Father, make today a "Day of New Beginning" in our lives; a day of Accelerated Journey to the Top in the Name of Jesus. A day we will indeed be the Head and never the Tail in the Name of Jesus.

Father, thank you. Father we worshipped you. Everything the enemies has denied us or rob us we command restoration today in the Name of Jesus. Today let there be restorations of Health in Jesus Name; let there be restorations of vision in the Name of Jesus; let there be restorations of hearing and obeying you in the Name of Jesus.

Father, we shall be the Head and not the Tail in the Name of Jesus. Thank you our Father in Heaven.

As the Program continues today Lord do awesome things today in Jesus. Blessed be our God for ever and ever.

... In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Shout Hallelujah -Hallelujah!

The LORD blessed you in the Mighty Name of Jesus!!!

## DCOMPILATIONS BY ERY A EDIA CREW

MOSES DURODOLA AND TITILAYOMI AJAYI

### DAY 5 - TALK 1 - TOPIC: KING OF GLORY - DR. ELIZABETH VON

### (PRESIDENT, ELIZABETH VON MINISTRIES, TEXAS USA) DATE: 7TH DECEMBER, 2018

### **TEXT: PSALM 24: 7-10**

I want to thank Pastor Adeboye, for allowing me to be here tonight. He is the person we know as Daddy GO and Mama GO. Thank you so much, for allowing me to be here.

Specially, I thank my God and Saviour; the Lord Jesus Christ.

As I walked into this place tonight; I heard the Choir. I don't know; but I heard someone singing. They were singing: "King of Glory"! Did you hear that? And I was thrilled by that.

Because the Topic I was given to speak on tonight is: THE KING OF GLORY!

So, when I found out what they wanted me to speak about, I was so excited. Because the King of Glory is also my Lord and my Saviour. His Name is what? JESUS! His Name is Jesus.

So immediately, this TEXT: PSALM 24: 7-10 came into my mind. So I want to read it to you:

7. Lift up your heads, O ye gates; and be ye lift up, ye everlasting doors; and the King of Glory shall come in.

8. Who is this King of Glory? The LORD Strong and Mighty, the LORD Mighty in battle.

9. Lift up your heads, O ye gates; even lift them up, ye everlasting doors; and the King of Glory shall come in.

10. Who is this King of Glory? The LORD of Hosts, He is the King of Glory. Selah.

So we have learnt so far, that this King of Glory's Name is what? Jesus! His Name is what? Jesus! Hallelujah! His Name is Jesus! And He is Strong and Mighty; and Mighty in battle. And that He is the Lord of Hosts!

HOSTS means; All the Heavenly Angels above us. And He is the Commander in Chief of the Hosts of Heaven. That's Who He is!

Now, I want you also to know this; that the Word of God has said that: If you open the door, He shall in. He is at the door of your hearts tonight; Knocking.

And Revelation 3:20 tells us: "Behold, I stand at the door, and knock: if any man hears my voice, and open the door, I will come in to him, and will sup with him, and he with me."

I have a demonstration for you. You know, for years I have prayed to the Lord using John 14:14; which says: "If ye shall ask any thing in my Name, I will do it."

Do you know that Scripture? "If ye shall ask any thing in my Name, I will do it." So I have clung to that Scripture, when I pray.

DECREE: Lord, I ask that you make a way for every human that is listening to me (or reading) right now; to hear my voice. Because it is not my voice; but your voice. And you have brought this voice here to give this Message to this people.

And so I speak in the Name of Jesus Christ; the Audio system to work perfectly. Amen!

Hallelujah...

Ok, so one day the Lord spoke to me and He said this; He said: "When you use my Name, it OPENS the door for me to DO IT!"

Well, that one sentence, kind of put my Faith into a New Dimension. And it is going to do the same for us. And I want to demonstrate it to you. (She brought out three (3) people - 2 men and 1 woman for illustration).

Ok! Let me tell you about it. This man right here (one of the men used for the illustration; in one single file).

The first man on the line represent Jesus. The second man in front of Jesus, the door. The third Person (a Lady); is the person who needs prayer (from the Pastor).

So, this is what is going to happen, when I pray for her (that's the third person on the line). As I say: in the Name of Jesus; this door (the man in the middle) is going to open (move away) for the Jesus (represented by the first man) to move and DO IT (for the woman).

### PRACTICAL:

198

The Pastor lays hand on the woman on the line and prays for her: I bind the spirit of infirmity from you in the Name of Jesus Christ. Amen!

Simultaneously; the Pastor who prayed moved out of the way, followed by the man representing the Door. For the man representing Jesus; to move to the woman and heal her.

So who healed this Lady? Jesus! Are you sure? Who healed this Lady? JESUS!!

So what is my responsibility? I am just like you; you are the one who is going to pray for people. Right? You are the one who is going to use the Name of Jesus. Right?

Ok, so I represent you! So watch what happens (the illustrations is repeated) one more time. Ok, thank you (my 3 representatives).

So, did you see what I did? I prayed for the lady who needed prayers - which is what you should do. Did you see that: I just simply STEPPED OUT of the way. Did you notice that? Ok!

So that means that when you Pray, or you speak the Name of Jesus; it is not your RESPONSIBILITY to heal that person. You don't have any Healing Powers or any Healing Virtue. It is Jesus that has ALL the Powers.

But He does need you! He needs your body. The reason He needs you is because you have feet to walk over there. Right? You have mouth to speak the Words; and when you speak the Words, all you have to do is BOW OUT of the way. And watch the KING OF GLORY come in!

... Thank you wonderful Pastors, for coming out to help demonstrate to the people. God bless you!

I wish I could be closer to you. But I know that is impossible. Am going to tell you a secret; of course it won't be a secret any more when I tell you.

But I was in Texas; I live in America, Texas. In my house, the Lord gave me a vision of this place (the Redemption Camp). I have never been here. I repeat; I have never been here. And in the vision, there were blind people that were called to the Front.

... Can I just get closer? I want to get closer somehow. I don't know, maybe I can't (due to the Cord Mic). I will just stay right here.

Anyway, there were blind people in the Vision God showed me. Standing on that stage; looking unto this great God. And I saw blind people that were brought forward.

So, if there are blind people here, I want you to come to the front. Am not talking about people that are wearing glasses, and so you want to remove your glasses. Am talking of people that are blind - Only blind people.

Someone will help you; they will bring you to the front. Just come on now to the front.

You know, I was told earlier today that, this Auditorium (3 by 3 Kilometers) can seat ten (10) million people. And that there is another overflow Auditorium that seats four and half (4.5) million people. And if that one fills up, there is a second overflow Auditorium that has one and half (1.5) Million sitting capacity.

Well, I don't know how much of the overflows are filled. But I can see that this (New Auditorium) is filled.

So if you add all of that together; that is Sixteen (16) Million people could be here in this place at this moment and time: worshipping the Lord Jesus Christ. And you are one of those and I am one of those, that are privileged to see. Can you hear me?

Since the day that God created Adam; I don't think there has ever being another circumstance like this particular circumstance; where about sixteen (16) million people are gathered together in one place at one time to Praise the Lord.

... You are that are here are breaking History, tonight!

And when we include other people that are watching us /reading worldwide; because they are included in this crowd too. And by the time they are added to this sixteen (16) million or so, that is going in Millions that we have no idea of.

But we are here because of one thing and one Person; and He is the King of Glory. And His Name is what? Jesus!

Would you like to hear what it sounds like when Millions of people say the Name of Jesus at the same time?

Let's do it - One, JESUS! Let's say it again, JESUS!! let's say it for the third (3rd) time, JESUS!!!

Hallelujah!

200

Now, how many of you love that Jesus? Show me by waving your hands.

How many of you love Jesus? Ok, I would like you to do one more thing for Him. For Him, close your eyes. You know John 4:24 says: "God is a Spirit: and they that worship him must worship him in Spirit and in Truth."

So I don't want you to be looking at me or someone else. I want you to be looking at Jesus right now. And I would like you to tell Him: "I Love You Jesus". Can you say that Loud? Let's do it ... One, this is the first time. Say; I Love you Jesus. From your heart, come on let's say it: I Love You Jesus! Is that the best you can do? I LOVE YOU JESUS. Say is again; I LOVE YOU JESUS. Say it the third (3rd) time: I LOVE YOU JESUS!!!

... I think that was Pleasing to Him. Thank you for that.

Now, I want to go back to the Scriptures that we read (Psalm 24:7-10); and the demonstration that we saw (and read):

If you had a visitor coming to your house; a Visitor - highly special visitor; I bet you will try to clean your house up a little bit. Wouldn't you? Yes, I know you would.

So, we have the KING JESUS here right now. If you could see in the Spirit; you would see King Jesus here. And He has all the Hosts of Heaven with Him. Because He is, remember we read: He is the King of all the Hosts of Heaven. He is the King of Glory and the Lord of Hosts!

Each one of you has a Door to your life - your heart and your life. You have a door. And Revelation 3:20 says; "Behold, I stand at the door, and knock: if any man hears my voice, and open the door, I will come in to him, and will sup with him, and he with me."

VERY MEDIA

Jesus is knocking at the door and He is waiting to come one. So, if you need to tidy up your house (heart and life) a little bit, on the inside of you; this is the time to do it! Tidy up your house and get ready for Him. And if you know there are things in your life that you know will not be pleasing to Him - that He would not like. Then ask Him to forgive you of those things. And Tidy that up! So that when He has the opportunity to come into your house; your house will be ready. Just ask Him; take a couple of minutes here. Just ask the Lord to forgive you for anything that is not pleasing to Him. Because you want Him to come into your house - which is your body and your life. (Close your eyes; talk to Jesus).

Did you get those pasts tidied up?

202

Now, put the WELCOME SIGN on the door; meaning you are going to welcome Him into your house.

Are there any of you who are sick; having sickness and diseases here tonight or reading? Then stand if you are. Would you please stand up. Just stand up where you are. You don't have to come forward. Just stand up where you are. If you are sick, you need to be Healed tonight. Because the King of Glory is here.

Stand to your feet, if you are watching or reading this from afar off in any Nation of the world. You stand on your feet too because you are included in this prayer.

... Now, in a moment, I am going to ask the King of Glory to cone into your house.

Those of you that are standing; that need to be Healed tonight; He is going to come into your house. Your house - meaning you (your body, your life). And He is going to Heal you.

For those of you that are seated; you are not sick. Thank God you are not sick. You still have a house, and still have a door. And the King of Glory still wants to come into your house. Because there is something in every single one of our houses; no matter how Spiritual we are or how long we have been walking with God; there are things we need the King of Glory to come in and do Amen - Amen!

Now, am going to do a little bit of Spiritual work here before we ask the King of Glory to come in. Because you know how the Bible says in Act 10:38. It says; "How God anointed Jesus of Nazareth with the Holy Ghost and with Power: who went about doing good, and Healing all that were oppressed of the devil; for God was with Him."

So you know, the devil could be putting these oppression on you - sicknesses and diseases. So we are going to deal with that right now.

You say: how presumptuous is that? That's how presumptuous the Name of Jesus is. Because the Name of Jesus is about every devil that was ever in the whole universe; anywhere! And when the Name of Jesus is spoken, that devil has to bow his knees. Because we are seated together with Jesus Christ in Heavenly Places; far above principalities and powers, mighty and dominion. And that every name that is being named in this world and the world to come. And everything is under our feet.

So when we speak to demons in the Name of Jesus; they must do what we say. We can speak to anything that has a name. Whether the name be diabetes, heart disease, cancer, blindness, deafness. You name it; things that have a name! And those names are subject to the Name of Jesus. That at the Name of Jesus; all of those names MUST BOW. All of those tongues must confess that Jesus Christ is Lord.

DECREE: So right now, I take authority over the spirit of blindness in this place. And I command you to leave here now, in Jesus Name - Amen!

... You remember when we use His Name, what does it do? It opens the door for Him to do it.

I take authority over the spirit of deafness in this place. And I command you leave in the Name of Jesus Christ - Amen!

And I take authority over the spirit of infirmity in this place; that might be bothering you physically now. The spirit of infirmity, I take authority over you now, in the Name of Jesus Christ; I command you to leave this place. And not only this place; but every other places where anybody is listening to or reading this broadcast right now. You are bound from all of those people too. Because of the Name of Jesus.

Hallelujah! Ok. You did your housekeeping, right? I just did mine. Are you ready to go? Right, let us close our eyes again. Close your eyes.

-

2

203

-

A

Now, if you are ready for the King of Glory to come in; I would like you to signify that by raising one (1) hand. Just one (1) hand. I would like you to put the other hand on your heart. Meaning; whatever it is inside of you, would you ask the Lord to get rid of it? - Whatever it is.

You know, blind Bartemeus was calling up on Jesus. And Jesus asked him to come! He was obviously a blind man. But Jesus said to him, Come! Asking what would you like for me to do for you.

So Jesus is saying the same thing to you right now. You need to tell Him: What do you want Him to do for you? Tell Him; He is listening to you; worldwide, He is listening to you. What do you want Him to do for you? Tell Him.

PRAYER: Ok, Lord you see all these people have their hands on their hearts already. They have their hands lifted.

... Ok, open your door. Everybody open the door to your life.

Lord, I ask you to flood into every single human being under the sound of my voice (or reading) right now. Flood into them Lord, with the great flood of your Healing; with the great flood of your Mercy. Holy Ghost, come into their bodies and Heal them in every way. Come into their minds and their hearts. Lord, you came to Heal the broken hearted; you came to renew our minds - Flood into every part of their being. You heard their requests Lord; meet their needs according to your Mercy and Love. In the Name of Jesus. Amen!

Now, would you thank Him; would you thank Him: The King of Glory has come into you. Would you thank Him now. Thank Him for Healing your heart. Thank Him for whatever He has done for you. Thank Him/ 5 times. Thank Him from the bottom of your heart. Thank Him/3 times.

Now, would those of you that have had a Healing and you know that Jesus came into your heart and your body, your heart, your mind; would you wave your hands, so the rest of us can see what Jesus has done?

... Well, I see hands waving everywhere.

We need to thank Jesus a lot more than we just did. Let us thank Him for that again. And you know, the other thing I would like you to do please, is to turn to somebody that is near you and tell them what Jesus just did for you. Tell Him, tell her, say: He just Healed my eyes; He just got rid of my turmoil. He just got rid of my diabetes - whatever it is. He just got rid of my crippling condition.

Ok! Try yourself out; whatever you couldn't do before, try to do it now. If you couldn't move your legs before, move your legs now. Whatever you couldn't do before. If you couldn't see; look around you now. Try it, check yourself and see. Check yourself right now and tell someone what Jesus has done for you. Tell someone! Tell someone near you. Go on. You could talk right now. You got to tell someone. I saw your hands waving; you said Jesus did something for you. Tell someone about it.

Hallelujah!

Now then, since Jesus has just come into you. King of Glory has just flood right into you and totally change your being; then something different should flow out of you.

How many of you have a tube of Toothpaste at home? A tube of toothpaste; how many of you don't have a tube of toothpaste at home? Or maybe that is valid question. Ok! A tube of something at home; don't you? A tube of glue, a tube of hair conditions. You have a tube of something.

You know for sure that whatever is in that tube; that's the ONLY thing that's going to come out from that tube. It's a tube of toothpaste; Toothpaste is the only thing that is going to come out of that tube. Understand? Ok.

So if the King of Glory just come into you; He is filling you with Himself. So what should be coming out of you from now on? Come on, tell me: what should be coming out of you?

Y MEDIA

R F

... The King of Glory! Somebody have it.

How many of you have the King of Glory inside of you? Raise your hands, if you have the King of Glory. Ok! If you have the King of Glory inside of you, what should be coming out of you?

... The King of Glory! Thank you; the King of Glory is coming out of you.

I think John the Fifteen (15th) Chapter, the Fifth (5th) Verse says: "I am the Vine, ye are the branches: He that abideth in me, and I in him, the same bringeth forth much fruit: for without me ye can do nothing."

I want you to focus on that phrase that says: "he that abides in me, and I in him".

ABIDES: means, you stay there; you live there.

I live in my house in Texas. You live in your house; don't you? You live somewhere. That is where you abide. He wants to abide in you. He wants to live in you: Every moment of everyday from now till the rest of your life. He wants to live in you.

So He is living on the inside of you. He is the one that should be flowing out of you. How many of you get that? Wave your hands! Ok.

"... Without me you can do nothing!" But on the other hand; look at it this way: the Vine, which is Jesus. Needs the Branches to bear fruits. So without the branches; Jesus isn't going to be able to grow fruits. So who are the Branches? You and I.

... So if He is living in us; and we are living in Him: We should be bearing much Fruits from now on.

Listen! Jesus in the Tenth (10th) chapter of Matthew; Jesus calling His Disciples, He said: I give you Power over all the evil spirits; to cast them out!

I want you to listen to this; this is for you, this is for me. He said: I give you Power over all the evil spirits; to cast them out and Heal all manner of sickness and all manner of diseases.

And then He said: I command you "TO GO!" In the 5th, 6th, 7th verse (of Matthew 10) He said "TO GO". And in the 8th verse, He said: "Heal the sick, cleanse the lepers, raise the dead, cast out devils: freely ye have received, freely give."

Take this Command from your Commander; the King of Glory. Your Commander and my Commander. Freely you received Him tonight, and freely He wants to be able to flow out of you unhindered.

You can do this, Saints; you can do this, Body of Christ. This is our job! How is the world ever going to know that Jesus Christ is Real and Alive? Unless you show forth the King of Glory out of your life.

There is no other way; He has to use us. We are His Body: we are His Nose, we are His mouth. So from this time forward; Let God be GOD, through you!

Be bold, be courageous. And know that when you use His Name: the Door is going to open and the King of Glory is going to come in and do whatever you ask Him to do. Because of THE NAME OF JESUS!

... Permit me to tell you a story; A true life story.

207

There were Missionaries that came to West Africa in the early nineteen (19) hundreds. And they went to a village there; a man and his wife - they were Missionaries from America. Two (2) Missionaries already died there; trying to preach the Gospel to the native people.

So day by day they were preaching about Jesus Christ to this people. They were preaching about all the Miracles that Jesus did, and all the things that Jesus could do. And they were preaching, and finally they said: It is time for us to challenge the King! There was a king in that particular village, they thought; it is time for us to challenge Him.

This village had a very big Shrine called "Juju House". Big fetish shrine that people had to pass under it before getting to the village. And that is what they worshipped. I don't know there; but I know three (3) Generations worshipped it. Worshipping Fetishes!

And so, these Missionaries decided to challenge the worshippers, saying to them: Are you staying with your fetish worship or are you going to accept Jesus we have been telling you about?

And when he issued that challenge to the king, the king answered him this way, he said: You tell us that this Jesus that you preach can heal the sick. You tell us He can make blind eyes see. You tell us that He can heal the lepers and raise the dead. But we haven't seen any one of that. We haven't seen the Power that you say is in this God of yours. We see no demonstration of it! So can we leave the fetish gods of your fathers and their fathers before them, and switch to a New Religion altogether? We are not seeing the Power of this Jesus that you preach.

Well, that shocked the Missionary and his wife. And they began to pray, fast and ask God to demonstrate His Power. They knew He has Power, but He hasn't demonstrated it.

... Fast and pray; but that is not a bad idea for us. Fast and pray and ask God to provide an opportunity.

And they had a small Missionary School. And the chief had a son that was thirteen (13) years old, that he sent to the Missionary School. Then one morning after that; they were preaching about blind Bartemeus and this son of the king had Cataract so thick, that he was almost a blind child.

And so this young son of the chief said to the Missionary: Do you think that Jesus could make me see? And so the Missionary said "Yes!" If you would be serious before God; get on your knees and pray to God. He will make you see. And he prayed with him; he saw the boy was so fervent in his desire.

He prayed with the boy and asked God to give the boy his sight back. And suddenly the boys opened his eyes. And he could see everything clearly. He jumped up and he ran to his father; who was the king of the village. And said: Father, I can see; I can see. This Jesus has made me see.

Not long after that; the man's wife died. And he screamed, wondering why the wife had died. So the Missionary and his wife went into the village to see who it was. It was a woman who had being severally ill and then taken her body and thrown unto a thrash dump. It was a naked body lying there; like skeleton, because she had been sick so long. Obviously, she was dead!

And so the Missionary said to them, he said to the husband: Are you sure your wife is dead? He said: Can any of your fetish gods raise your wife? And the husband said: No! Fetish gods can't do that.

He called the king and the elders of that village; he said: Examine this woman and see; Is she dead yet? They said: She is dead. Well, can any of your fetish gods raise this woman from the dead? Oh, No! Our fetish gods can't do that.

So the Missionary and his wife knelt by the dead body in the garbage dump and they began fervently praying: Oh Lord, show this people your Power. Demonstrate your Power to them; that you are Real. And that you are Alive, Lord. That you do what you say you will do. And we pray that you raise her from the dead in the Name of Jesus.

... Now, what happens when you pray in the Name of Jesus? It opens the Door for Him to DO IT!

So Jesus came into the woman's body; she started shaking all over and she was lifted from the ground. Then everybody was screaming and running away. So they prayed, and the woman then sits up and moved around and said: Am hungry, can you get me some food?

... Yes! Let's Praise the Lord.

209

So He demonstrated His Power through people just like you and me.

We want the Glory of the King of Glory to flood this Earth that we live on. Right? Don't you want that? It's going to take you, it's going to take everyone of us. It's going to take the sixteen (16) million that are here (in Camp), plus all the other millions listening, watching and reading; all over the world.

It is going to take all of us making the King of Glory so solidify on the inside of us; dwelling in us to certain extent that the only thing that comes out of us is: The Name of Jesus, the Word of the Living God, the manifesting Power of Jesus Christ through you.

Now, that is an Army that the world cannot stop and cannot deny. Would you volunteer for that Army? Would you raise your hands, say: I volunteer for that Army.

Ok! Let us pray: Say Father; I volunteer for your Army. I thank you for filling me up with the King of Glory. And from this time forward, am going to speak the Name of Jesus with Faith; Not Faith in myself, but Faith that Jesus will cone and DO IT!

Lord, let your Glory be made manifest through my life. Give me boldness Lord, to speak your Word and to testify of what you have done for me. That the Name of Jesus will be lifted up. And all men will be drawn unto Him.

... I hear somebody say: Lord do Miracles through my life.

Ask Him: Lord, do Miracles through my life. Heal people through my life. Make yourself real through me so that when I meet you in Heaven, Lord you will say to me; "Well done! My good and Faithful servant; enter into the Joy of the Lord".

For you have prayed in the Name of Jesus. Amen and Amen!

Thank you so much.

... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... Reaching out to the world through the Power of the Gospel!

# DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW

COMPILATIONS BY

MOSES DURODOLA AND TITILAYOMI AJAYI

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

### DAY 5 - TALK 2 - TOPIC: THE HAND OF THE LORD IS NOT SHORTENED - REVEREND JOE OLAIYA

### (THE PRESIDENT OF THE LIVING FAITH FOUNDATION, KADUNA)

#### DATE: 7TH DECEMBER, 2018

Rise to your feet, lift up your hands and shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Let me hear you shout Jesus I love you - JESUS I LOVE YOU!

**OPENING PRAYER:** 

Heavenly Father we thank you. We are grateful to you that you love us. We are not serving strange gods that wipes their subject. We are serving our Father who loves us and gave us its Only begotten Son for us.

We thank you very much for revealing your love even though it was hidden to our ancestors but when the time came; you sent your Words down to Africa and you gave us the Light of the Gospel.

We are so grateful that we know you. Thank you for the Power of the Name of Jesus. Thank you for His death on the Cross. Thank you for the Precious Blood that was spilled.

I now plead the Blood of Jesus over the entire congregation. Let the Blood of Jesus cleanse the entire atmosphere. I scatter the Host of darkness and I restrained the voice of the devil. I command unbelief, Fear, Anxiety, Lies and the lack to be destroyed in the Name of Jesus.

I released the Word of God like Light and Fire to scatter every darkness and to destroy every works of the devil. Let the Word goes forth as an hammer to break the hardness of every hearts. Let it goes out like Fire to destroy every rubies of unbelief and lies of the

devil. Let the Word goes out as Light to disperse every darkness and bring light to every heart.

Let captives be set free. Let the Word goes out like thunderbolt to break every chain and to destroy every prison gates.

And I command lift up your heads o ye gates; let the King of Glory comes forth and take Dominion once again.

Thank you Father. In Jesus Name we pray - Amen! Please be seated.

The hand of the Lord is not shortened.

BIBLE TEXT: ISAIAH 59: 1-2

1. Behold, the LORD's hand is not shortened that it cannot save; neither His ear heavy that it cannot hear:

2. But your iniquities have separated between you and your God and your sins have hid His face from you, that He will not hear.

God's hand is not shortened. By implications, His hands is not weak, is not Powerless to deliver.

When Prayers and Fasting becomes ineffective; it is because something is wrong.

When the Name of Jesus does not come forth with Power again in our lips; it is because something has gone wrong.

God is saying that my hands is not shortened: I am not weak, I am not Powerless to deliver you.

And if you found out that you have a lot of unanswered prayers, your request are not being granted - tragedies upon tragedies; failures upon failures, disappointments upon disappointments, frustrations to the point that you are beginning to consider backsliding.

Please, look inwards and look backwards. There is no problem on God's side.

Sins and iniquities turns the Blessings of God away and hold back good things from reaching us.

Jeremiah 5:25 says - Your iniquities have turned away these things and your sins have withholden good things from you.

From the text, it means the Blessings of God are turned away from reaching us because of sins and iniquities.

Sins and Iniquities brings affliction, sickness and even death.

Psalms 107:17 says Fool because of their transgression and because of their iniquities are afflicted.

So they become sick. They draw near to the gate of death.

Sins and Iniquities separates us from God according to Isaiah 59 - the hand of the Lord shortened.

... So if you are not getting results; look inwards and look backwards.

Jacob started striving with his brother from the womb according to Genesis 25: 21-25. They started quarreling from the mother's womb. Their mother had to ask what was wrong and they prayed to God. And God said that there are two (2) Nations in your womb and they are striving and quarrelling - the younger shall rule over the elder.

From the womb; rivalry, striving, resentment and quarrelling started and that continues until they were born.

It was so serious that Jacob broke the "Covenant of Brotherhood" - Proverbs 17:17; A friend loveth at all times and a brother is born for adversity.

In the days of Esau's adversity when he was dying of hunger. Rather than sharing his food with his brother, he traded it for his birthright. Seed of cruelty in pursuit of the Blessings of Abraham (the Blessings of his father).

Jacob become cruel of his father; took advantage of his blindness.

In Deuteronomy 27:18; the Bible says: Cursed be he that maketh the blind to wander out of the way. And all the people shall say Amen.

In his passion and zeal for the Blessings of the father, he took advantage of his blindness and rob his brother of his blessings and deceived the father - he planted the "Seed of Cruelty"; he planted the "Seed of Deception" and after he had done that, he got the blessings.

And then the father discovered; you can see the anguish of the father as Isaac trembled according to Genesis 27: 15-16 and verses 20-24. The plot was discovered in verse 33 - Isaac trembled tremendously and in verse 34; Esau wept bitterly (a great and exceeding bitter cry).

... Jacob got the Blessings but a seed was planted.

The success and prosperity in the process of sinful living and ungodly scheming is not a sign of "Divine Approval".

Yes, Jacob succeeded but it was never a sign that it was Divinely Approved.

Do not be deceived, God is not mocked; whatsoever a man sowed that shall he reap - Galatians 6:7.

And when you come to Matthew 7:12; in the Words of our Lord Jesus Christ: Whatsoever you do to others shall be done to you. This is the Law and the Prophets.

And in Genesis 8:22; the Bible says that as long as the Earth rains; Seed Time and Harvest Time shall not cease.

Deceit of cruelty planted by Jacob began to bear fruits after blossoming; 30 years time, the same cruelty was repeated to his choice son.

In Genesis 37: 18-30; Joseph was conscripted. They wanted to kill him but for the intervention of Reuben (the eldest son). They threw him inside a pit and finally decided to sell him into slavery.

While he pleaded with them; they saw the anguish of his soul. They discarded the "Covenant of Brotherhood" - they sat down and ate while watching him in pains.

Did Jacob not seeing the pains of his brother Esau? When instead of sharing with him in love; he traded the food for his birthright.

Here, the sons of Jacob are doing the worst to Joseph his beloved son.

The "Harvest of Deception" came when they sold Joseph into slavery and they took the choice cloth of Joseph and splashed on it the same blood of a kid and presented it to their father to identify whose coat it was.

Jacob in great pains tore his dress and concluded that Joseph was dead.

The pain which he caused his own father for two (2) years; he carried the pains for twenty (20) years plus before he discovered that it was deception.

What you sow you will reap.

What have you been sowing?

When prayers are not answered and it appears as if God's hands are weak; look inwards.

It was this same Jacob that has a "Divine Encounter" with God; seeing Angels going up and down. It was this Jacob that God prospered his works and even an Angel taught him how to be prosperous. It was this Jacob that God defended against Laban.

What has now happened that Jacob prayers are now not answered?

Where is the Covenant - I will curse them that curse you; I will bless them that bless you?

Is Jacob dead?

Jacob could not hear from God because it was "Harvest Time" for the seeds he has down - two (2) years of pains caused to his father Isaac, brought him over twenty (20) years of pains caused by the deception of his children.

Joseph was sold to Egypt for thirteen (13) years; he has griefs and afflictions, he was a slave that was put to shame, humiliated, wounded, degraded, dehumanized - a Prince suddenly find himself in slavery.

Yes, it was an Harvest Time for Jacob but it was seeds the brothers were planting. The brothers were born for the "Day of Adversity". It was extremely cruelty to reduce their brothers to a slave.

In Genesis 41: 39-45; when God remembered His Covenant - "The Covenant of Mercy"; He turned Joseph's situation around and gave him a Crown in "His Land of Suffering and Affliction".

God Crowned Joseph and for eight (8) years; he was a Governor and Prime Minister in Egypt.
Genesis 41: 39-45; Egypt could not corrupt him. In verses 51-52; he has two (2) sons and he said hat now God comforted me and made me to forget my family. He forgot his family and never wanted to reunite with them again. He named his children Manasseh and Ephraim - saying God has made me Fruitful in the land of my slavery. But in Exodus 12:40; we saw what happened - Now the sojourning of the children of Israel, who dwelt in Egypt was four hundred and thirty (430) years.

In Jeremiah 32:18; we know what the Scriptures says - Thou shewest lovingkindness unto thousands and recompensest the iniquity of the fathers into the bosom of their children after them: the Great, the Mighty God, the LORD of Hosts is His Name.

In Exodus 1: 8-14; the seed that the Hebrew boys sow after over one hundred (100) years after they sow their seeds, the Harvest started coming even when the generation had died - their children was alive to receive the Harvest.

Another King who did not know Joseph came up in Egypt and he reduced the Hebrews to slave. They became a Nationality of slaves.

Jeremiah 32:18 says: I am the God that rewards the iniquity of the fathers into the bosom of the children.

When they discovered Joseph and came for food; Joseph looked at them and remembered. He wept but instead of taking vengeance he showed them love. He fulfilled Romans 12: 17-21. He rewarded them good for the evil they did to him. He gave them free food, returned their money, treated them nicely and eventually brought them into Egypt to deliver them from being destroyed by famine.

Let me tell you today; if your Prayers are not being answered rather than challenging God, cry to God for Mercy.

While Joseph demanded that they must bring Benjamin or else they won't get food again. Jacob said: No, I cannot released Benjamin. Have been bereaved of Joseph. Now Simeon is no more and I don't know if he is alive. You take Benjamin and he goes on to die.

Why is the "Covenant child of God" celebrating tragedies after tragedies. The labour, the seed the wickedness that Jacob did catch up with him after years.

Maybe there is something standing against your life - look back and look inwards.

God has sent me to you today because your "Long Standing Prayers" He will answer you tonight.

Jacob has to choose between dying of hunger or releasing Benjamin to go. Finally, he said: Lord God Almighty show us Mercy. Show us Mercy so that when we go to this man; he will change them to Mercy and he will return both Simeon and Benjamin.

When he cried to God for Mercy; he did not know that he was praying for his own son Joseph.

When they got to the land and finally Joseph uncovered himself to them; they all went to the ground and pleading for their lives.

He said No; though you meant it for evil, but God turned it around for good. Go and tell daddy that am alive.

When Pharaoh heard about it; he sent wagons, goods and said come unto the land and settle and I will give you a Choice part of Egypt. So Jacob moved into Egypt.

So it was the seed that Jacob sowed that brought him into suffering. Now he has entered into Egypt and enjoyed throughout the seventy (70) years that they stayed with Joseph in Egypt.

But after Joseph died and there arose another Pharaoh that knew not Joseph.

But I have a Solution for you tonight; Israel became slaves and for over one hundred (100) years; they suffered until they began to cry to God. God raised a man called Moses who in his own zeal and passion has committed murder while fighting for the Hebrews and he was declared wanted by Pharaoh who wanted to kill him so he ran away.

And after forty (40) years; God returned him to Egypt. There was a death sentence hanging on Moses and here he has come to deliver the slaves - Pharaoh will not agree.

After ten (10) Miracles, Pharaoh was still obstinate and at the tenth (10th) Miracle when Moses declared Total Darkness for three (3) days and it became clear that they must go. And Pharaoh said you cannot go the way you wanted to go. And Moses said that we have to go the way we want to go. Pharaoh looked at him and said: let me not see your face anymore; the next time I see you, you are dead. And Moses said that you have said it very well; I will not see your face anymore but you will see when you will send your people after me and beg me to leave this land. You will drive us out of this land for my God will move through this land and He is going to kill every first born and there is going to be war and trouble. Pharaoh looked at him - do your worst.

God looked at Moses. The accuser of brethren is looking at Moses too - these people that their fathers are wicked, they put Joseph into slavery; then they must suffer the same slavery; they must not go free.

He looked at Moses, this Moses is a murderer and so he must be killed.

That is the job of Satan. Every time that you commits sin, Satan used it as an opportunity to accuse you.

The earlier you get rid of your sin, the better is it for you. If you don't get rid of your sin, Satan will keep on accusing you.

MEDIA

But something happened. God told Moses that I have a Solution.

... It is the BLOOD.

S

219

Sacrifice a lamb, put the blood on the door post. By midnight, I will move through the land. I will judge all the gods of Egypt.

Tonight, God will judge all your enemies - Amen!

VE

But if God is going to judge all your enemies and remove the barriers; then you yourself must escape Judgement.

The Only way to escape Judgment is to come under the Blood.

Listen, for one hundred and thirty (130) years; they are in bondage of slavery. But after the blood that night; Pharaoh broke down because the gods of Egypt crashed and the Gates were opened.

And in concluding that, God sent Jesus Christ; the actual Lamb of God to take away the sins of the world.

For thousands of years, Adam and Eve has been incapacitated. Every Righteous man that died went under the custody of Satan but when Jesus Christ went to the Cross according to Matthew 27:50 - Jesus when he had cried again with a loud voice yielded up the ghost.

So after the Blood was shed, all the Righteous men that lived; there was an earthquake and the graves were opened and the Righteous men came out of the grave and they littered Jerusalem wearing white robes and Jesus Christ Himself rose from the dead.

If the blood of the lamb could release people from Egypt and the Blood of Jesus could open hell and release Adam, Eve and the Righteous men to take them to Paradise; then the Blood of Jesus will release you tonight.

But for the Blood of Jesus to release you; three (3) things you must do:

1. You must not conceal your sins.

220

2. You must be willing to come under the Blood.

3. You must make a commitment to become a child of the Kingdom.

I don't know how long you have been praying? It might be the sins of your father added to your own sins.

There is no religion that makes provisions for the forgiveness of sin. It is only JESUS and the Word of God that has provided the Lamb for sacrifice. The Saints only overcame by the Blood of the Lamb.

I want to challenge you tonight; how long will you keep your sins and let the devil block your Blessings? Or will you let go of your sins today and let the Blood of Jesus wipes it out.

If you want to be free from the yokes and bondage of sin: you want to be forgiven, you want to overcome the devil by the Blood of the Lamb, you want to get your Freedom, you want the yokes to be destroyed; then I want to pray for your tonight.

So rise up on your fe<mark>et and let us p</mark>ray - everyb<mark>ody.</mark>

221

If you know that tonight, you want to come under the Blood and even the Power of the Blood. You want to be forgiven. You know that Satan has been accusing you, you know that Satan has been condemning you and your conscience has been accusing you. You have fasted and prayed and it has not worked. Or maybe you are not even Born Again, you are not a child of God and you are captive of the devil.

The Good News that I have for you today is that: The Blood that set the Hebrews free in Egypt will set you free tonight.

So you want your Freedom, you want Forgiveness for your sins, you want Redemption, you want your life to Turn Around and you want to be a child of God; why not start coming now. I want to pray for you and I want you to come out very quickly. If you are coming, come quickly as I will count from 1 to 10 and then start praying.

... Mercy will terminate Judgement but Grace will give a level to you that you don't even expect, it will take you to the Kingdom and make you an Heir of God.

Those of you that are on the way, keep coming but those of you here say: My Lord and my God loud and clear. I cried to you for Mercy, forgive my sin oh God. Forgive the sins

of my fathers. Everything that has happened in the past that has brought trouble into my life, everything blocking my prayers, everything causing affliction and death; Father have Mercy on me. Forgive me today. Let the Blood of Jesus wash me clean. I receive forgiveness of my sins. I confess my Faith in Jesus tonight. I believed that Jesus Christ is the Son of the Living God - He died for my sins and rose from the dead.

Lord Jesus take over my life. Let your Blood wash me clean. I confess that you are my Lord and Saviour today. In the Name of Jesus, by the Blood of Jesus I overcome the devil. Satan pack your loads, get out of my life, get out of my way. Stop blocking my Blessings. By the Blood of Jesus, get out of my way.

Thank you Father for forgiving me. In Jesus Name we pray - Amen!

Place your hands on your head as I pray for you:

Lord Jesus, thank you for going to the Cross for us.

These are the people for whom your Blood was shed; they have been captives for long but today they have come under your Blood. Receive forgiveness for your sins. Receive cleansing by the Blood of Jesus. Satan take your dirty hands off their hands.

I release them from every bondage in the Name of Jesus - bondage of sins, demons, sickness, diseases, failure, poverty, imprisonment; be released in Jesus Name.

I stop the devil from assaulting you from now. Let the Eternal Life rest on you. Father, write their names in the Book of Life. Keep that day that we shall see you in Glory.

... You are forgiven in the Name of Jesus.

222

Say that I am forgiven, I have Eternal Life, it is over, Satan has lost me as I belong to Jesus.

If you know that you belong to Jesus let me hear you shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Please the Ushers are there with you. Give them your correct information as my Father, Pastor E.A Adeboye will take over praying for you from now. Just make sure that you write the correct information and you will be happy that you come under a "New Management"!!!

COMPILATIONS BY

MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND ADEBANJO ADESOLA

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW

### DAY 5 - TALK 3 - TOPIC: GLORY AHEAD - PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE

### DATE: 7TH DECEMBER, 2018

### **TEXT: COLOSSIANS 1:27**

1. Well, let's lift up our hands to the Most High and bless His Name. Let's begin to bless Him. Give Him all Glory, give Him all Honour, give Him all Adoration. He is worthy to be adored. He is worthy to be Magnified. Worship the Ancient of Days.

Thank you Father; Thank you Jesus. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

2. Lift your voice loud and clear to Him, and say Father; tonight, in my life Manifest your Glory.

Let's talk to the Almighty God; Thank you Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

We given you Honour; ERMEDIACREW

### SONG:

We give you all the Glory,

We give you all the Glory,

We given you Honour.

### **PROPHECIES**:

224

1. Thank you Father! Daddy wants me to tell someone here tonight or reading, that as far as you are concerned: The Night is over.

2. Oh! Thank You Lord. Daddy says I should tell someone here or reading, your Appointment with death has being postponed for Fifteen (15) years.

... Oh! Blessed be Your Holy Name.

3. Daddy asked me to tell someone here or reading, that you walked into that bondage by yourself. But the Lord said I should tell you that: because you are here tonight or reading this message: I will bring you out.

### **OPENING PRAYER:**

And so Father, we just want to thank you for what you did on Monday, thank you for what you did on Tuesday, thank you for what you did on Wednesday, thank you for what you did yesterday and thank you in advanced for what you are about to do tonight. Thank you for previous Congresses. Please accept our thanks in Jesus Name.

Tonight Father, just Glorify your Name in all our lives; in all our families, and in all our Nations, Father Glorify your Name.

At the end of everything, let your Name be Glorified. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. Amen!

Well, let somebody shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

And shake hands with two (2) or there (3) people, say: Good Evening Elect of God.

And then you may please be seated; Except all those born in the Month of December. If you are born in the Month of December let me hear you shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

GO PRAY FOR THOSE BORN IN DECEMBER:

Father I want to thank you for all these your children who were born in December. December is the last month of the year. You always reserve the BEST for the last. Please Daddy, for these your children born in December; give them the BEST! Give them the best physically, give them the best materially, give them the best spiritually. And let this New Year be greater than previous years.

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. Amen!

Once again, all those born in the month of December shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Praise The Lord!

BIRTH REPORT: Well, as at 7pm Friday night, the numbers of babies born during this Congress stands at Thirty Nine (39). And the boys have taken over - twenty one (21) Boys and eighteen (18) Girls.

Let the boys shout Praise the Lord. And let the girls shout Hallelujah.

I told you yesterday; we will catch up with the girls.

### **ANNOUNCEMENTS:**

1. Am happy to announce to you that the Redeemers College of Technology and Management is now opened here at the Redemption Camp.

So if you are interested in Technology and Management; this is your opportunity. Tell your Friends and Relatives.

By the Grace of God, this College of Technology and Management is Technologically well equipped.

2. It has been brought to my attention that some people are selling car keys and bracelet with my photograph and the photograph of my wife in it. May I appeal to you in the Mighty Name of Jesus; DON'T buy it from them. If you have bought, throw them away. If you can see the sellers, report them to the Police.. I didn't send them. I have nothing to do with them.

What these people are doing can lead to serious trouble; Not for them, but for me. God will never share His Glory with any man. If at any time, God senses that a man is sharing His Glory; that man is dead!

... Whether the devil likes it or not; I am not dying yet.

A woman bought one of the bracelets with "my photograph"; gave it to her child. You know children, anything they see they will put in their mouth. The child began to eat it. When the mother wanted to take it; she saw my picture was opened and it was the picture of Prophet T.B Joshua at the other side. And you already know what that means.

Please don't cooperate with anyone who wants to kill me.

... Do u hear and Amen to that - Amen!

3. Alright, December 31st here in this Auditorium; we will have the last Holy Communion Service for this year.

... Don't be surprised; You will see Next Year.

After that; Service of Songs and Cross Over Night Service will take place

Then, on 4th of January 2019; the First Holy Ghost Service of the Year will be held.

The Theme will be: "SWIMMING IN GLORY".

So, I expect to see you at least, at the Holy Ghost Service. You can have 31st December in your Churches.

The way things will go tonight is different from what you are used to; because something happened overnight.

You know, those of you who were here yesterday; I told you the story of my little Bomboy who will come into my Prayer Room asking for cookies; when am discussing important matter with my Daddy. But I have to suspend my BIG prayer and attend to him.

And like I told those of you last night; I am God's Special Boy. I am God's Bomboy. God is my Daddy; He is my Poopsie. Occasionally we talk like Father and son.

So last night I asked my Daddy for a Special favour; Something I have never asked before.

I said Daddy; the Word of God says from the mouth of Jesus "My Father worketh, hitherto I work". So I know you busy in Heaven looking after the whole earth.

But I have a Special request: Can you suspend what you are doing and Concentrate just one (1) hour for Holy Ghost Congress 2018?

What did He say? My son, It is Done!

So, my preaching tonight will be probably Fifteen (15) to (20) minutes. Because I want to give you an opportunity to go before God for one (1) Hour; Solid One (1) Hour!

PROPHECY: Thank you Daddy. My Daddy asked me to tell someone here or reading; He said: I assure you, you will NOT carry Failure into the New Year.

I am going to be very brief and give you one (1) hour. From the moment I say start Praying; Daddy will be focussing on you for one (1) hour. I beg you; during that one (1) hour, don't ask for small things because as a result of what God will do tonight; Your Life can never, never be the same again.

### **BIBLE TEXT: COLOSSIANS 1:27**

228

"To whom God would make known what is the riches of the glory of this mystery among the Gentiles; which is Christ in you, the hope of glory:"

What is the Meaning of Christ is you? Oh! It could mean several things:

1. It could mean Christ is dwelling in you.

.. Which give you another Name to add to your list of Names.

Those of you who have been here since Monday; we have several Names. Well, we won't tell you. But add this to your Names: I am the HABITATION OF CHRIST.

"I am the Light of the World; I am the Salt of the Earth; I am a child of God. I am a Christian. I am a Branch of the Life; I am an Ambassador; I am the Elect of God; I am the Habitation of Christ.

2. It could also means Christ is in Total Agreement with you.

When you are discussing something very important, you may ask: Are you IN or OUT? If he says he is IN, it means he is in Total Agreement.

3. It means Christ has stepped into my situation. And if Christ has stepped into my situation; automatically, everything will change.

No wonder the Bible says in 2 Corinthians 5:17 Therefore if any man be in Christ, he is a new creature: old things are passed away; behold, all things are become new.

So if Christ is in anyone; everything will change from Shame to GLORY.

### So when we say Glory Ahead;

1. We are prophesying. It is a Prophetic thing. I don't want to spend time going into details; but is Prophetic.

2. Glory Ahead generates Hope.

Glory Ahead is telling you; don't lose Hope. As long as we are alive, there is Hope. After all the Bible says in Isaiah 3:10 "Say ye to the righteous, that it shall be well with him: for they shall eat the fruit of their doings.

3. Glory Ahead in an Encouragement. It says Help is available.

Like I told you yesterday; that Help is near, so don't despair.

4. Glory Ahead is Comfort.

230

Because the Bible says 1Corinthians 14:3 - 'But he that prophesieth speaketh unto men to edification, and exhortation, and comfort."

Now, when we say Glory Ahead, it is something we have to receive by Faith. The Bible says the just shall live by faith.

1. Glory Ahead means the Glory is in the future.

Ahead does not mean very far. Ahead means, not too far away.

So if God is saying to you; Glory Ahead; it means that ahead can be tonight!

For example, in John 2:1-11; when they lacked wine in the wedding in Cana of Galilee. And the mother of Jesus came to Him to her; He said: my time has not yet come. But before the end of the day, His time came.

May I declare to someone here or reading; your own Glory will begin tonight.

2. Glory Ahead means somehow, the future is going to be better.

The Glory of the latter is going to be greater than the former. It means your best is yet to come.

3. It could mean that your Sun is about to rise.

And I thank God He has already spoken to someone here or reading, that: the night is over.

4. Glory Ahead could mean that the present is not so good but that things will not remain the same.

5. Glory Ahead could mean that things are good but they are about to get better.

For example, Elisha was already a wealthy farmer. And by the time the Almighty God stepped in, he became the father of kings.

6. Glory Ahead could mean things are Glorious at the moment, but God wants to move you to a New Level of Glory.

1 Corinthian 15:41 There is one Glory of the sun, and another Glory of the moon, and another Glory of the stars: for one star differeth from another star in Glory.

It is within the Power of the Almighty God to move you from one level of Glory to another.

7. Glory Ahead could mean there was a past that was not so good.

There was a woman who named her child Ichabo - the Glory has been lost.

8. Glory could be Stolen.

231

The Bible says a new king that did not know Joseph, which made the children of Israel become slaves.

So if your Glory has been stolen; Glory Ahead is about to change the problem of the past.

9. Glory Ahead could mean that some people have never seen Glory before. But God says He is about to do Something New.

What is Glory?

It is the opposite of shame. Proverbs 3:35 says that: The wise shall inherit glory: but shame shall be the promotion of fools.

Glory is for the wise; shame is for fools. The wise are the opposite of fools. And so, Glory is the opposite of shame.

So, when God says Glory Ahead, it man's shame is about to end in your life.

And there are certain things that causes Shame:

1. Sickness, particularly disease.

You are not likely to see someone going round to say he has AIDS.

2. Failure can cause shame.

You won't see a student come home shouting Glory, when he failed his exams.

3. Defeat can cause shame.

When Nigerian Team won the World Cup several years ago; the day they arrived Nigeria, Lagos stood still as they drove through the streets. But next time, when they were defeated, and they were returning; nobody knew when they arrived.

Because there is nothing to Glory in defeat, nothing to Glory in stagnation; that is to say, I have been on one spot for twenty (20) years and with no promotion. There is nothing to Glory in bondage.

You won't see somebody say: Glory be to God, I have just discovered I am a nonentity. There is no Glory in servitude.

Glory means the absent of all these things.

**PROPHECY**: Oh Thank you Father. The Lord asked me to tell someone here or reading; very soon your song will be: "Now that the battle is over, I am more than a conqueror".

If you are that one, let me hear you shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

So Glory Ahead means sickness will soon be over. Failure will soon be forgotten. Defeat will no longer be heard.. Poverty will end, Sorrow forgotten and Joy will come.

Let me round up. I am doing this in your interest. I have prepared my note. That one (1) hour is about to begin.

Glory belongs to the Wise. From now on be the wise. The wise shall inherit Glory.

1. Be wise, he that winneth soul is wise. You know the reverse to that? He that is not winning soul us foolish.

2. Be wise, pay your vows. Because the Bible says God has no pleasure in fools.

3. Be wise, because the Bible says, the fool says in his heart, there is no God.

4. Be wise, because the Bible says in Hebrew 11:6 - But without faith it is impossible to please him: for he that cometh to God must believe that He is, and that He is a rewarder of them that diligently seek Him.

Seek God diligently!

We are to pray for one (1) hour, if you like within that one hour fall asleep. An opportunity like this might never come again. I will not go back to God for this kind of opportunity.

If I were you, all those things I have asked from God that have not been granted, I will gather all of them to God. If I were you, I won't ask for a small thing.

I will be asking God: Don't let my Sun set in the afternoon. Anoint me afresh, and let me be one of your favourites. Put an end to my sorrow.

I am not going to tell you what you are going to ask for the one (1) hour. Go ahead, your one (1) hour begins now....

... Thank you Father, Glory be to your Holy Name. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

### **GO PRAYS:**

234

Even before you get to your seat, let your testimonies begin. Oh my Father and my God, let the Blessings of this moment last forever. Let the victories of tonight be permanent: Let there be a Revival of Praises, a revival of Joy, a revival of Success, a revival of Promotion and a combination of Testimonies release right now, in Jesus Name.

In case there is anything they should have asked for that they did not; out of your Mercy grant it to them in Jesus Name. If they have asked for anything amiss, because of your Blood correct it, in Jesus Name.

In years to come, let your children remember tonight. For everyone of us Lord, let this be the great Turning Point.

Thank you Almighty God. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. Amen!

You can go back to your seats. Thank God.

We have two (2) little items in the next 10 minutes...

**PROPHECY**: Thank you Father. The Lord said I should tell someone here or reading; He said He will Help you again and again and again!

We want to do two (2) things together. You don't argue with results. You don't argue with Testimonies. When I listened to Testimonies of what God has been doing with the Handkerchiefs anointed here: the Healings, Raising the dead and like the one we heard here yesterday - they cut off one of the breasts. A sister gave her the Anointed Handkerchief. Within two (2) weeks, Two (2) new breasts were given to her.

Because of these incredible Testimonies, I have made up my mind to be anointing your Handkerchiefs, clothes, shoes, everyone on every Special Occasion.

We are going to worship Him for ten (10) minutes. So we will do two (2) things together. We will take out our Thanksgiving Offering. Get it ready. If you have any Special Handkerchief get it ready too.

And then, we will just worship God. I will take my own Special Song, you will take your own Special Song. No instruments. I will sing, you will sing. In the process, we will wave what you want God to Anoint; I will wave my hands. And we will return with Testimonies.

Let us stand, then think about your Song. Pick your offering and the item you want God to Anoint. And then just begin to sing your Worship Song.

Thank you Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

235

It is done in Jesus Name. I say it is done in Jesus Name. One more time; It is done in Jesus Name -Amen!

So now the band can play. You dance to the nearest Offering Basket, drop your offering. And then in the next two (2) minutes I will pronounce a blessing on you and then you will be on your way.

NOTE: Saturday Evening we shall have both Holy Communion. And Anointing Service; to round up the whole thing.

CLOSING PRAYER:

In the Name that is above all other names; Your Glory begins Now. For the rest of your life you will be dancing for Joy.

The Almighty God bless your Offering, and use it for His Glory. And make poverty a stranger to you.

As you go, He will go with you.

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed. Amen!

Who got the BIGGEST Miracle tonight? Shout the BIGGEST Hallelujah - hallelujah!

DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW

**EDITORIAL NOTE:** God specifically reserves the nest for the last.

The past 5 Days has been Glorious but am sure you will want to cap it up with a Anointing from God.

... So make it a date with God on Saturday night for the Holy Communion and Anointing Service.

You are surely going to leave the Holy Congress fully loaded for the manifestations of your Glory.

We appreciate you all for reading and keeping faith in our Crew little efforts to reach out to you!

... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... taking back the Power in the Media Space!

COMPILATIONS BY

MOSES DURODOLA, TITILAYOMI AJAYI AND ADEBANJO ADESOLA

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW

### DAY 6 - ANOINTING AND COMMUNION SERVICE -PASTOR E.A. ADEBOYE

### DATE: 7TH DECEMBER, 2018

### **TEXT: 2 KINGS 2:13-15**

1. Now, go ahead and worship the Lord. Worship the King of kings. Worship the Ancient of Days. Give Him Glory, give Him Adoration. Bless His Holy Name, Worship Him, Adore Him. There is no one like Him. He is the Almighty, the Alpha, the Omega. Blessed be your Holy Name. Oh! Lord we thank you because you are worthy to be Praised, you are worthy to be Adored as there is no one like you.

Thank you Lord. Blessed be your Holy Name. Oh! Thank you Jesus. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

2. Now lift your voice loud and clear and say Father; tonight; Give me your BEST!

Go ahead, talk to the Almighty God.

Thank you Lord. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

### SONG:

We give all the glory to Jesus

And tell of His Love

His wonderful Love.

We give all the glory to Jesus

And tell of His Wonderful Love.

### **OPENING PRAYER:**

Father, we just give you all the Glory. We give you all the Honour. We give you all the Adoration: thank you for what you did on Monday, thank you for what you did on

Tuesday, thank you for what you did on Wednesday, thank you for what you did on Thursday, thank you for what you did yesterday and thank you for what you yet to do tonight. Father please accept our thanks in Jesus Name.

Father tonight give us your best. Let your Anointing flow like a river. Let the Anointing destroy every yokes that may be left in our lives; left in our families, left in your Churches, left in our Nations. And at the end of it all; let your Name be Glorified.

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Let somebody shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Shake hands with two (2) or there (3) people. Say: Good evening your Excellency, cheer up! God has heard you yesterday.

Go ahead.

If you believe that, let me hear you shout a big hallelujah - hallelujah!

Oh! Yes, He has heard you. The Testimonies are already coming. There will be many, many more.

And then please be seated.

BIRTH REPORT: As of 6pm Saturday, the number of Babies born during this Congress has increased to forty nine (49). And the boys have extended their lead. We now have twenty seven (27) boys and twenty two (22) girls.

Let the boys shout Praise the Lord. And let the girls shout hallelujah!

### BIBLE TEXT: 2 KINGS 2:13-15

239

13. He took up also the mantle of Elijah that fell from him, and went back, and stood by the bank of Jordan;

14. And he took the mantle of Elijah that fell from him, and smote the waters, and said, Where is the LORD God of Elijah? and when he also had smitten the waters, they parted hither and thither: and Elisha went over.

15. And when the sons of the Prophets which were to view at Jericho saw him, they said, The spirit of Elijah doth rest on Elisha. And they came to meet him, and bowed themselves to the ground before him.

By the time you get home after this Congress; your mates will be bowing down to you - Amen.

It is one thing to come to a gathering like this and receive tremendous blessings. It is another thing to take the blessings all the way back home.

In the Name that is above every other names; the blessings of this Congress will last forever - Amen!

Elisha was one of the sons of the Prophets. Just one of the sons: one of the All OTHERS! But then, he followed his father to the other side of Jordan. And then when his father was about to leave; he said: what do you want? He said, "I want a double portion of your spirit". The father said: "you have asked for a HARD thing. But if you see me when I am taken away from you; then you will get what you want".

Of course the boy said: "I didn't come here to joke; I followed you this far to get something".

Well, as they were talking; God came down. And the boy's request was granted.

Believe me honestly; God has heard you yesterday. And your request is already granted - Amen.

But then, here was this young man; now heavily anointed - Anointing coming FRESH from Heaven.

But the Place where he needed to be; to demonstrate what he has received, is on the OTHER side of Jordan.

There is River Jordan between him and the fulfilment of his destiny.

He came to that Jordan, and used the "Fresh Anointing" that he just received to divide River Jordan into two (2).

Every Jordan standing between you and your Glory will be parted tonight, in Jesus Name - Amen!

It was after he parted Jordan that all other sons of the Prophet came; bowed down to him any they became his servants.

In 1 Samuel 2: 22-30; Eli was a symbol of the "OLD Oil". He had become INEFFECTIVE!

So, by the time we move to 1 Samuel 3; God decided it was time for a "Fresh Oil" - and the Fresh Oil fell on Samuel. And from that moment onward, the history of a Nation became drastically changed.

You will begin to feel the desire for Fresh Oil, as an Ambassador of Christ:

1. Anytime you feel doing the Will of is becoming Tedious.

For example, if you are a Minister of God and we all are; and there was a time; when you speak a Word, demons tremble. Now you find it difficult! You struggle the whole night to get rid of one (1) demon. Then, you need Fresh Oil.

2. If there was a time Witnessing for Christ was like honey in your Tea; and now opening your mouth to talk about the One who saved your soul, is becoming a struggle. Then, you need Fresh Oil.

3. If you used to pray for one (1) hour; and you are amazed that one (1) hour has gone so soon. But now, by the time you pray for one (I) hour, you are wondering: Why didn't daddy stop us? Is it not one (1) hour yet? Then, you need Fresh Oil.

... When the Old Oil is no longer effective, then you need Fresh Oil.

Samuel was sleeping in the same room with Eli. God was calling Samuel, and Eli wasn't hearing. He didn't know who was talking. It was later on he said: oooh! It must be God calling this boy.

In the past, if God whispered, Eli would have heard.

4. So, if you are a Minister of God, and you used to hear from God clearly but now you are no longer hearing. Then, you need Fresh Oil.

5. Fresh Oil is needed when the Old oil has become LOST.

In the case of Judges 17:18-21, for example; the Bible tells us that when Delilah said to Samson: "The Philistines be upon thee". Oh! He said: "I will get up, I will go as before"; he didn't know God had departed from him

I prey for every one of you here, or reading; God will never depart from you - Amen!

When Old Oil has been lost or stolen, you need Fresh Oil. The oil could be lost, like I said. Delilah stole the one of Samson.

I Samuel 16:14-26; the Old Oil had being withdrawn by the Owner.

If you are listening to me or reading,; and you know that your Fresh Oil has gone dim. Whatever you need to do, in the Mighty Name of Jesus Christ: God will grant you the Grace to do what you have to do; so that your Oil will be restored, in Jesus Name -Amen! Actually, the one I want to talk about tonight is that: Fresh Oil is necessary when The GLORY PROMISED is about to be actualised.

In other words; if God had Promised you Glory and He wants to bring it to pass, what He had Promised you. Then there may be the need for Fresh Oil.

Let me explain; in 1 Samuel 16:11-13; God Promised David; and Samuel poured Oil on his head. From that point onward, David was already anointed to be King of Israel.

But do you know that thirteen (13) years followed, before he sat on the throne. He was a king, running from Cave to Cave. Until 2 Samuel 2:4; when the Fresh Oil was poured on his head; that he became king Judah.

Oh, there are many of us ; we have heard again and again from God. You know, when a Word of Knowledge comes from the altar here; some of them are so direct, that you know that: this is for me. Everybody may say Amen, but you know: this is my own. And then, you wait and wait.

What happened?

243

God spoke! And you see other people giving Testimonies. They say: I came here, God said, and this is the result. Where is my own Miracle(s)?

When you know that Glory is already Promised, and you have been waiting and waiting. There may be the need for Fresh Oil. And the moment the Fresh Oil comes, it could means:

MEDIA

"The day you have been waiting for, has come".

So, I have Good News for somebody; Even before Christmas Day, you will be sharing your Testimonies - Amen!

But then, it didn't end there. David became king over Judah, said: thank you Lord, " half bread is better than nothing". But the Promise is: "I will be king over Israel, NOT just one (1) Tribe; over Twelve (12).

And then in 2 Samuel 5:1-3; the people of Isreal came; he didn't look for them, They came!

Your Glory will come looking for you - Amen. Wherever they have been all these years; the appointed Time has come - Amen!

They said: Sir, when king Saul was here, you were the one who was leading us to battle. You are our Leader now he is dead. And we have come to Anoint you to be king over Israel.

Fresh Oil! To confirm that: the Glory Ahead has become Glory Now.

When do you want your Glory? Now! Next year Congress? Now! Early January? Now! When do you want your Glory? Now!!!!

Now, just for two (2) or more minutes; Fresh Oil can be very, very Aggressive. So, you need to get ready for what is about to happen now. Like New Brooms, Fresh Oil can sweep clean, aggressively.

Fresh Oil on Samson in Judges 14:5-6; the Holy Spirit has been moving the boy a little. But all of a sudden a Lion came. Samson didn't even moved little step behind. He welcomed the Lion, grap it and tore it into two (2).

Do you know that the enemies you are running from; you will be the one who will be saying: Come, you want to fight? Come now! Because things are different now.

But because I don't want to spend too much time, before the Fresh Oil comes on your head;

The very First Day that Elisha got the Fresh Oil; the first day, NOT the second day. He did certain things:

1. He crossed his own Jordan. And you will be crossing your Jordan tonight - Amen.

And do you know, by crossing Jordan, he had just equalled what his father did.

The Promotion was rapid. Some moment ago, it was his father; who parted Jordan. Now, he is the one doing the same thing.

I want to decree in the Mighty Name of Jesus Christ; that anything God has used me to do; from tonight onward, you will be doing the same - Amen!

... That's beautiful enough! But, it is not all that he did that;

2. That day; not the following day: as soon as he crossed over to Jericho; not the following day (The day that he got the Oil); the people of Jericho came to him in 2 Kings 2:19-22.

The people of Jericho, they didn't even allow him to sit down. They said: Sir, we missed the opportunity of your father helping us. But thank God that you are here. And we could see that the spirit of your father is on you. Our City has a problem.

He solved the problem of the City of Jericho THAT SAME DAY!

You know what? When God asked you to pray; to talk to him for One (1) hour yesterday, many of you never mentioned your Town in all your prayers. Because you have enough problem of your own. Many of you just didn't even remember. But tonight you will remember.

As soon as you get home; fortunately this is festive period - Christmas period. And so many of you will travel home. As soon as you get home this time, I want to encourage you: Go to the the Centre of your Town. They may look at you as if you are....; if possible go very early in the morning when they are still sleeping. And cancel the Curse on your City. Will you do that?

... I didn't hear your Amen - Amen!

3. That same day, not the following day, that Elisha got the Fresh Oil; as he was, he had just finished with the people of Jericho and he want to continue his journey.

2 Kings 2:23-24; some people began to mock him - some children began to mock him. And he turned and dealt with them. He silenced his mockers permanently.

Do you know that throughout the end of the life of Elisha, nobody ever mocked him again. He settled the issue of his mockers. The very first day he got the Fresh Oil.

What is it that is mocking you,? What is it that is asking: Where is your God?

It could be one problem or the other. But you need to deal with it.

There could be something in your life, or in your family that has being causing.... In short, you may have problem that you can't even tell anyone; but the problem is still there that is not allowing your Joy to be full.

The moment you get the Oil tonight, Zero in on that one. Don't leave it until tomorrow.

When the Oil is Fresh it can be very, very Aggressive. So I rejoice with those of you who stayed behind for the Final Lecture. Because tonight, you will cross your Jordan. You will destroy the Curse on on your family, and villages and Towns. You will silenced your mockers permanently. And for you: Glory Ahead will become Glory Now - Hallelujah!

Do I hear you shout hallelujah - Hallelujah!

Before we go further, just in case you have not being here since the beginning of the week. And you came in only now. And you have not yet surrendered your life to Jesus. And will want to do so because you don't want to miss the blessing of tonight.

Am going to count from one (1) to ten (10). Before I say ten (10); you will come and stand before me. I will pray for your Salvation, and then the blessing will become available to you.

You see, because when we talk about the Oil; you don't pour Oil on a dirty body. Nobody uses moisturizer or cream on a body that has not being washed.

So, if you have not being washed in the Blood of the Lamb, come now. Let Jesus save your soul. And then you will be free to receive the Anointing.

And am counting.....

247

you better come to Him; and come and surrender your life to Him. And let Him out of His Mercy save your soul.

Thank you, those of you who are clapping. Your hands will never be empty. Ok, thank you very much.

Those of you who are already in front cry to God: Please Save my soul and I will serve you for the rest of my life. Those of you who are already on the way, keep coming. We will wait. Get here before we finish praying.

Cry to Him: Save my soul, have mercy on me, forgive all my sins Lord. And receive me into the Family of God. I want you to be my Lord; I want you to be my Father.

And the rest of us, can we please stretch our hands to these people and intercede for them. Pray that the One who save our souls will save their own souls too. Also, pray that the Almighty God will turn them to children of God. Pray for them Brethren. Intercede for them just for one (1) more minute. Pray for them?

Those of you who are on the way, hurry up. Pray as you come. Ask God to have Mercy on you and to save your soul.

... Thank you Jesus; keep coming, I will wait ten (10) seconds more. And then we will pray for you.

Thank you Father; In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

GO PRAYS: Saviour, I just want to say: Thank You. Thank you for your Words. And Thank you for these people that have responded to your Word. You have Promise that whosoever will come unto you; you will no wise cast out. They have come to you now. Father, Please receive them, forgive them, let your Blood wash away their sins, save their souls, write their names in the Book of Life, receive them into the family of God.

I pray that Lord God Almighty, from now on; anytime they call on you, you will answer them by Fire. Thank you Almighty God. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Now those of you in front, I want you to know that the Almighty God is extremely pleased with you. And from now I will be praying for you. So am going to need your Name, your address, and and prayer request.

The Counsellors will please move in very quickly. They will attend to you. They will give you cards that I want you to fill very quickly. And then you will go back to your seats, as you return the cards to them. Before we proceed further.

Congratulations! God bless you. Let's give the Lord a big round of applause.

Thank you Choir, you have done excellently well throughout this Congress. God bless you - Amen!

# HOLY COMMUNION:

In Psalm 23:5, David said: "Thou prepareth a table before me in the presence of mine enemies: thou anointeth my head with oil; my cup runneth over."

God is a God who is More Than Sufficient. And whenever He wants to do anything, He will do it perfectly.

Before He created man at all, He had already prepared a Garden of Eden where He will put them.

So, before Anointing you at all, He will want to feed you. Knowing that that after the Anointing, you will want to jump into action.

So, we are going to have Holy Communion before the Anointing.

For those of you who might be coming for the first time; the moment they serve you the Bread, and I give you the go ahead; you can eat. And this time, when you eat the Bread, just keep on Praising God. Don't ask for anything yet. After all you have asked for a lot yesterday.

When the time comes, and they will serve you with the Wine. You hold on till we have all been served the Wine. And then I will tell you what to do as we drink.

And today, because of time, I will need the assistance of the Assistant General Overseer (AGO) to help me serve the Bread to the people at the Altar; so that we can finish on time.

"That the Lord Jesus the same night in which he was betrayed took bread: And when he had given thanks, he brake it, and said: Take, eat: this is my body, which is broken for you: this do in remembrance of me - In the Name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit." - Amen!

As they serve you the Bread, eat it. And just Praise God. Just keep Praising Him; till they serve you the the Wine. You hold on to it till we have been all served, and we drink together as one.

COVERY MEDIA CREW

SONG:

249

There is Power Mighty in the Blood,

There is Power Mighty in the Blood,

There is Power Mighty in the Blood of Jesus Christ.

There is Power Mighty in the Blood,

There is Healing Mighty in the Blood,

There is Healing Mighty in the Blood

There is Healing Mighty in the Blood of Jesus Christ.

There is Healing Mighty in the Blood,

... Thank you Pastors. You can go back to seats

There is Glory Mighty in the Blood,

There is Glory Mighty in the Blood,

There is Glory Mighty in the Blood of Jesus Christ.

There is Glory Mighty in the Blood,

Ok, let us stand please.

When you drink the Wine tonight, you are going to ask the Almighty God to send down His Fire and fill my entire being with the Holy Spirit.

If you have been baptised in the Holy Spirit before; as soon as you pray that simple prayer, then you begin to pray in the Spirit.

If you have not been baptised in the Holy Spirit before, as soon as you drink the Wine, get ready. The Holy Spirit will come upon you and you will begin to pray in the Holy Spirit, too.

"After the same manner also he took the cup, when he had supped, saying, This cup is the new Testament in my blood: this do ye, as oft as ye drink it, in remembrance of me. In the Name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit."

PRAYER: Let the Holy Spirit descend oh Lord and fill everything. Set me on Fire for you again. Let me have a brand new beginning of your Power. A brand New Beginning of your Grace.

In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen.

250

May your request be granted to you in Jesus Name. Let's be seated.

### ANOINTING SERVICE:

I have prayed over these Oil, ready for the Anointing Service.

As usual, I will Anoint my wife, the Assistant General Overseer (AGO), some of the Elders. And they in turn will help me Anoint Pastors, and so on. And the Pastors will about you.

So that we can do this very thing quickly and get to the Prayer Session of tonight.

In the meantime, the Choir will continue to worship the Power of the Holy Spirit.

Please as soon as you are anointed just continue to pray in The Spirit; if you are already baptised in the Holy Spirit. Otherwise keep on Praising God until you are able to speak in Tongues.

Thank you Jesus, Than Lord!

## Shall we stand. ERY MEDIA CREW

### PRAYER POINTS:

251

1. First prayer you have to pray with your Fresh Anointing is to Decree that every River Jordan standing between you and the fulfilment of your Destiny be parted right now!

.... Go ahead talk to the Almighty God. Thank you Jesus, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

2. Preambles: The first time that Elijah threw his Mantle on Elisha; Elisha knew that there is a Calling upon his life to be great. But until that Fresh Oil came, he was just a servant. After the Fresh Oil, his Reigning began.

Cry to the Almighty God and say Father; by the Unction of this Anointing, put me on my Throne.

Open your mouth and cry to the Almighty God. Thank you Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

3. Then you will lift your voice to the Almighty God and say Father; Any Curse that may remain in my: Life, in my family, in my Town, in my Nation. Let it be destroyed now.

Go ahead and talk to the Almighty God. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

4. And then you lift your voice to the Almighty God and say Father; Anything or people Mocking me, this very moment silenced them.

Go ahead, talk to the Almighty God. Thank you Lord. Thank you Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

5. And then you lift your voice to the Almighty God and say Father; You call me the Light of the world, Let me begin to shine.

Open your mouth, talk to the Almighty God. Thank you Lord. Thank you Jesus. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen.

6. And then you lift your voice to the Almighty God and say Father; You say I am the Salt of the earth. Anywhere I go from now, when I arrive, let Miracles arrive.

Go ahead, talk to the Almighty God. Thank you Lord. Thank you Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.
7. Preambles: Because of the Freshness of the Oil on you. I believe that your own Glory is not just Ahead, but Now! So I want you to pray in Faith;

Say Father; in the Mighty Name of Jesus, I say Welcome to my Glory

Open your mouth and let Him hear you. It is a declaration of your Faith. Thank you Father. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed.

CLOSING PRAYER:

In the Name of The One who called me - The Lord Jesus Himself; I declare everything you have asked for ALREADY DONE!

And so shall it be in Jesus Name. Amen!

If you believe that, let me hear you shout a Big hallelujah - Hallelujah!

... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... Reaching out to the world through the Power of the Gospel!

DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW

COMPILATIONS BY

MOSES DURODOLA AND TITILAYOMI AJAYI

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018

# DAY 7 - THANKSGIVING SERVICE - PASTOR E.A KALEJAIYE

### (PASTOR IN CHARGE OF REGION 23)

#### DATE: 9TH DECEMBER, 2018

Let somebody shout Hallelujah - Hallelujah!

You will agree with me that it has been an awesome Congress; a time of Uncommon Blessings from the Lord.

I want you to rise up to your feet this morning in appreciation for all what God has done during this Congress. Let us wave our hands unto Him and say thank you to Him - to the One who is able to do all things; to the One who has Power, to the One who saves soul, to the One who delivers, to the One who sets free, to the One who does Mighty Things; for all of the remarkable Testimonies.

Glory be to the Name of the Lord this morning. Appreciate Him, Honour Him, Give Him thanks, give Him Praise, Worship and Adore Him. He has been so good. This is a Congress that is Unique, Awesome and Different from every other Congress. It is unusual in Blessings, in Great Manifestations, in Testimonies and also in expectations.

ME

Glorify the Name of the Lord. Our God has been so Good, our God has been so kind. We have enjoyed and experience His Visitation. Let's give Him thanks, let's give Him Glory, let's give Him Honour, let's give Him Worship. Adore the Name of the Lord for all He has done.

Thank Him for the unusual and uncommon strength upon our father in the Lord and with the Words He has spoken through Him and the Host of Ministers during the course of the Congress.

Glorify the Name of the Lord for every life touched and every blessings released. We give you thanks, we give you Praise. Thank you awesome Father, to you alone be all the Glory forever and ever. In Jesus Mighty we have given thanks - Amen!

#### SONG:

| We are Grateful oh Lord      |
|------------------------------|
| Hallelujah                   |
| We are Grateful oh Lord      |
| For all you have done for us |
| Hallelujah                   |
| We are Grateful oh Lord.     |

#### **OPENING PRAYERS**

Father, we have come to return to you all the Glory and Honour for the wonderful and awesome Congress. For your Great Manifestations, for the show of your Power and for the release of your great Power.

Thank you for visiting us during the course of this Congress. Thank you for your awesome Power. Thank you for proving yourself as Faithful and Mighty. We thank you for all the souls that are saved. We say thank you for the lives that are touched. Thank you Father for safe delivery, thank you for your Words, thank you for your Anointing, thank you for Hope, thank you for Great Expectations, thank you all that you have done and thank you for all that will come as s result of this Congress.

To you alone be all the Glory forever in the Mighty Name of Jesus.

Father, as we come for this Thanksgiving Service; we asked that you will accept us and accept our Thanksgiving. To the Glory and Praise of your Name. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Say a better Amen - Amen! Let me hear you Praise God one more time: Praise the Lord - Hallelujah!

God bless you. Please let us take our seat.

We want to appreciate God for this great honour and for an awesome opportunity to be in God's Presence. We want to appreciate our beloved father for this great honour to share the Word of God on this exalted altar. And I want to congratulate every member of the Redeemed Christian Church of God for this Wonderful and Glorious Congress.

Put your hands together for the Lord for all what the Lord has manifested in the course of this Congress - it has been awesome, it has been Glorious, it has been Powerful; a Superlative Congress it has been.

It has been a Congress in a Million. We give Him all the Glory and Honour. May His Name forever be Praised forever.

... In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

My assignment this morning is to give a Word as to why we must give thanks and to spur us to give thanks unto the Most High God.

#### **BIBLE TEXT: EPHESIANS** 1:3

256

Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ who hath blessed us with all Spiritual blessings in Heavenly Places in Christ.

SCOVERY MEDIA CR

In this passage of the Scriptures; the Bible is saying to us: Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ who hath blessed us with all Spiritual blessings in Heavenly Places in Christ.

Now, one of the thing that we need to get right this morning is that blessings are determined from the Spirit realms and from the Heavenly Places. And when they are pronounced there, they manifest in the realm of the Physical.

As a matter of fact, as we learnt during the course of this Congress; battles are fought and determined during the course of the Spirit. And in the course of this Congress, the battles has been determined in our favour - Victory has been granted unto us and so it is necessary for us to go and manifest God's Glory. ... May your life show forth and showcase God's Grace and Mighty Power in the Mighty Name of Jesus.

When we consider the theme: "GLORY AHEAD"; it goes beyond the ordinary theme of a Program. It is an Impartation of Hope for the hopeless to say: hold on and hang on for a better day is ahead. It is an encouragement to the discouraged and it is a Prophetic Declaration.

And as we have found out during the course of this Program, God has strengthened us, our Hope reinforced, our Confidence in God has been Solidified and so we have every reason to give thanks unto the Most High God.

And when you look at the whole of the Congress this Year, you can just look at about five (5) things or reasons there, why we must give thanks unto the Lord this morning for all that He has done for us:

1. Glory Ahead far outweighed the trouble that is around.

There are so many troubles, so many challenges that we see around but we have been assured that we have seen the Glory that is Ahead - it surpasses all the challenges and all the troubles that we see anywhere around.

In 2 Corinthians 4:17, it says that: For our light affliction, which is but for a moment, worketh for us a far more exceeding and eternal weight of Glory.

The afflictions that we have is light compared to the Glory.

257

Now if you will put them in a scale, the Glory outweighs the afflictions. And so whatever is it that is the challenges that we see around; we can look beyond our challenges because there is a Glory that is being revealed at this particular time.

The storm we see is no longer a threat; the intimidation of giants is no longer a threat because we have been assured of Victory - Hallelujah!

2. Secondly, in the course of this Congress; we have discovered that the Glory Ahead makes a pain an enduring one.

Now, whatever we need to go through in order to get to the Place of Glory is worth the enduring.

We cannot help in anyway give up because we know that there is a Glory lurking at the end of the tunnel for us.

The writer of Hebrew in chapter 12, verse 2; giving us the example of Jesus said: Looking unto Jesus, the Author and Finisher of our Faith; who for the Joy that was set before Him endured the cross, despising the shame and is set down at the right hand of the throne of God.

In order words, he said what made Jesus despise every shame and reproach, the beating, the scourging was the Glory that was ahead of Him.

It is sacrifice that inspires the rewards. Where there is a reward, sacrifices will not be difficult.

When there is a "Worthy Price" to be won; the Price to be paid will not be a painful one.

And so in the course of this Congress, God has given us the reassurances again and again that there is a "Better Day Ahead" for us. And so whatever pain of today we can endure it to enter into the moments of our Glory.

3. Thirdly, we also have discovered that the Glory Ahead makes "Adventures Worthy".

Now whatever is it; whatever adventures that we need to go through in order to get there because we see the Glory at the end of it makes it worthy for us.

The story of Elisha and Elijah in 2 Kings 2: 1-9; is an encouragement in this regards.

Now for three (3) consecutive times; Elijah tried to discourage Elisha but Elisha could see ahead the Glory of becoming the "father of the sons of Prophets". So he moved away from the company of the "sons of the Prophets" to becoming the "father of the sons of the Prophets".

So when Elijah asked him to wait, he decided to move on - he said: I will press on and he pressed on until he got to verse 9 when Elijah asked the question: Ask what I shall do for you?

And I don't know how we feel about this: When God through our father in the Lord (Pastor E.A Adeboye); gave us a blank cheque to ask whatever we want?

It is such an awesome opportunity and such a Glorious opportunity to ask whatever things that we needed.

And am sure that no matter how big or great what you think that you must have asked for; just as it was in the case of Solomon; God will still be saying is that all you could ask for? I will give you much more than you have asked for.

We therefore have an expectation that God will beat your expectations and go beyond our imaginations.

4. The forth thing is that the Glory Ahead makes the "Wilderness Journey" a sweet experience to pass through because we can see the glimpse of the Promised Land.

The glimpse of the Promised Land makes the wilderness journey a sweet experience to pass through.

In Deuteronomy 8: 7-9; God painted the picture of the Promised Land to the children of Israel and they could see the picture of where God was taking them and that encouraged them. Even though the journey was prolonged; but they endured it until they arrived at the Place.

May each of us arrive there in the Mighty Name of Jesus!

5. The Glory Ahead is an "Announcement that a Season has ended and a New Season is about to begin".

And we all know that each one of us, every human being is either you are in a Season or you are going out of a Season or you are entering into a Season.

This Congress has moves us from one Season and has taken us into a New Season.

Like we find in Genesis 8:22. It said: While the Earth remaineth, seedtime and harvest, and cold and heat, and summer and winter, and day and night shall not cease.

Now, there are different Seasons in life - While some are in their Dry Season, some are in their Rainy Season.

And so this Congress has moved us from one Season and it has taken us into another one.

So we have existed from the Season of Lost and we are entering into the Season of Gain. We have existed the Season of Scarcity and we are entering into the Season of Surplus. We are moving out from the Season of Denial and we are going into the Season of Acceptance. We are moving out of the Season of "Not Enough" and we are going into the Season of "More Than Enough".

CREW

... I think someone will Glorify the Name of the Lord!

260

Interestingly, in all of these is that the God who has gathered us together, who has sent us a Word; is a "Faithful God". Numbers 23:19 says: God is not a man that He should lie; neither the son of man, that He should repent: hath He said, and shall He not do it? Or hath He spoken, and shall He not make it good?

God will not say anything that He cannot do. And whatever He said; it is done! Nothing is beyond His Ability. Nothing is beyond His Power.

In all of our lives; there will be Manifestations in the Precious Name of Jesus.

Although God has made all these wonderful Promises that we must be thankful for and give God the Glory; you must however understand that if God has spoken, there are things that are in your own part to do as well:

1. You must open your eyes to see every opportunity that God wants to give you because unless you see it, you may not be able to get it.

2. You must open your hearts because you must allow every emotional pains to go before you can enter to where God wants you to get to.

3. You must open your mind because a changed mind determines a changed life.

4. You must open your hands.

There is a seed that you must sow. You must sow the required seed in order to enter into your Glory.

But a final analysis in all of these however is that we need to understand that even though there is a Glory Ahead; it is only meant for those who are on the side of God. It is for those who are righteous.

Psalms 37:37 says: Mark the perfect man, and behold the upright: for the end of that man is peace.

Now for those among us who are not born again; for those among us who has heard about surrendering their lives to Jesus and they have ignored again and again and again. In hearing you have heard it but it is unfortunate that they may not be a Partaker except that you turn around and put yourself on the side of the Lord.

In Hosea 7:1; it says: When I would have healed Israel, then it said that the iniquity of Ephraim was discovered and the wickedness of Samaria: for they commit falsehood; and the thief cometh in and the troop of robbers spoileth without.

Now God wants to bless you but He said that your iniquities will prevent you because the accuser of the brethren will accuse you and stop the blessings from getting down to you.

So you have an opportunity this morning if you are in this congregation or watching/reading from any part of the world and you have not surrendered your life to Jesus. If you must be a Partaker of the Glory that is Now Around and that has arrived; then you must surrender your life to Jesus Christ.

And that is why this morning, if you have not surrendered your life to Jesus, I will invite you before the altar to come and surrender your life because until you make a decision for God, nothing happen positively in your life.

... So come very quickly and God Bless you.

As you come, begin to commit yourself to His hands. Until your life is committed to God, God is not committed to your life. So, come and commit your life unto the Hands of God so that you can see God manifesting in your life. Say, Lord I have come to meet with you; let your Blood washes me clean. Let the Blood of Jesus cleanse me. I surrender my life unto you Jesus, wash me in your Blood, write my name in the Book of Life. Let the Blood of Jesus that speaks better things speaks for me this morning and let all be well with me to the Glory of the Lord. Erase my name from the book of death.

The rest of us, let us give God the Glory because we know that everything in our life will change for the better. God will manifest His Grace and Glory in our lives.

Let's rise on our feet and begin to give thanks to the Lord because we are in a New Season - it is our Season of Glory, Season of Honour. The tides has changed in your favour.

Thank you Blessed Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

#### **CLOSING PRAYER**

Father we are grateful unto you for these your children who has come to respond to the "Calling of Salvation".

Father we asked that the Blood of Jesus will cleanse them; the Blood of Jesus will wash them and Lord you will make them a Partaker and beneficiary of your Glory in the Mighty Name of Jesus.

And Father each and everyone of us in this Program we ask that each of our life will manifest your Glory and the Name of the Lord will be Glorified forever.

Thank you Awesome and Glorious Father, in Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Let the people of God say a better Amen - Amen.

Those of you who had come to surrender your life, just turn to your left (the right of the altar to me); there is a man lifting up a Counseling Board, just go with him - God bless you.

Church, let us put your hands together to celebrate the Goodness and Faithfulness of God!

# DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW

# DAY 7 - FINAL BLESSING AT THE 2018 HOLY GHOST CONGRESS BY PASTOR E.A ADEBOYE

For all these your children, Father thank you (7 times). Please accept our thanks in Jesus Name.

I commit all your children to your Hands, even as they go, please go with them. Everyone of you, particularly those who had stayed behind for the Thanksgiving and those of you doing your own Thanksgiving in your various Churches all over the world; it shall be well with you. The Blessings of this week will last forever. The Miracles of this Congress will never slip out of your hands. The God that I serve who stood by me all through this Congress will stand with you. He will not leave you, He will not forsake you. Your light will continue to shine. Your salt will not lose its Power. You will be Great Ambassadors for Christ. Your Healing Ministries will now begin to blossom. Everything that you touch will prosper. Forever, you will remain the 'Elect of God". You will be the Habitation of the Most High.

God will never leave you; He will never forsake you; He will promote you and He will take you to "Great Heights".

The Everlasting Arms of God will keep on lifting you up and you will enter into the New Year with Joy and you will spend the New Year with Joy. The Days Ahead of you will be "Days of Glory" and you will serve God till the end.

If the Lord tarries, I will see you in the New Year. If He comes before we meet again; none of you will miss Heaven.

... So shall it be!

#### YORUBA VERSION OF PRAYER

All of you including the young and the old; it shall be well with you. All the days of your life: your light will shine, your salt will not turn sour, you will be God's Ambassadors.

All that you will lay your hands upon will be successful.

Wherever you go, God will go with you. Great things of your life will not scatter. You will be going Higher and Higher. Whatever you are asking from God, even before you ask, He will give it to you. He will answer you by Fire. You will not be tired and you will not be discouraged.

The hands of the enemies will not overpower you, the world will not know your secrets. It shall be well with you till the end.

If Jesus tarries, we will meet Next Year. You will enter the New Year with Joy and you will celebrate the New Year Season in Joy. You will serve God till the very end. Everything you needed to serve God in Truth; God will provide it for you. So shall it be. Your head will not reject prayers. Your own will not be difficult to do.

... So shall it be. In Jesus Mighty Name we have prayed - Amen!

Now let me hear you shout the biggest Hallelujah so far - HALLELUJAH!!!

## **EDITORIAL NOTE - APPRECIATION**

My oh mine - it has indeed been a great and awesome week spent in the Presence of God during the Holy Ghost Congress 2018 with the theme "GLORY AHEAD".

... Our Glory is NOW not again Ahead as we are all set to manifest NOW to the Glory of God!

Your highly revered Excellency and "Elect of God" welcome to your Season of GLORY!!!

Thank you so much for trusting us to report in our little way and capacity the Full Text of the different Sessions to your door step.

We have a rich library and Coverage of Pastor E.A Adeboye's messages in and outside Nigeria all through the Year 2018 as well as in the last three (3) years as God has empowered us to do.

... And in the Coming Year 2019; we are looking forward to serving you much better and make accessibility to our materials seamless through a robust and user friendly Website to serve as "Resource Center of Materials" to the children of God!



## ... DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW ... Reaching out to the world through the Power of the GOSPEL!!!

COMPILATIONS BY

266

MOSES DURODOLA AND TITILAYOMI AJAYI

© DISCOVERY MEDIA CREW 2018



We have other messages of the Holy Ghost Congress and many others from Daddy G.O. Kindly contact us for more. (08023604721)